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involved in the fame Guilt, and equally a Prin-
cipal in the Murder : But, Gentlemen, Mr. Re-
corder, I believe, will tell you, that the only
Matter for your Inquiry will be, Whether the
Prifoners were concurring in the Murder of the
Deceafed, and prefent at the Strangling of him s
for if fo, whether Mabony, Mr. Goodere, or an-
other in fa& ftrangled him ¢ it will in confidera-
tion of Law be the fame thing, and the Act of
Strangling will be as much imputable to each of
them, as if they had both affitted in putting the
Cord about the Neck of the Deceafed, and been his
actual Executioners ;5 nor will it be material whe-
ther they ftrangled him with a Rope, a Hand-
kerchief, or their Hands, {o the kind of Death
be proved. And, Gentlemen, as to the Crime
fet torth in the IndiGment, I have Matter, in my
Brief, for a very heavy Charge againft both the
Prifoners, but diftinguifhed again{t the Priloner
Mr. Goodere with this black Characteriftick, that
he was Brother of the Decealed, and, as fuch,
bound by the Ties of Blood and Nature, to have
preferved his Perfon from Violence; and yet,
Gentlemen, I am afraid it will appear, that his
Brother died by his Procurement, and 1n his Fre-
fence, which is the fame, in effect, as if he had
perithed by his Hand.  Butas it would ill be-
come me to aggravate in a Cule of this nature, I
thall only ftate to you the moft material Paflages
relating to the Murder of that unfortunate Gen-
tleman, and leave the reft to come from the
Mouths of the Witnefles themielves, And, Gen-
tlemen, (as I am inftrutted) there had been a
Jong and very unhapy Difference between the de-
ceafed Sir Fobr and his Brother the Prifoner,
owing to various Occaftons 5 and among(t others,
to Sir Febn’s having cut off the Entail of a large
Eftate in Horcefterfbive, to which Mr, Goodere
(as the next Remainder-tnan) would have other-
wife ftood intituled, in default of Iffue of Sir
“obn, Gentlemen, this Mifunder{tanding by de-
grees grew to an inveterate Grudge and Hatred
on the part of Mr. “oodere ; which was fo rooted
in his Heart, thac it at length worked him 1nto
a formed Delign of deftroying his Brother, and
making away with him ac all hazards and events.
The great Difliculty was, how to get Sir Fobu
into his Power, for he generally travelled armed 5
nor was it eafy to get together a Sett of Fellows,
{o bafe and defperate, asto join with him in the
carrying off his Brother. But, unfortunately for
the Deceafed, the Prifoner, Mr. Goodere, having
been lately honoured by his Muajelty with the
Command of the Ruly Man of War, happenzd,
in Fanuary laft, to he ftationed in King-road, (as
much within the County of Briffs/, as the Guild-
ball where this Court is fitting.)  Sir Fobu (who
was advanced in years, and very ailing) had, 1t
feems, been advifed to come to Bath for the Re-
covery of his Health: And having occalion to
tranfa&t Affairs of Confequence at Briftel with
Mr. farrit Sirithy Mr. Gaodere took this Oppor-
tunity of laying a Snarc for his Brother’s Life, as
you will find by the Event. He applies to Mr,
Smith, and taking notice to him of the Mifunder-
{tanding between himfclf and his Brother, pre-
tends a fincere Defire of Reconciliation, and de-
fircs Mr. $with, if poflible, to make up the
Breach between them ; and Mr. Siwdth promifed
to do his utmolt towards effecting a Reconcilia-
tion, and was as good as his Word ; for, by his

Interelt and Perfoafions, he at length prevailed
A

upon Sir Fobu to fec and be reconciled to hig
Brother. And Sir Febn having appointed Tref:
day the 13th of Fanuary lalt in the Morning fo;
calling on Mr. Swith at his Ioule in Celledge-
green, Mr, Smith foon made his Brother, Mr,
Goodere, acquainted therewith ;3 and no fooner
was he informed of it, but he begun to take hig
Meafures for the exccuting his wicked Scheme
again{t his Brother’s Life.  For on Menday (the
Duay before Sir Febun was to be at Mr. Siiths)
Mr. Geoedere, with the other Prifoner NMabeuy,
(his infeparable Agent and Companion in cvery
Stage of this fatal Bufinels; went together to the
IVhite Hart, an Ale-houle near the foot of the
Colledge-green, In the View of, and almoft oppo.
fite to Mr, Smith’s, in order to {ee if it was 4 fi
Place for their defperate Purpofe: and finding it
to be fo, Mr. Goadere commended the Plealint.
nefs of the Clofet over the Yorch, and faid he
would come and breaktalt there the next Duy.
And accordingly the next Morning (which wis
Tuefday the 13th) Mr. Goodere, with his Friend
Mehony, and a Gang ot Fellows belonging to the
Privateer called the Verair, whom they had hired
to affift them in the way-liying and feizing of
Sir Fohu, (but whom, one would have thouzgh:,
the Name of that gallant Admiral fhould have
infpired with nobler Sentiments) came to the
IVhite Hart, where having ordered they thould
have what they would call for, he went himfelf
to breakfaflt in the Clofet over the Porch, from
whence he had a full View of Mr, Smird’s Houl,
whillt the others pofted themlelves below on the
Look-out for Sir Jobi 3 and 1t was not long be-
fore he came on horfcback to Mr. Smith’s: But
his Stay was very fhort, being obliged to go 1o
Bath 5 however, he promifed Mr, Siuith to be in
Briftel again by the Swnday following, He was
feen from the White Hert by Mr. Geodere and his
Spies upon the Watch 3 but having a Servant,
and riding with Piftols, they did not think pro-
per to attempt the feizing of him then ; bur, as
he rode down the Hill by St. Auguftings Back,
Mr. Gosdere called out to Mabony 1n thele Words,
Lsok at biwm well, Mahony, and wwatch bii, bus
doi’t touch bim now. And in fa&, Gentlemen,.
the Prifoners and thetr Companions followed and
watched Sir 7obr a confliderable way,  Afterwards
Mr. Siuith acquainted the Prifoner Mr, Goodire,
that his Brother was to be with him on the Swiday
following ; and little thinking that an Interview
between Brothers could be of a fatal Tendency,
advifed him to be in the way, that he mighe bring
them together : Which Advice the Prifoner ob-
ferved with but too great Punétuality, taking care,
in the Interim, to lay fuch a Train, as that it
fhould be hardly poffible for his Brother to efcape
falling into his Hands, He ordered the Man of
War’s Barge to be fent up for him on the Suiday,
accordingly 1t came up about 2 or 3 that After-
noon ; of which Mr. Goodere being informed by
one /7illiams, a Midfhipman, whom he had or-
dered up In 1t, he enquired of /¥illiams, if he
knew the River, and Brick-kilus soing down it?
And Williams telling him he did, Mr, Goodire
ordered him to get all the Boat’s Crew together,
and be {ure to plice the Barge at the Brick-kilus,
and leave but two or three Hands to look after
the Barge, and bring all the reft of the Men to
the MWhite Hart Ale-houte, and wait for him
there, for he had @ Cortain Perfon coming on
board. Accordingly, Gentiemen, [7illiams nn{c%
Mo
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moft of the Barge-men came (o the Place of Ren-
dezvous at the White Hart, where Mabony, with
overal of the Privateer’s Men (I believe, all, or
qoft of the fame Gang that had been there on
he Watch the Tuefday before) were allo met by
Mr. Goodere’s Orders to way-liy and feize Siv
Fobi, and ftood at the Window on the Look-
out, in order to watch his coming out of Mr.
emith’s.  Thus, the Ambufcade being lid, the
Prifoner Mr. Goodere goes to Mr. Smith's about
three in the Afternoon, (the Hour at which Sir
Fobun had appointed to be there ;) he went directly
rowards his Brother Sir Fobn, and kiffed him,
(what kind of Kifs it was, will beft appear by
the Sequcl) and obferved to him with an outward
chew of Satisfaction, that he looked in betrer
Health than he had formerly done.  Mr. Smith
was {o good to drink Friendfhip and Reconcilia-
ton between the two Brothers: Mr. Goedzre
pledged it 1n a Glafs of Wine, which he drank
o his Brother Sir Fobu; and Sir Fobn (being
under a Regimen) offered to pledge him in Wa-
cer, little thinking his Brother defigned to end
their Differences, by putting an End to his Life.
Rut that, Gentlemen, you’ll foon fee was the fole
Fnd he had in view 3 for Sir Fobn in about half
an Hour taking his Leave, Mr. Goodere was
following him, Mr. Smith ftopt Mr. Goodere,
fying, I think, I have done great things for
vo. Says Mr. Goodere, By God this wow't do s
and immediately followed his Brother : And meet-
ing fome of the Sailors whom he had pofted at
the [Vbite Hart, fays to them, Is be ready? and
being anfwered, 2es, he bid them make hafte.
Mabeny, and the other Fellows who were on the
Look-out at the #hite Hart, {ceing Sir Fobin go
down St. Auguftings Back, immediately rufh’d
out, and (as they had been ordered by Mr.
Goodere) feiz’d Sir Fobir as their Prifoner.  Juft
then My, Goodere himfelf was come up, and had
joined his Companions, and fhewed himfelf their
Ring-leader : For (according tomy [nftructions)
he gave them pofitive Orders to carry Sir Fobu
on board the Barge, and they but too exactly ob-
ferved the Word of Command. They hurried
on Sir Fobn with the utmoft Viclence and Precipi-
tation, forcing him along, and even ftriking him
in the Prefence of his Brother, and (as the Ro-
wans uled to do their Malefactors) dragged him
through the publick Way. The poor unfortu-
nate Creature made repeated Outcries of Murder,
that he was ruined and undone, for his Brother
was poing to take away his Life. He made
what Refiftance he could, and called aloud for
Help, but all was to no purpofe. Several Per-
{ons indeed followed them, and afked what was
the matter ? but they were anfwered by Mr.
Goodere and his Aflociates, that the Perfon they
were halling along was a Murderer, had killed a
Man, and was going to be tried for his Life,
The moft of this Ruffianly Crew being armed
(it feems) with Bludgeons and Truncheons, obliged
the People who came about to keep off'; holding
up their Sticks at them, and threatning to knock
them down. Gentlemen, when they had thus
forced Sir Fobn towards the End of the Rope-
walk, Mr, Goodere (who all along bore them
Company, and animated them as they paffed
along) bid them make more Difpatch, and mend
their Pace. Accordingly they took upSir Fobu,
and carried bim by main Force a confiderable
way, then fet him down again, and pufhed and
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halled him along, till they had got him to ‘the
Slip, (oppofite to the King’s Head.) Sir Yobu
cried out, Save me, fave me, for they are gorng Lo
murder me.  There the Barge came up, and the
Prifoner Mr. Goodere had his Brother forced on
board, and with Mabony and the reft went alfo
into the Barge. Sir Fobu then called out, For
God’s fake run to My, Smith, and tell bin, I au
goiug to be murdered, or I am an wundone Mo,
And crying out that his Name was Dineley, Mr.
Gooderz ftopt his Mouth with his Hand, to pre-
vent bis telling his other Name : And though Sir
Fobir was in an ill State of Health, yet his hard-
hearted Brother forcibly took his Cloak from off
his Back, and put it upon himflf: And having
thus got him into his Power, he ordered the
Men to row off, telling his Brother, that now
he had got him into his Cuftody, he would rake
care of him, and prevent his making away with
his Iiftate. Buat, Gentlemen, in fa&, fo litte
did he think himfelt concerned in what Sir Fobus
did with the Eftate, that he was of Opinion,
no Act of Sir Jobiws could affe@ it longer than
his Life 3 and chat it mult neceffarily devolve to
him (as the next in Remainder) on his Brother’s
dying without Iflue. And this, Gentlemen, he
declared to Mr. Smith but a few Days before.
And indeed his Brother at once faw what kind
of Prevention it was he meant 5 1 kuow, fays he
to Mr. Goodere, (foon after his being forced into
the Barge) you intend to murder me this Night,
and therefore you may as well do it waw, as carry
me down, Poor Gentleman, his Heart mifgave
him, that the Delign of this bafe and daring
Outrage was to make the Ship his Prifon, one of
his Cabbins his Slaughter-houfe, and the Sea his
Grave, and therefore he made it his Choice to
be thrown overboard in the River (where lus
Body might be found) rather than buried in tie
Ocean. The Prifoner Goodere denied, indeed,
he had any fuch Dezfign, but yet could not re-
frain from the ufual Exhortation to dying Per-
fons, that HE WOQULD HAVE HIM MAKE
HIS PEACE WITH GOD. At the Redeliffe
the Privateer’sMen were fet onfhore; and, I think,
about Seven in the LEvening the Barge reached
the Reby Man of War, then in Kiug-road. Mr,
Goodere had, in their Paflage, talked of bieeding
and purging his Brother to bring bim to his
Senfes, pretending he was a Madman; for he
knew very well that very few of his own Men
would have aflifted him in fuch an Enterprize,
had they not been under a Belief that his Brother
was really mad. And to keep up fuch a Notion,
as {oon as he had got him on beard the Rudy, he
hurry’d him down what, I think, they call the
Gangway, into the Purfer’s Cabbin, muking an
Apology, that he had brought a mad Ieilow
there ; then ordered two Bolts to be clapt on the
Cabbin-door, for the making his Prilon more
fecure ; which was accordingly done.  Aund now
having made his Brother a Prifoner, his nexe Step
was to deftroy him. He took Mabony wiiiv hin
into his own Cabbin, and there the cruel Means
of murdering his Brother were concerted bernween
them. They agreed to ftrangle him; and engaged
one White (who is hereafter to ftand to the Juttice
of his Country) to affit them in the Butchery.
I thould have told you, Gentlemen, that it is
ufual in Ships of War to place a Centinef over
Perfons under Arreft 5 and accordingly one was
placed by Mr. Goodere’s Order with a drawn Cn.]lt-
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las in his Hand at the Door of the Cabbin where
Sir Fobn was confin’d. This Centinel, about
twelve at Night, was relieved by one Buchainan.
It was impofiible for the Prifoners to put their
wicked Defign in Execution whillt this Buchannan
remained at the Cabbin Door; fo, to remove
that Obltacle, Mr. Geodere, (after having been
in clofe Conference with Mabony and HWhite)
comes down to the Purfer’s Cabbin, takes the
Cutlas from Brehasaan, and orders him on Deck,
pofting himfelf at the Door of the Purfer’s Cab-
bin, with the drawn Cutlas in his Hand, I fhall
open none of the Circumftances difclofed by Aa-
bouy in his Confeffion, as being no Lvidence
againft Mr, Geodere, bur it will be made appear
to you in Proof, that Mabesy and JVbite came to
the Purier’s Cobbin whillt Mr. Geedere frood
pofted at the Door of ir; that they were fetinto
the Purfer’s Cabbin by Mr. Goodire himfelf. Ma-
Dony in particular was feen by one Macguiucfs (who
kept watch in the Gun-Room) to gointo the Pur-
fer’s Cabbin, Mr. Goodere at the fame time ftanding
Centinel at the Door of it, and waving his Cutlas
at M¢Guinefs, to make him keep back.  He did
fo 3 but Mr. Goodere waved the Cutls at him
a fecond time, and bid him keep back.  Then,
Gentlemien, it was that Mr, Gosdere and his two
Accomplices effected the cruet Murder of his un-
fortunate Brother,  Meboiy was heard to bid him
not ftir for his Life 5 and then 1 conjunction with
Ihite, whillt Mr. Geodere frood watch for them at
the Cabbin Door (which Mr. Recorder will tell
you was the fame as being actually within 1t) fell
on this unhappy Gentleman, as he iy in the
Cabbin : And one of them having haif throztled
‘him with his Hands, they put a Rope about his
Neck, and at length {lrangied him. Great were his
Agonics, and long and painfui the Conflict be-
twixt Life and Death. He ftruggled violently,
and kicked againft the Cabbin, crying out leveral
times very loud, Alurder I amuft 1 die I belp, for
God's fake s fove iy Life, beve are fweily Guineas,
take it : For he wo.. knew they were lirangling
him by his Brother’s Order, and therciore offered
them a Bribe to {pare his Life, but the Ruffians
were relentlefs and inexorable. The Ship’s Cooper
(one Foues) and his Wite lying in the adjoining
Cabbin, heard his dying Out-crics, and the Noile
occafioned by his kicking; his Cries too were
heard by others far beyond the Cabbin-Door.
Nature at length gave way, and he expired un-
der thefe Cruelties, Then Aickony called for a
Light, that they might all have the Evidence of
their Eye-fight that Sir Febu was altually dead ;
and (which is a fhocking Circumitance in the
Cafe) Mr. Goodere himfelt handed them 1n the
Candle on that Occafion,  Buchamnan perceiving,
the Liehe difappear, was coming to him with
another 3 but Mr. Goodere waved his Cutlas at
him to ftand off.  Such, Gentlemen, was the fa-
tal Conclufion of this tragical Bufinefs. What
was feen by the Cooper and his Wife after the
Candle’s being handed in, with regard to rifling
the Deceafed, 1 choofe fhould come from their
own Mouths, The Murder being thus cltected,
Mr. Geedere locked the Door, and withdrew to
his own Cabbin; Mabony and /Phite were, by
his Order, put aboard the Yawl, and lent to
Briftol. They did not fly the City, Gentlemen,
depending  that their Fellow-Murderer would
fome-how {mother this Deed of Darknels, and
take care of their Security for the fake of his
own : But Divine Providence ordercd otherwilfe,

The honeft Cooper, though he durft not give the
Alarm whillt the Murder was committing, for
fear of fharing the fame Fate with Sir 7&,{:;: et
as foon as he could with Satety, made a Diﬁ:nvm;
of the whole that he had heard and feen, *Twyg
concluded Mr. Goodere had made away with his
Brother 3 which too evidently appeared an the
Cooper’s forcing open the Purler’s Cabbin-Door,
where Sir Febu lay murdered, and thereapon the
Cooper had the Relolution to feize the Murderer,
who remained on board (though his Ciptain,) [He
pretended Innocence ; and when brought by Wy
rant before Mr. Mayor and ether of the City Ma-
aiftrates, publickly declared he did not then know
that his Brother was murdered, and wenr o
far as to deny his having bhad any Hand in
cither the feizing, detaining, or murdering him,
But, Gentlemen, if my [nftractions don’t mif-
lead me, we fhall ik the thing at leaft &
[trongly upon Mr. Gesdeie as Aizhony, and more
{trongly upon them both than T am willing to
open 1. We fhill therefore call our ’\'\’itnﬁf‘us,
and, upon the whole of the Evidence on borh
fides, appeal to your Judgments, and to your Con-
fciences, whether both the Prifoners, by the Parts
they bore in this horrid Adtion, have not forfeited
their Lives to the Jultice ot their Country as:\ecom-
plices in Guile, and Principals i the Murder of
the unforeunate Sir Febir Diveley Gogdeie,

Nr, Sheplard. Mr, Recorder, 1 beg leave, be-
forz the Wimeflus are examined, to iy, that
there are a great many Cucumitances i the Cafe
lad before this Courr, and 1 don’t know how
material it may be for the Witnefles to withdraw,
and not be in the hearing of each other during
the time of Iixaminationy I fubmit it to you, as
it 1s ufually dose in Cales of this nature, whether
it ought not to be done in this Cafe, where it
appears from the Gentleman’s own Opening,
there are Variety of Circumftances. I doubt not,
Sir, but that you will fee equal Juftice done be-
tween the Kimg and Prifoner.

M. Recorder, It cannot be infifted on as 2
Matter of Right that the Witnefies be examined
apart 3 but it is gencrally fo ordered, 1t at s de-
fired. T hope, Sir, you will obferve too, that
the Prifoner hath no Right to be heard by Coun-
fel, unlefs in Muaters of Law. If any fuch
Matter arife, T fhall be ready to hear you.

Mur, Pernon. 1t Mr. Shepbard moves this as a
Maiter of Right, [ would jult remind him of
what Lord Chicf Jultice Tieby fays in Peter Cook’s
Trial, that it is not of Neceflity that the Wit-
nefles thould be examined apare at the Inftance
of the Prifoner, though an Indulgence gene-
rilly granted, Sir, the Crown, perhaps, has
a Right to fuch Examination, bur not the
Prifoner.  We have a ereat Number of Wit-
nefles, all of whom attend here on the pub-
lick Service, (and fome of them Perfons of Fi-
cure ;) and it would, T doubt, be cafting a fort
of Blemifh on their Credit to examine them
apart.  Could that Gentleman fhew the leaft
Glimmering of Sufpicion as to the Fairnefs of
our Witnefies, they ought in Juftice to withdraw 3
but as they are free from the leaft Imputation
in that refpe@, I fee not why they fhould be in-
commoded, and hope he will not contend for 1.

Mr. Shephard. I own it is not of Necellity
that the Witneffes be examined apart in favour
of the Priforers, nor do I intend to throw any
Imputation on the Witnefles 5 but by Mr, Fer-

#ow’s Opening, fome of them appear to be Wit-
neffes
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nefles who were concerned in taking away the
deceafed Gentleman to the Ship, and all thefe, |
fuppofe, are intended to be called as Witneffes,
[ own it is a Matter.of Indulgence, and I dare fay,
Sir, that you will indulge a Prifoner, in thefe
anfortunate Circumftances, the Benefit of makine
the beft Defence he can. °

Mr. Recorder. Let the Witneffes withdraw,
Officers, clear the Way,

Mr. Vernon. We hope, Siry it is not intended
that all our Witnefles 1n general thould withdraw
without Diftinétion.

Mr. Farrit Smith, (Solicitor for the Profecu-
tion.) We defire there may be a Room for our
Witnefles, where they fhall be together, or I
may lofe balf my Witnefles. [ am myfelf o
Wicnels, Mr., Recorder, mufl I withdraw ?

Mr. Recorder. No, you fhall not go out.——-
Who do you call firlt, Mr. Feruon ?

Mr., Verioir, Cryer, call Thoias Chamberlayn
Efgs (Mr. Chaniberleyn fworn.) 1 think, Sir,
yon have been for fome tim= acquainted with Mr.
Geodere, the unhappy Gentleman at the Bar.

Mr. Chamberlayn. A late Acquaintance.

Mr. Vernon. Pray, Sir, wili you give an Ac-
count to Mr. Recorder and the Jury, whether
Mr. Goodere, at any time, and when, defired your
Interpofitton with Mr. Fairit Sinith to bring about
a Reconcihation between him and his Brother
Sir Jehir Dincley Geodere ?

Mr. Chamberlayn. Yes, Siry he did. The
Ciprain appiled to me to go to Mr. Swith to
interpofe tor him with Sir Yobwy and I did
apply.

Mr. Pernoin. Pray, Sir, how long was it be-
fore this unhappy Asiair happened ?

Mr. Chamocriayn. About three Weeks, T be-
lieve,

Mr. Vernon. And did Mr., Swith undertake
that good-natur’d Office ?

Mr. Chamberlayn, Mr, Swith {ud, he fhould
be ready to do 1r, and promifed me to do all he
could in the Afiair.

Mr. Perion. When you applied to Mr. Saith,
wis you alone, or was Mr. Geaders with you ?

Mr., Chamberlayn. 1 went felt slone; afterwards

ipt. Goodere went with me to Mr. Smith’s Houfe.

Mr. Pernon. What was the Occalion of your
golng to Mr, Swmith’s ?

Mr, Chainb.rlayn. To intreat hum to ufe his
good Officers to get a Reconctliation between Sir
Fobn and the Capeain,

Mr, Veruon. Be plealed, Sir, to tell us what
pafled on that Occeafion, and whether Mr. Goodere
acquainted Mr. Smith with the Nature of che
Mijunderftanding between him and his Brother.,

Mr. Chawmberlayn. Yes, Siry that they bad
been both at Law a great while, and fpenta great
deal of Money, and therefore Mr, Gosdere was
willing to have Mr. Fa it Siaiih to reconcile the
Matter between them, to prevent the Ruin of
t?e{Family, and maay more fuch Expreflions as
tivele,

(Mr. Farrit Smith {worn.)

Mr. Vernon, Mr. Smith, will you give an Ac-
count of what you know of this tatal Bufinefs.

Mr., Farrit Smith. Some few Weeks before
this Murder bappened, Mr. Chambeilayn 2pplicd
o me, and told me, that Mr. Geadere (the Prifo-
ner at the Bar) defired that I would ufe my ut-
molt Endeavour with Sir Yobu Dincley Goodere

1o be f{riends and reqanciicd with Mr. Geodere,
L
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and that T would fuffer him to bring Mr. Goodere
to my Houfe. I told him, I often heard Sir
Jobu fay, that there had been warm Difputes be-
tween them, but would make ufe of all my En-
deavours to reconcile them, and that it was piry
they fhould live in hatred, as they were the only
two Brothers.  Sume time after Mr. Chamberlays
brought Mr, Gaodire to my Houfe, where they
ftard about a Quarter of an Hour, when Mr.
Gosdere gave me Thanks for the Promiiz I had
made to Mr. Chairberlayn, and he then defired
I would do all I could to promote a Reconcilia-
tion. I told him, Ithould be glad to be a happy
Inftrument of that fort; and chat the Arft ume
I faw Sie Febiz 1 would {peak to him on the
Afiatr, and endeavour to prevail on him o mect

Mr. Goodcre. The Captain faid, if any Man in

Eugland could do it, I could. T rold him, I
hoped to fucceed.  Mr, Chamberlayn and Mr,
Gooderz went away.  Some lictle time after they
were gone, I {aw Sir Fobi, and told him, that
Mr. Goodere had applied to me to doall I could
to reconcile them.  Sir Yobw feemed to fpeak
much again{t it at firllt, and choughe it would be
to no Purpofe; for that he had been o real Friend
to the Captain, who had ufed him very ill 3 buc
at laft he was pleafed to pafs a2 Compliment
on me, and faid, Ican’t refufe you aay thing you
aflsof me.  He then mentioned feveral Things
the Captain had faid 5 and 1 particolar told me,
that at the Death ol Sir £dward Goodere his Fa-
ther, Mr. Gasdere the Prifoner had placed feveral
Perfons in the Houle where Sir Edward lay dead,
in order to do him fome Mifchief, and he ap-
prehended to take away his Lite.

Mr. Shepbard, I muft fubmic it to the Court,
thar what Str ¥ebn {aid at that Time is not matter
of Lvidence.

M. Recorder. Tt is not Evidence, but perhaps
it 1s introductory to fomething Mr. Smith has
further to fay 3 if 1t be not, it thould not have
been mentioned, -

Mr., Farrit Smith, And that he had endea-
voured to {et afide a common Recovery, and
made firong Application to the Court of Com-
mon-Pleas tor that Parpole,

My, Shephard, \Viether this be Evidence, 1
infift upon it in point of Law that it 1s not, and
it may have an Eftect on the Jury.

Mr. Recorder. 1 will take Notice to the Jury
what 1s not Evidence. Goon Mr. Simith.

Mr. Farrit Smith, After Sir Jolm had repeated
{everal Stories of this fore, he concluded ac laft
(as L told youbefore) and why, Mr. §mith, if you
afk it of me, I can’t refule. I faw Mr, Goodere
foon after, and told him I had feen Sir Fobn,
and talked with him, and he was pleafed to tell
me, that he would fee him, and bid me con-
trive a convenient Place to bring them together.
I told Mr, Goodere about the Attempt to fer afide
the Recovery. I wonder, fuid Mr. Goodere, he
fhould mention any Thing of that, forI can fet
it afide when ] pleafe.  Itold him, I thought he
could not; for, faid I, I have had a good Opi-
nion on i, and am to lend a large Sum of Money
upon the Woreeferfbire Eftate,  He faid, I won-
der that any body will lend him Money upon that
Iftate, I am next in Remamder, and they will
run a Rilque of lofingtheir Money I do aflure you;
and he cannot borrow a Shilling on it withoue
my Confent: but if my Brother was reconciled,
then, if we wanted Money, we might do it to-

gether,
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aether, for he cannot fecure it alone, He told
me, that he fhould take it as a great Favour, if
I could fix a Time as foon as [ could to bring
them together, Soon after 1 faw Sir Fobi, and
he told me he was very deaf, and was advifed to
2o to the Bath, and then appointed to be with
me on Tuefday the 13th of Fanuary laft 1n the
Morning, when he would talk wich me about the
Bulinefs of advancing the Money on his Eftate.
After this I faw Mr. Goedere, and told him that
had feen his Brother 3 that he was to be with me
on Tucflay the 13th of Faunary laft, and delired
him to be in the Way, for Sir Fobr was always
very punctual to his Appointment ; und_ i{ Bulinels
or any Thing happened to prevent him, he al-
ways fent me a Letter.  Mr, Gosdere thanked
me, and told me he would be in the way : and
on the Turfday Morning Sir Foln came to me on
Horfeback, juft alighted, and came into my
Office. 1afked him co fic down, which he reta-
fed, faying his Head was bad 5 that he mult go
for Bath, having been advifed to go there for
fome time, and then he did not doubt bur he
fhould be better. 1 told Sir Foba, that his Bro-
ther knew he was to be in Town, theretore hopad
h would fit down alictle, for that I had promifed
him to bring them together. He fud, 1 can’e
now 3 but you fhall fce me again foon, and then
I may doit. I afked him, when fhall I fee you
again, to finifh the Bufinefs you and I are upon,
the Writings arc ready, name your own Time,
the Money will be paid? He appointed to be
with me on Mondey NMorning to fettle that Bufi-
nefs s and faid, I thall come to Town the Satui-
day or Sunday betore, and when Icome I will let
you know it: He then mounted his Horle and
tid off. Shortly after (as I was going to the To/-
zey) at, or under Blind-gate, 1 met Mr. Goodere,
and told him I was glad to fee bim, and that his
Brother had been in Town,  He faid, he had feen
him, and thought he looked better than he ufed
to do. I told Mr, Goedere, that his Brother had
appointed to be with me Aenday Morning nexe
on Bufinefs, and I pected him to be in Town ci-
ther the Saturday or Sunday before. I then had
many Compliments from Mr, Geodcre, and he
faid, how good it would be tomake up the matter
between him and his Brother. 1 heard nothing
of Sir Fobu beingin Town till Sunday the 18th of
Fanuary laft i the Morning, when he fent mea
Leteer to let me know chat he came to Town the
Night before, and would be glad to call upon me
at any time [ would appoint. I fent him for
Anfwer, that I was to dinetrom Home, but weuld
return, and be at Home at Three o’Clock that
Afternoon.  And as I was paffing by, I ftopt the
Coach at Capt. Gooders’s Lodgings in Priuces-
Street, Tafked it he was at Home ? found him
alone, and then fhewed him Sir Yobn'’s Letter,
He read it, and afked the Time T appointed. T
told him Three o’Clock that Afternoon,  Said
he, I think my Brother writes better than heufed
to do. I faid, Mr. Goodere, 1 think it would be
beft for you to be accidentally on Purpole at that
Time at my Hoofe.  No, fays he, I don’tthink
that will be fo well, T think it would be better for
you to fend for me. I returned to my Houle, and
my Servant told me that Sir Fobr had called, and
that he would be here again prefently,  Whillt
my Servant was telling this, Sir Febn came in 3

I took him by the Hand, and afked him how he

did? 1 thank God, fays he, T am fomethine
better 3 and after I have fettled this ARir w.ritil:i'I
you, I will'go to Batk tor fome Time, and then,
I hope, I fhall be better, I aid, Capr, Goodere
15 waiting, I beg you will give me leave to fend
for him 5 you know you faid you would fee hig,
With all my Heart, fays Sir Jobn, 1 know |
oave you leave, 1 then fent down a Servant o
Captain Gesdere®s Lodgings, tolet him know thy
Sir Febn was with me, and defired him to come
up. The Servant retorned; and fuid, here s
Captuin Goedere s on which I fad, Sir “Lbs,
pleale to give me leave to introduce your Brother,
e gave me leave 5 Captain Goodire came in,
went direltly and kiffed biin as heartily as ever |
had feen any two Perfons who had real A ffe€tions
one for the other. I defired them to fiz down.
Sir Febir fate on one {ide of the Fire, and Caprain
Goodere on the other, and I fute between them,
I calied for a Table and a Boule of Wiae, and
hlhng a fall Glafs, T faid, Sir Febu, cive me
leave to drink J.ove and Friendthip. Ay, with
all my Fleare, fays Sir Pobiz; Tdon’tdrink Wine,
nothing bLut Water 5 notwithftanding, T with
Love and Friendibip,  Captuin Goodere filled a
Bumper, and pledged i, fpoke to his Brother,
and drank Loveand Friendthip, wicl his Brother's
Hlealth, We fatefome time, all feemed well, and
I thought T could have reconciled them,  The
Cork lying out of the Bottle, CaprainGoodere takes
up the Cork in his Hand, put it mto the Mouth of
the Bottle, and ftruck it in very hard. 1thenfhid,
though Sir Fobn will not drink Wine, you and
[ will.  No, faysCaprain Goodere, T will drink
Water too, it I drink any more 3 and there was
no more drank.,  After they had talked feveral
things (particularly Captain Goodere of the DPlea-
lantnefs of the Situation of the Elftate in Here-
for fhire, and Goodnefs of the Land) in a very
plealant and fricndly way, Sir Fobu rofe up, and
fatd, Mr. Sivith, what time would you have me
be with you To-morrow morning? I appointed
nine o’clock, He faid, Brother, I with you
welly then faid to me, I will be with you half
an Hour before.  Sir 7obn went down the Steps
the Captain was following; I ftopt him, and
fatd, pray don’t go, Captain, It youand I drink
a Glasot Wine,  No more now, I thank you,
Sir, faid he, I chiuk, faid I, I have done great
Things for you. He paufed a lictle, and faid,
By God, it will not do 5 and ina very fhort time
the Captain went very nimbly down the Steps.
I followed him to the Door, and obferved him
to go after Sir 7./ down the Hill 3 and before
he wrned the Church-yard Wall, to be out of
my Sight, 1 oblerved fome Satlors come out of the
H bite Hart Ale-houfe within view of my Door,
and they ran up to Captain Goodere, 1 heard
him fay, Is beready 2 (I thought he meant the
Boar) They fuid, Zes.  He bid them make hafte.
‘Then they ran very faft towards the lower Green,
one of them having a Bottle in his hand ; Cap-
tain Goodere went very faft down the Hill, and
nad it not been by mere accident 1 thould have
tollowed him, (but fome People think °twas well
I did not) for I promifed my Wife to retura to
the Houle where we dined in Queen’s Square,
where I wentfoon after,

Mr. Record:r. Mr. Smith, did they all go to-
wards the lower Green ?
Mr.
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Mr. Farrit Smith. No, Sit; but fome towards
he Butts on St. Augaftin’s Back. Sir Fobn went
that way, and Captain Goodere followed him ;5 but
the Men who came out of the Alehoufe went to-
wards the lower Green {ome of them. About 5
o'clock in the Evening, as I was riding up the Hill
rowards the Colledge-green, 1 obferved a Soldier
look’d hard ar me into the Coach, as if he had
fomething to fay, and feemed to be in a Confufion.
I walked into the Court, the Soldier with me, and
then he faid, Taminform’d, Sir, your Name is Mr.
Farrit Smith. Y es, fays I, it1s. (What I am now
aoing to fay, Mr. Recorder, 1s what the Soldier
told me.) He told me, that as he was drinking
with 2 Friend at the King’s Head Ale-houfe at the
Lime-kilns, he heard a Noife, and ran out to fee
what was the matter, when he faw a Perfon dreffed
(as he deferibed) like Sir Fobi's Drefs.

Mr. Pernon. Pray, Siry, how was Sir Fobn dref-
fed ¢

Mr. Farrit Smith. Sir Fobn was drefled in Black
Clothes, he had a ruffled Shirt on, a Scarlet Cloak,
2 Black Velvet Cap (for the fake of keeping his
Fars warm) and a broad-brimm’d Hat Happing,
He defcribed this exactly, and told me likewife,
that the Captain of the Man of War and his Crew
had got the Perfon into Cultody, and by force had
put him on board the Man of War’s Barge or Boat
lying near the Slip, by the King’s Head that the
Gentleman cry’d out, for God’s fake, if you have
any Pity or Compafiion upon an unfortunate Man,
go o Mr. Farrit Sinith, and tell him how I am
ufed : and that the Captain hearing him cry out,
ftopt his Mouth with his Hand.

Mr. Recorder. What did the Soldier defire of
ou
} Mr. Farrit Smith, The Soldier defired me to in-
quire into it, for that he did not know the Inten-
tion of taking off a Gentleman in that way.

M. Recorder. Did you do any thing on that Re-
quelt of the Soldier ?

Mr. Farrit Swith. Yes, Sir; it immediately oc-
curred to me, that Sir Febn, when he left my
Houfe, told me that he was going to his Lodgings.
I went to his Lodgings, (which was at one Mr,
Berrow’s near the Mint) I there afked for him, and
related the Story I had heard ; they told me they
had not feen him fince he went to my Houle.

Mr. Vernon. Mr. Smith, Sir, will you inform us
by what Name the unfortunate Gentleman (you are
peaking of ) was commonly called.

Mr. Farrit Smith, Sir Fobu Dineley Goodere s his
Mother was a Dincley, and there came a great Eftate
from her fitle to him, which occafion’d his being
called by the Name of Dineley,

Mr. Vernon. When Sir obn went from your
Houfe on Tuefday, was he alone, or had he any
Attendants with him ?

Mr. Smith. Sir Fobn was well guarded ; he had
Piftols, and I think his Servant had Piftols alfo.

Mr, Veriion. 1 think you told us but now, that
Sir John was to be with you on the Sunday; pray,
when did you let Mr. Goodere know 1t, Sir?

Mr. Smith. T met Captain Goodere that very Day
at Blind-gate, and told him of it ; and he faid, he
had met his Brother himfelf.

Mr. Pernon. Pray, Sir, did Mr. Goodere tell

you, to whom the Eftate would go on Sir Fobn’s
Death ?

Mr. Smith. Yes, he has often faid he was the
next Remainder Man, and that the Eftate would

come to himfelf, on his Brother’s Death.
Vou. VI.
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Mr. Recorder. Well, Mr. Goodere, you have
heard what Mr, Smith hath faid, have you any
Quettions to afk him ?

Mr. Shephard, Mr. Recorder, what T have to
a{k of you, with Submiffion, in behalf of My, Gro-
dere, 1s, that you will indulge Counfel to put his
(@eﬁlons for him to the Court, and that the Court
will then be pleafed to put them for him to the
Witnefles. It is every day’s Practice at the Courts
of Wetminfery Old Bailey, and in the Circuit,

Mr. Vernon. This, 1 apprehend, is a matter
purely in the Difcretion of the Court, and what
can neither in this or any other Court of criminal
Juftice be demanded as a Right.  The Judaes, I
apprehend, a¢t as they fec fit on thefe occafions,
and few of them (as far as I have obferved)
walk by one and the fame Rule in this particu-
far : fome have gone fo far, as to give leave for
Counfel to examine and crofs-examine Witnefles ;
others have bid the Counfel propofe their Queftions
to the Court, and others again have direCted that
the Prifoner fhould put his own Queftions: The
Method of Practice in this point, is very variable
and uncertain ; but this we certainly know, that by
the fettled Rule of Law the Prifoner is allowed no
other Couniel but the Court in Matters of Fa&,
and ought either to afk his own Queftions of the
Witnefles, or elfe propofe them himfelf to the Cout.
I have one more Queftion to afk of Mr. Smith be-
fore we part with him.

Siry I think you was prefent when Mr. Goodere
was brought to Briffe/, after his Brother’s being
killed, I'd be glad to know whether you then
heard him fay any thing, and what concerning this
toul Bufinefs ?

Mr. Smith, I was prefent when Mr. Goodere was
brought to Brifiel after this Murder happened,
when he was afked (before the Juftices) about the
feizing, detatning and murdering Sir Fobn Dineley ;
and he then direCtly anfwered, that he did not
know that his Brother was murdered or dead. He
was then afked in relation to the manner of feizing;
him, and carrying him away 3 he faid he knew no-
thing of it till he came to the Boat, and when he
came there he faw his Brother in the Boat; but he
did not know that his Brother had been ufed at
that rate,

Mr, Shephard. Mr. Smith, Sir, you are fpeak-
ing about Sir Fobn 3 by what Name did you com-
monly call him ¢

Mr., Smith, Sir Fobn Dincly Goodere.

Mr. Recorder, Mr. Goodere, have you any
Queftions to afk, Mr. Smith ¢

Saimuel Goodere. Ycs, Sir. Mr. Smith, I afk you,
what Sir Tobn Deneley’s Bulinefs was with you, and
how much Money was you to advance ?

Mr. Smith. ¥ive Thoufand Pounds, Sir; and 1
told him that I was fatisfied that 1t was a good
Title ?

Samuel Goodere. 1 ask you, if you knew him to

be a Knight and Baronet.
Mr. Smith. 1 can’t tell, I never faw the Letters
Patent,
Samuel Goodere, Can’t you tell how you ftyled
him in the Writings ¢ |
Mr. Vernon. 1 am very loth to interrupt Mr.
Goodere, but muft fubmit it, Sir, that this Queftion
is extremely improper, becaufe perfonal Knowledge
is by no means legal Evidence of his Brother’s ha-
ving been a Baronet ; for Baronettage muft be de-
rived from Letters Patent : Neither can I {ee, Sir,
(with great Submiffion) how it would be at all ma-
7 S terial
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terial 1n this Cafe, whether the Deceafed was a Ba-
ronet, or not. By -the Indiétment the Prifoners
{tand charg’d with the Murder of one Sir ¥ obu Dise-
ley Goodere, wnd the Witnels Mr. Swmith proves that
the Party whom we jfhall thew to have been mur-
dered, commonly went by that Name,

Mr. Shepbard, With great Submiffion, Mr. Re-
corder, I think it a very material Queftion in point
of ILaw : Upon the face of the Indictment it ap-
pears, that he 1s defcribed by the Name of Sir Fobu
Dineley Goodere, in a Declaration for the King, the
Party ought to be fet forth with his Additions and
Titles, the Perfons committing the Fadt, as well
as the Perfon on whom it was committed : The
Deceafed is defcribed by the Name of Sir Fobu
Dineley Goodere, and if he was a Baronet by Pa-
tent, 1t's not his Title, and 1t amounts to the {ame
as if they had miftaken the Chriftian Name 5 1f the
Decealed was a Baronet, then he is improperly de-
fcribed, and then the Prifoners can’t be found guil-
ty on this Indi¢tment. The Queftion before you,
Sir, is, Whether this Queftion was proper to be
afked cthe Witnefs ?

My, Recorder. Can I prefume lum to have been
a Baronet, or can I admit of parol Lvidence to
prove him {o ?

Mr. Verion. Mr. Recorder, I beg leave to be
heard in anfver to this Obfervation of Mr. Shep-
hard’s, which I apprehend to be one of the moft
extraordinary 1 have ever heard from a Gentleman
of the long Robe, and am hold to fay the lcarned
Gentleman who made 1t (if i earneft) 15 much
miftaken in it, and in the Doétrine he hath ad-
vanced concerning it,  With great Deference to
your Judgment, Sir, I {peak it, lus Objection (if
I apprehend it rightly) is, that the Perlon men-
tioned in the Indi&tment to have been murdered,
is there deferibed by the Name of Sir fobun Diucley
Goodere only, and that by the Evidence 1t appears
the Perfon murdered was Sir Fobn Dineley Goodere
Baronet; and he would from thence infer, that
there is a Miflake in the Defcription of the Perfon
murdered, and a "“anance between the Indictment
and the Evidence.  Our Baronets, 'tis well known,
are but of modern Inftitution, and their Creation
by Patent from the King, as the Fountain of Ho-
nour ; and whoever reads Lord Coke’s 12th Re-
port, will find it to have been refolved, at a learned
Conference in the Time of Fames the Fiedt, That
the King could erect fuch a Dignity by Patent de-
fcendable to the Heirs Male of the Body, as a Fee
conditional and forfeitable for Felony.—But that
where a Baronet is murdered, 1t 15 neceflary to fet
forth his Name (or more properly Title of Digni-
ty) in the Indi¢tment, I mult take the liberty to
deny : The Diiterence, which I apprehend has
been always taken and allowed, 1s between the In-
diétee or Perfon charged by the IndiGtment with
committing the Offence, and the Perfon on whom
the Offence is laid cherein to have been committed.
>Tis indifputably true, that the Indictee’s Addition
(whether of Title or otherwife) muft be fer forth
in the Indi¢tment ; but what 1s the Reafon ? Why,
becaule it is exprefsly fo required by the Statute of
the 1ft of Henry the sth, which direéts, that in In-
diztments and Writs where Procefs of Outlawry is
awgraable, the Eftate, Degree or Myftery of the
Lefendant fhall be fuperadded to his Name, to pre-
vent troubling one Perfon for another,  But, Sir,
with great Submiffion, that Statute was never ta-
ken to extend to any other but the Defendant.  All

the Law requires, as to the Perfon on whom the

Offence is laid to have been committed, is a cop.
venient Certainty in the Deleription of him 5 and
furely a Defcription by the right Chriftian and Sy
name 15 fuch, and {ufficient to alcertain the Perfyp
murdered, elpecially where ir does not appear there
was any other of the fame Name, In the Indi@.
ment againlt Coke and Woodburne on the Coventry
A&, tor dishguring Mr. Coke’s Brother-in-Law M.
Crifpe, and which was lettled with great Advice,
the Perfon dishgured is deleribed as here, one E4
ward Crifpe only 5 and all the modern Precedens
of Indi¢tments at the O/d Barly are filent, as to the
Addition of the Perfon on whom the Offence 1s fai]
to be committed ; and it is certainly beft and fafeft
to omit it. Lord Cote w his firft Inftitute lays i
down, that a Perfon may have divers Surnames,
and that a Purchafe by either of them is fufhicient,
and yet but one of them is his true Nane 5 which
fhews the Law 15 not fo over-curious in the man-
ner of delcribing Perfons @ and, if I miftake no, it
has been held that even the Inditee himfelf can
talke no Advantage of a Miitake of his Surname,
if his Chriftian Name be right, and he be otherwife
deferibed with convenient Certainty.  Befides, Sir,
this is begging the Queftion ; for it does not ap-
pear in Proot that the Decealed was a Baronet, e
might for aught appears judicially to the Court
have been baptized by the Name of Sir Fobi.  Ba-
ronettage as a Patent-Dignity we know is Matter of
Record, wiuch is a thing proveable only by itlili;
therefore 1t they would have taken any Advantage
of 1t, they thould have had the Leteers Patent of
Creation, or an Lxemplification of them, at leait
Eir Porgne, (as the Law terms it) ready to produce
in Court: and for an Authority in Point, Sir, I
beg leave jult to mention the Cafe of Sir Rickard
Grabme (Fitular Lord Preffon) 3 he was indicted
as-n Commoner, and objected that he was a Lo,
and as {uch triable by his Peers.  But Lord Chiel
Juttice Helt, and other Judges then prefent, ac-
quanted him they could take no judicial Notice of
his being a Lord (though they themielves called
him {o out of Courtefy when they {poke to him}
unlefs he produced the Patent ot Creation, ora
Copy of its Inroliment, becaufe Matter of Record s
fo his Objection vanithed, and fo [ hope will this
Gentlernan’s,  Had we called the Deceafed 1n the
Indictment Sir odir Dincliy Geodere Baronct, then,
Siry we fhould probably have been told, that we
had failed in Proof of the Idenuty of the Perfon,
for that the Baronettage was mn its Creation annex-
¢d to and made a Concomitant on the Patente’s
Surnamc ot Goodere, and watted only on that Name,
and that the Decealed, confidered as a Baronet, was
not of the maternal Name ol Dineliy, and fo upon
the matter no fuch Perfon as Sir Febn Dincley
Goodiie Baronet ever 11 Rerum Natuio.

Mr. Shepherd, Mr, Recorder, Mr. Pernon fays
it does not appear that Sir Fobu Dineley was a Ba-
ronet, and that we ought to produce the Letters
Patent to fhew him fuch 3 1 think 1t a pretty hard
Objection, confidering that by Law a Prifoner can-
not leok into his Indictment, nor have a Copy of
it, in order to be advifed thereon, Idere it comes
out only on hearing the Indictment read, and the
Perfon killed 1s therein defcribed by the Name of
Sir Fobn Dincley Goodere only, without adding the
Title Baronet 3 fo that it was impoffible for. us, to
be prepared with the Letters Patent, or with any
Evidence of his being a Baronet ; therefore hum-
bly hope we are proper in afking this Queftion of
the Witnels Mr., Swith, who was fo converfant wi}th

the
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the deceafed Gentleman, had the Perufal of his
Writings, all his Title-Deeds lay before him, fo
that he cannot but know the Certainty of his Title
and Degrec,

Mr. Recorder. 1t is a great Miftake to fay, that
it is neceflary to fet forth in the Indiétment the
Addition of the Perfon on whom the Offence is
fuppofed to be commuitted ; the Law requires no
fuch thing, and the Prifoners fuffer no manner of
Tnconvenience by leaving out the Addition ; be-
caule on this Indiétment if they fhould happen to
be acquitted, or fhould be convicted of Homicide
under the Degree of Murder, they may plead that
Acquittal or Conviction in bar of a fecond Profe-
cution for the fame Fact, with an Averment that
the Party mentioned in both Indiétments, though
under different Defcriptions, was one and the fame
Perfon : It is fufficient that the Deceafed is de-
{cribed by his Chriftian Name, and the Surname by
which he was commonly called. The Queftion
propofed to the Witnefs is improper ; for it is not
at a}l material in the prefent Cafe, Whether Sirobn
was a Baronet, or no. I would not deny the Pri-
foners any Advantage they are by Law intitled to,
hut I cannot admit of Evidence which can ferve
only to amufc. Mr. Goodere, Have you any
more Queftions to afk this Witnels? Mabony, have
you any Queftions to afk ? [Both filent.]

(Merris Hobbs fworn.)

Mr. Vernon. Mr. Hobbs, 1 think you are the
Landlord of the /¥hite-Hart Alchoufe,

Hobbs. Yes, Sir. .

Mr. Zernon. Pray whereabout is the Houfe ?

Hobbs. Over-againft St. duguftine’s Church.

Mr. Vernon. Can you fee Mr, Farrit Smith’s
Houfe from the Window of yours 2.

Hobbs. Yes, Sir, very plain.

Mr. Vernon. 1 prefume you are not unacquainted
with the Prifosers Faces ?

Hobbs. I have {een the Prifoners {everal times.

Mr. Vernon. 1 would not lead you in your Evi-
dence, but would be glad you'd give an Account
to Mr, Recorder, and the Jury, whether Mr. Goo-
dere (the Gentleman at the Bar) applied to you a-
bout coming to your Houfe; if fo, pray tell us
when it was, and upon what Occalion ?

Hobbs, The 12th of Fanuary (which was on
Monday) Captain Goodere and Mabony came to my
Houfe ; Captain Goodere afked my Wife, Have
you good Ale here? She faid, yes; he alfo afked,
‘What Place have you over head ? I anfwered, a
Clofet, a Place where Gentlemen ufually fit to look
out. Will you pleafe to let me fee 1t? fays he. Yes,
Sir, faid L. T went up to thew 1t, he and Mabony
went up 3 the Captain faid it was a very fine Pro-
{pet of the Town ; he afked for a Pint of Ale, I
drawed it, and he gave it to Mabony, he drank it
and then the Captain aftked my Wife, whether he
might have a Difh of Coffee made to-morrow
Morning ? Sir, faid fhe, ’tis a thing I don’t make
ufe of in my way ; but, if you pleafe, I will get it
for you, Then he told her, he would be there to-
morrow Morning by about Nine o’clock.  Aabe-
#y was by then.

Mr. Pernon. Did you hear this Difcourfe pafs
between your Wife and Mr. Goodere ¢

Hobbs. Yes, Idid, and then the Captain paid for
his Pint of Ale, and went away; and the next
Morning (being Twefday the 13th of Fanuary) he
came again to my Houfe before my Wife was up,
and I was making the Fire, (for I keep no Servant.)
I did not know him again, I theught he was ano-

You. VI, |

ther Man; fays he, Landlord, can’t you open them
\VII‘IL!DWS in the Parlour ? I told him, I would, and
foldid; he looked out, and I thought that he had
been looking for fomebody coming from Colledge
Prayers.  He afked where my Wife was 2 Says I,
the is a-bed 5 becaufe, faid he, I talked with her
about having fome Coffec for Breakfaft. I told
him, fhe fhould come down prefently, but I had
much rather he would go down to the Coffee-houfe,
where he would have it in order. No, fays he, I
will have it here. My Wife came down, he afked
if he might go up ftairs where he was before ; he
went up, and by and by Mabony and three Men
more came 1n ; I did not know Mabony’s Name »
When they cameg in, the Captain was above ftairs,
he direéted me to make his Men eat and drink
whatever they would, and he would pay for it
I brought them Bread and Cheefe, they eat what
they pleafed 5 Mabony went backwards and for-
wards, up ftairs and down feveral times ; he went
out, but where, or what for, I did not know.

Mr. Vernon. Did Mabouy, when he went up
ftairs, go in to Mr. Goodere ?

Hobbs. Yes, feveral times; Mehony put the Cof-
fee, and fome Bread and Butter, and made the
Toaft, and done every thing for the Captain, I
thought he had been his Footman, When the
Captain had breakfafted, and had made the Men
welcome, he fhifted himfelf, {fome Porter brought
frefh Clothes to him). By and by a Man rid along,
who, I believe, was Sir Fohu Geodere’s Man, with
Piftols before him ; I heard fomebody fay that it

~ was his Man: and foon after the Captain had

thifted himfelf, Adabony went out abour a Quarter
of an Hour, and came back fiveating, and went up
to the Captain ; and I looking out of the Window
faw the Man on horfeback, and leading another
Horle, (which I took to be his Mafter’s) ; and by
and by Sir Fobn mounted, and rid down between
my Houfe and the Church; and I had fome glimpfe
of him, and hcard the Captam fay, look well at
him, but don’t touch him.

My, Recorder. This you heard the Gentleman
above ftairs fay to the four Men below ?

Hobbs. Yes, Sir, he {pake thofe Words to the
four who came In.

Mr. Vernon. Did Sir Fobir and his Man appear
to have any Arms ¢

Hobbs. Yes, Sir, they had both Piftols before
them,

Mr, Vernon. Thofe Men that were along with
Mabony, do you know what Ship they belong’d
to ¢

Hobbs. ‘There was a young Man, I believe fome-
thing of an Officer, came to my Wife, and afked
her, Is the Captain of the Man of War here ? She
anfwered, that the did not know 5 but there was a
Gentleman above, and there were {ix other Men
befides in the other Room in another Company,
which I did not know belonged to the Captain,
until he order’d fix Pints of Ale for them. The
Captain ordered Entertainment for ten Men.

Mr, Vernon. Where were thofe fix Men ?

Hobbs. In the Kitchen ; they did not belong to
the Man of War, nor were not in Company with
the other four.

Mr. Vernon. Now, will you proceed to give an
account what followed upon Mr. Goedere’s faying,
Look well at him, but don’t touch him.

Hobbs. As foon as Sir Febn went down the Hill,

“this Mabony {tept up to the Captain and came down

again, and he and the other three in his Company
| 79 2 weng
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went down the Fill, and tlie Captain followed
them ; the Clothes which the Captain pulled off
were left in the Roomn 5 when the Captain was go-
ing out at the Door with his Sword and Cloak, I
thought I was pretty fafe of my Reckoning, be-
caufe of his Clothes being left.  The Captain faid
at the Door, Landlady, I will come back and pay
you prefently.

Mr. Vernon., How long was it before Mr. Goo-
dere returned to your Houfe ?

Hobbs. He came again tn about a Quarter of an
Hour: When lic came agam, he went up ftairs,
changed a Guinea, he afked what was to pay? I
told him four Shillings and one Penny half-penny,
and then went away.  About an Hour and a half
after Mabony and the other came again, fweating,
and faid they had been a Mile or two out i the
Country. “Mabony afked Credit for a Tankard of
Ale, and faid his Mafter would come up on Sasurday
following, and then he would pay for it: Well,
faid I, if he is to come up on Saturday, 1 will not
ftanid for a Tankard of Ale s buc if he don’t come,
how fhall I have my Reckoning? Says Aebony, 1
live at the Seotch Arms in Marfd-freet. Well, faid
I, Twill not deny drawing you a Tankard of Ale,
if you never pay me, Said he, you had belt get
the Room ready againlt Satuiday, and make a Eire,
and jult duft 1.

. Mr. Vernon. Pray, when Mr. Goodere went away

from your Houlc, was he in the fame Drefs as when
he came firft there that Day ?

Hobbs., No, Sir. When he came there he had a
light-coloured Coat, and he looked like a Country
Farmer at his firlt eoming in; but when he was
out, he had a Scarlet-Cloak on, worc a Sword, and
had a Cane in his Hand ; a Porter brought him
the Things.

Mr. Verneir. Do you know any thing of what
happened on the Sunday following ?

Hobbs., Yes, Siry the Sundey Morning Mahony
came to my Houle, having Troufers and a fhort
Jacker and Leather-Cap on, afked for a Quart of
Ale, this was Sund-: My Wife faid, don’t draw
any imore upon tick, Mabony gave a Six-pence
and paid for 1t, and faid, Sec that the Room be
clear, the Captamn will be up m the Afternoon, and
then he’ll be here: And as he was going out of the
Houfe, he faid to me, if you fortune to fec that
Gentleman go up with the black Cap before that
time, do you fend a Porrer to me to the Scotch
Arms. T told hum I had no Porter, and could not
fend, About 3 o’clock in the Aftcrnoon, when
he came again with a Perfon who had a fcall=d
Face, and one or fwvo more, a Man who lodged 1n
the Houlfe came and told me, that they wanted to
er0 up flairs 3 but I would not let them, becaufe 1t
was 1n Service-time: They all went into the Par-
lour, and had a Quart of Ale, and when that was
drank, Makony calied for another 3 and then cight
or nine Men more came and called for Ale, and
went into the Parlour, but ftill kept looking out 3
and onc of them being a Iittle Fellow, I don’t know

his Name, kept flamming the Door together, rea-

dy to break the Floufe down.  Says I, don’t break
my Houfe down about my Ears, don’t think you
are in Marfb-fireet 5 then the httle Fellow came up
s if he was going to ftrike me, as I was coming
-up oiit of the Cellar with a Dobbin of Ale in my
Fand, for a Gentleman going to the Colledge : 'I
{faw- this Gentleman (pointing to the Prifoncr Sa-

" .amnel Goodere) and the Deceafed walk down the

"Hill; Tlooked after them, and fo did Makony ; and -

then all thofe Men rufhed out, and followed them.
Mahony paid the Reckoning, and went awdy; I
ran in to fee after my Tankard, for I was more
afraid of lofing that than the Reckoning, Ang
that is all I do know from the Beginning to the
End.

Mr, Pernon. How long did he continue at your
Houfe on the Sunday 2

Hobbs. 1 believe, Sir, an Hour and an half,
and there was fome or other of them ftill looking
out, and waiting at the Door. -

My, Recorder. You fay that Mabony defired you
that if you faw the Gentleman in the black Cap
go by, to fend a Porter; who did you apprehend
that Gentleman to be ?

Hobbs., The Gentleman that rode down the
Tuefday.

One of the Fury. To what Place was you to fend
the Porter ¢

Fobbs. To the Scotch Arms in Mar/b-firect, where
Mabony lodged, if the Gentleman in the black Cap
did go up to Mr. Smith’s.

Mr. Vernon. 1think, you fay, you faw Mr. Ggy-
dere on the Sunday o down the Hill, after the Gep-
tleman in the black Cap.

Hobbs. 1did, Sirs but nobody at all was with
him.

Samuel Goodere. Did you fee me at all that Day ?

Hobbs. Yes, Siry, 1 faw you go into Mr. Farrit
Smith’s 3 and when you camie down the Hill, after
the Gentlerman in the black Cap, you called out o
Mabony and his Company, and bid them to look
fharp.
~Samuel Goodere. Did you fee any body with me
that Day ? I was not at your Houfe that Day.

Hobbs. T did not fay you were ; but as you wus
going to Mr. Farrit Smith’s, 1 heard onc of your
Men fay, there goes our Caprain, or elfe I had net
looked out.

Mahbony. 1 beg leave, my Lord, ro afk him who
it was that the Captain bid Mabony to look fharp
to ? -

Hobbs. The Gentleman with the black Cap.

Mpr. Recorder. Was the Gentleman in the black
Cap, at whofc going by they all rufhed out, the
fame Gentleman whom you had feen before go to
Mr. Farrit Smith’s ¢

Hobbs. Yes, Siry but Mabony gave Half a Crown
for my Reckoning, and as they rufhed out fo hafti-
ly, Iwas afraid they had taken away my Tankard;
for which Reafon I went to look after it, and faw
no more,

(Themas IWilliams fworn.) |

Mr. Pernon. Mr. IVilliams, I think you belonged
to the Ruby at the time when this melancholly
Affarr happened ?

Thomas Williams. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Pernon. W hat Station was you in ?

Thomas Williams. 1 was ordered to walk the
Quarter-deck.

Mr. Perion. Will you give an Account of
what you know in relation to the ill Tteatment
of Sir fobn Dineley Goodere ? tell all you know a-
bout 1t

Thomas IVilliams. 1came up on Sunday the eigh-
teenth Day of Zannary laft for my Commander,

went to his Lodgings, he was not at horne; I was

told there, that he dined that day at Dr. Midd/e-
to’s, and he was juft gone there. T went to Dr.
Middleton’s after him, and he was jult gore from
thence; Ithen returned to his Lodgings, and found
him thyres 1 told him the Barge was waiting for

o his
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tis Honour. He afk’d me if I knew the River,
.nd if 1 knew the Brick-yard at the Lime-kilns ?
1 told him that I kn_cw the Lime-kilus, 'and at laft
f recolleéted that ] did remember the Brick-yard he
meant. That is well cnough, fays he. While [
was there, Mabony came up to him, and the
Captain defired of me to go down ftairs, for he
wanted to fpeak to Mabony 1n private. I went
down ftairs, by and by Mabony came down and
went away 5 then I went up to Captain Goodere a-
gain, when he directed me to get all the Hands to-
vether, and o down into the Barge, and, fays he,
E‘t '+ be landed at the Brick-yard: He asked me
£ T knew the /Vhite Hart in the Colledge-green ¢ 1
oold him I did, and he direfted me to take eight
Men up with me to the White Hart, and let two
remain in the Boat, for I have a Gentleman com-
ing on board with me. I did as I was ordered;
and when 1 came to the I7bite Haxt, I faw AMabo-
1y, and fome of the Prwatlccr’s Men with him
tere ina Room; Idid not like their Company, |
went into the Kitchen, T afked the Landlord to
make me a Pint of Toddy, he afked me whether I
would have it hot or cold, I told him a little warm
he was going about it, but before 1t was made,
Adabsny and the Privatcer's Mcn rufhed out of the
Houfe: I feeine that, followed them, they had
the Gentleman in pofleflion before I came to them,
and were dragging him along. I afked them
what they were at? One cf the Privateer’s Men
told me, if 1 did not hold my tongue, he would
throw me over the Key River, and immediately
Captain Gosdere came there himfelf: The Priva-
s Men afked what they fhould do with him,
1 he dire&ed them to take him on board the
Parge. 1 followed them down the Butts, the
Gentleman cried out Murder, Murder! Mr. Ste-
thew Perry the Anchor-fmith came out of his
Houfe, and afked me what was the matter; I told
im I did not know: Mabsny fard he was 2 Mur-
derer, he had killed a Man on board the Man of
War, and that he had run away, they had carried
him before a Magiftrate, and he was ordered
back to the Man of War to betried by a Court

Martial, - |
Mz, Recorder. Was the Captain within hearing

at the time Mabony {aid thac?

Thomas Williams. He was juft behind.

My, Recorder. Was he within hearing ?

Thowas Williams. He wasy and when they had
brought him into the Barge, Captain Goodere de-
fired to have tlic Cloak put over Sir fobu to keep
him from the Cold, but Sir Fobn faid he did not
want a Cloak, neither would he have it,  The Pni-
vateer’s Men wanted me to put them on the other
fide the Water, butI faid I would not without the
Captain’s Orders.  They asked the Captain, and
he direfted me to do it, and I put them afhore at
the Glafs-houfe, and juft as we came over againit
the Het-3Wells, there was a2 Gentleman ftanding
whom Sir Fobu knew, to whom Sir Fohn cried out,
Sir, do you know Mr. Farrit Smith? But before
he could fpeak any more, the Cloak was thrown
overhim to prevent his crying out, and the Cap-
t2in told me to fteer the Barge on the other fide,
until we got clear of the noife of the People; and
when we was got clear, lic direfted me to iteer the
Boat in the middle, as Toughttodo. Iobeyed hus
Urders.

Mr. Recorder. Who threwthe Cloak over him?
. Tbomas Williams, 'The Captain.  And the Cap-
tain being as near to Sir Fobw as I am to your

307,

Lordthip, Sir Fobn asked the Captain' what he
Was going to do with him? Says the Captain, I
am going to carry you on board ro fave you from
Rum, and from lying rotting in a Goal,

Mr. Vernon. And what Reply did Sir Fobn
make to that?

Thomas IVilliams. He faid, T know betrer things,
I believe you are going to murder me; you may
s well throw me overboard, and murder me here
right, as carry me on board Ship and murder me.
No, fays the Captain, I am not going to do any
fuch thing, but I would have you make your Peace
with God, As I fteered the Boat, I heard all that
pafied.  We brought Sir $obn on board between
feven and eight o’clock, he could hardly o up in-
to the Ship, he being fo benumbed with Cold; he
did goup of his own accord, with the Mens Af-
[iftance.

Mr. Vernon. THow was he treated on board the
Man of War ?

Thowas Williaims. Sir, 1 don’t know how they
treated him after he went on board the Ship, I was
cxcufed from watching that Night, fo I went to
my Hammock ; but after T was got out of my firft
fleep, I heard fome People talking and walking
about backwards and forwards: I was furprized 3
at laft I peeped out of my Hammock, and asked
the Centinel what was o’clock ? he faid, between
Two and Three. And thenI faw Captain Goodere
going cown the Ladder from the Deck towards

the Purfer’s Cabbim, but for what Intention I know
not, I believe he came from his own Cabbin.

Mpr. Recorder. Whereabout 1s the Purfer’s Cab-
bin?

Thomas Williams. The Purfer’s Cabbin is in a
place called the Cock-pit, the lower Steps of the
Ladder 15 juft by the Door of the Purfer’s Cabbin,

My, Recorder. And it was that Ladder you faw
the Captain go down, wasit?

Thomas Williams. Yes, Sir, 1t was.

Mrv. Vernon. Mr. Williams, you have not
told us all the Particulars of. Sir Fobi’s Treat-
ment between the {eizing and carrying him to the
Barge. -
Thomas Williams. One of the Men had hold of
one Arm, and another the other, and a third Per-
fon was behind thoving him along.

Mr. Vernsn, 'Where was Captain Goodere then?

T bomas Williams. He was jult behind lum.,

Mr. Vernon. How near was he to him,

Thomas Williams. Sometimes he was as near to
him as I am to you.

Mr. Recorder. How many were there 1 the
Company, do you think, in the Rope-walk, when
they were carrying Sir Fobn along !

Thomas Williams. There were five of the Priva-
teer’s Men, and Maheny made fix, and there
were nine belonging to the Barge; about fixtcen
in all.

Mr. Recorder. At what diftance was you?

Thomas Williams. At a pretty great diftance; 1
walked juft before them; I faw them take him a-
long in the manner I have faid ;5 I heard Sir Fobu
cry out Murder feveral times as he went, as they
took him along the Rope-walk.

Mr. Recorder. Mr. Goodere, will you ask Wil

lrams any Queftions?

Samue! Goodere. What fide of the Gun-room did

you hiein ?
Thomas Williams. 'The Star-board fide of the

Gun-room.

Samel



808 297. The Trial of Samuel Goodere, Efg;

Samnel Goodere. Why then it was impoflible for
you, as you lay in your Hammock, to fee any bo-
dy go down to the Cock-pit.

Thomas Williams. Not at all, Str; the Gunner’s
Cabbin comes out further than ever was known of
that fort,

Samuel Goodere. Are there any other Cabbins
belides the Purfer’s in the Cock-pit? did you ever
examine them how ftrong they are, and what Par-
titions are there between them ?

Thowmas Williains. don’t know any other Cab-
bin but the Purfer’s in the Cock-pit; the Cooper
lics in the Slop-room.

Sainnc! Goodere. Was you never in the Doctor’s
Cabbin?

Theinas Williams, No, never in my Life,

Sainuel Goodere. Do you know where-about the
Ruby lay, when you brought that Gentleman on
board, where did you apprehend the Ship was ?

Thoiras Iilhams. 1 did not know the Situation
of the Ship, [had no bufinefs to know that; I was
but a Foremaft-man.

(Samucl Triwctt {worn.)

Mr, Feraon. Will you give an Account to Mr,
Recorder and the Jury of what you know relating
to this Bufinels.

Saimel Frivett. On Sunday the cighteenth of Fa-
attary laft 1 was at a Publick Houle in the Rope-
walk, I heard 2 Noife of People cryed Damn ye,
ftand off, or clfe we will knock your Brains out;
] ftepp’d up, and asked what Right they had to
carry a Man along after that manner? I followed
them; therr Anfwer was, it was a Midfhipman
who had commuitted Murder, and they were taking
him down to the Ship to do Ium Juftice: other
People likewife followed enquiring what was the
matter: the Gentleman was behind, and ordered
t iem to make more hafte.

Mr. Vernsn. -Look upon the Prifoncr at the Bar,
Mr. Geo.iere; 1s that the Gentleman that ordered
them to make more hafte ?

Scinuel Trivet?. 1 believe that 1s the Man, my
Lord: On the G.atleman’s ordering them to make
more halte, five or fix of them caught him up in
their Arns, and carried him along, and as they
were got down about the Corner of Mr. Browy’s
Wall, he infifted upon their making more dif-
patch, and then they hurried him as far as Cap-
tain Ofborn’s Dock. By that time his Clothes were
ruffied, and fhoved up to his Arm-pits; they put
him down, and fettled his Clothes, and then I faw
his Face, and knew him to be Sir Fobi Dinzley :
He cried out Murder feveral times, and faid, they
were taking him on board to kill him, he believed.
As they were going with him along, he cried out
to Mrs. Darby, for God’s fake affit me, they are
going to murder me. I told Mrs. Dardy, it was
Sic foon Dinely: She faid, ihe knew him; the
Cloak was then over his Face,  As they got him
further, he called out to a little Girl, to gct fome
bouy to affift him for they were going to murder
him.  They pufhed him along to Mrs, New’s
Hot fe, and made a little Stop there, and then
they brought him to the Water-fide, where was a
Boat ; they put out a Plank with Ledges nailed a-
crofsy he was ordered to go on hoard the Boat;
they got him on board, and put him to {it down in
the Stern-fheet: then he cried out, for God’s fake,
Gentlemen, if any of you know Mr. Farsit Smith
in tt e Coliedpe-green, tell him my-name 1s Sic Fobir
Din ley.  One of the Men put his Cloak and co-
vered hum, and before be could fay any more, that

14 Geo. [1

Gentleman (pointing at the Prifoner Goodere) togk
his Hand and put it on his Mouth, and would ng;
let him fpeak any further, and ordered the Bogr 15
be puthed off, which was done; and the Tjde
making up ftrong, the Boat got alimoft to the otley
fide. I heard that Gentleman (pointing as before)
fay, Have you not given the Rogues of Lawyes
Moncy cnough already ¢ Do you want to give them
more? I will take care that they fhall never have
any more of you ; now I'll take care of you,

My, Recorder. Prifoners, will either of you afk
this Witnels any Queftions?

Samuel Goodere, Noj 1 never faw the Man be.
fore in my Life.

(Thomas Charmbury fworn.)

Thomas Charmbury, On Sunday the cighteenth
of Fannary lalt, between the Hours of four and
five 1n the afterncon, I was on board the Ship
called the Levant, lying in Mr. Thompfon’s Dock,
I heard a Noife coming over the Bridee of t)e
Dock, and I faw a Man 1n a fcarlet Cloak, andj
parcel of People, fome before and fome behing,
puarding of him, and he made a noife, 1 wene
towards them, to fee what was the matter, and ag
Mz Stepben Perry’s Counting-houfe (they refted)
I afked, what was the matter 7 They faid, he had
killed 2 Man on board a Man of War 4 that e
had run away; and they had had him before 2
Magtitrate, and he was ordered on board the King’s
Ship to be carried round to London to take his
Trial. Mr. Perry {on hearing the Noife) came
out and faw him; fays Mr. Perry, Gentlemen,
do you know what you are about? I would not be
in your Coats for a thoufand Pounds, for it is Efy;
Goodere.  They threatened to knock down any
that fhould come ncar; a Fellow, I take himtwo
be Mabony, came up to me, and threatened to
knock me down feveral times. They took and car-
ried him as far as Captain Fames Day’s Lofts and
Warchoufe, where he keeps his Hemp ; and there
they refted him again, and threatened to knock
down any that fhould come near them. Then
fatd Mabony, Damn ye, here comes the Captain,
Immediately I turned about, and faw a Gentleman
with his Cane poifed in one hand, and his Sword
in the other, he had a dark fhag Coat and yellow
Buttons, whom I take to be that Gentleman the
Prifoner at the Bar,  They took up the Mann the
fcarlet Cloak again, and carried him fo far ascom-
ing out from thelower College-green into the Rope-
walk: the Prifoncr Goodere came up to them, and
ordered them to mend their Pace; they took him
up again, and carried him as far as Brown’s Gar-
den, at the lower end of the Rope-walk, as faft as
they could well carry him, where they fetdled his
Clothes, and in the mean while the Prifoner Goeder:
came up to themagain, and ordered them tomend
their Pace. With much difficulty they got hint
between the Gate and Stile, and carried himas far
as the Warchoufe at the Corner of the Glafs-houft,
there they refted and fettled his Clothes again:
Then they took him up and carried him down to
the Lime-kilns, as far as the lower part of the Wall
below Madam New's; and then brought him down
to a Placc oppofite tothe King’s ead, and thenthey
puthim on board a Boat (I take it the Mian of War’s
Barge) having ten Qars, and they handed him m.
After, the Prifoner Gooders went into the Boat af-
ter him, and {et Sir Fobs on the Starboard fide,
and the Prifoner Goodereon the Larboard fide ; then
Sit Yobn cried out, Murder! you Gentlemen that

are on fhore, pray tell Mr. Farrit Smith that my
Name
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Name is Dineley, and before he could fay Goodere,
1e Gentleman took up the Flap of the Cloak,
direw it over the Face of Sir. Fobn, and ftopp’d
his Mouth 3 and, fays he, [ will take care of you,
that you fhall not fpend your Eftate; and ordered
the Barge to be put off : And then he took the Gen-
Jeman’s Cloak from his Shoulders, and puts it on

his own.
M. Recorder.
with the Cloak ?
Mr. Charuibury. That Gentleman the Prifoner

ot the Bar,  The Boat was fo fullﬁ, had fo many
Pcople in it, that they were obliged to row but
with cight Oars : And when they proceeded down
die River, it being about three quarters Ilood,
and the Gentleman continually crying out, they
went out of fight, and I faw no more of them,
| (Mrs Darby fworn.)

Mr. Vernsn. Mrs. Darby, 1 think, you live at
the Liwe-kilns.

Mrs. Darby. Yes, Sir, I do.

Mr. Pernon. What do you know of this tragical
Affair? _ |

Mrs. Dardy. I{aw Sir :“;‘abu Dincley forced along
hetween two Men, he crying out Murder, Murder,
for the Lord’s fake fave me, fave me, for they are
coing to kill me! o

Mr. Perion. Pray what were they daing to m

at that tme? | | |
Mis. Daily. TForcing him along, Sir; one had

him under one Arm, and another under the

other.
M. Vernon. Did you then know him to be Sir

Fobn Dineliy Goodere ?

Mrs. Darby. Yes, Sirs laft Summer we mended
his Chair for him. I knew him very well.

Mr. Pernon. You fay you knew Sir Fobir; pray
did you know this Gentleman? (pointing to Mr.
Goodere)

Mrs. Darby. There were a great many other
Perfons there; they told me that the Captain of
the Man of War was there behind them, which 1
believe to be the Gentleman at the Bar: He was
dreffed in a dark Drabb-coloured Coat, and his
Wailtcoat trimmed with Gold.

My, Vernon, What further did you fee pals ?

Mrs. Dardy. 1faw them hurrying him on board
the Boat, but I did not go any further than over-
againft my own Door; but when they were turn-
ing the Boat, I heard im cry out, but what he
faid I know not.

(William Dupree fworn.)

Mr. Fernor. Give an Account of whatyou know
of this Mateer.

[William Dupree. On Sunday the eighteenth of
Yanuery laft 1 was at the Sign of the King's Head,
upon the right-hand fide of the Red Lion as you go
down to the Hot Well, with a Friend of mine, 2
Man that works with me, drinking a Pint of Ale;
there was a young, Woman, fhe was reading at
the Window.  She faid, the heard a great Qutcry,
we heard the fame, we went out, faw a Company
of Men forcing a Gentleman along; 1 faw Caprain
Goodere the Prifoner at the Bar coming behind
them: when they came down to Scriggins Slip, they
cave out a Report, that the_Gentleman had mur-
dered a Man on board a Man of War, and they
were taking him on board for Juftice. They put
him on board the Yawl, and Caprain Goodere ftood
by whiilt they did it. The Gentleman cried out,
for God’s fake go and acquaint Mr. Jarri? Smith,
for I' am undone, they will murder me. I went

Who v.;as it thatftop’d his Mouth
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into the Houfe again ; the Pedp]e advifed me o’
go 'to Mr. Farrit Smirh, and inform himofit: as
1 came home I called at My, Swith’s, and told -him
what I had feen and heard, and he told me he
would fee about it. | |

Mr. Vernon. I'd-be glad to know whether upon
the Gentleman’s crying out youfaw any thing, and
what, done to him. /

IWilliain Dupree. 1 faw the Captain, the Prifoncy
at the Bar, put his Hand and ftop his Mouth;

M. Vernon, Are you pofitive you faw that?
William Dupree. Yes, T am.

(Theodore Conit, Mafter of the Ship fworn.) -
Mr. Vernon. Will you tell Mr. Recorder and

the Jury what you know concerning the Death of
Sir Fobn Dineley Goodere ?

Theodore Conrt. On the cighteenth of Famuary
laft, bemg Sunday, the Barge went up to fetch
Captain Goodere from Briffol, and about feven of
the clock in the Evening he came on board, and
when he came into the Gangway, fays he, how
do you alldo, Gentlemen? Excufe me, Gentlemen,
from going the nght way to-night, for | have
brought an old mad IFellow on board, and I muft
take care of him. I fawa Gentleman with a black
Cap coming up the Ship’s fide, and his Groans
fhocked me, fo that I could not help him; he
looked much furprized as a Perfon ufed ill: As
foon as he was onboard, he was taken into cuftody,
and carried by the Captain’s Orders down to the
Cock-pit, and put into the Purfer’s Cabbin, and a
Centinel ordered upon him; and I faw him no
more at that time, Next Morning I was told that
the Captain’s Brother was murdered, and that the
Captain had given Charles White and Mabosy
leave to go on fhore.

Mr. Recorder. By whofe Diretion was he put
imto the Purfer’s Cabbin?

Theodore Conrt. The Captain himfelf went down,

and fee them put him 1n,
Mr. Pernon. Whercabout in the Ship is th
Purfer’s Cabbin? | . '
Theodore Court. In the Cock-pit. .
M., Vernon. Was it a Place where Gentlernen
who came on board commonly lay'? |
Theodore Court. No, nobody had laid in it for a
confiderable time. The next Morning the Cooper
met me, and faid, here is fine doings to-night, Mr.
Court ! Why, what is the matter, {faid I? Why,
faid he, about three o’clock this Morning they went
down and murdered Sir Fobu. The Ship was in
an Uproar ; the Cooper faid, if Mr. Perry (the
Licutenant) did not fecure the Captain, he would
write to the Board : We had feveral Confultations
in the Ship about it. The Captain fent for me to
breakfaft with him, I accepted of his Invitation: I
can't fay but he behaved with a very good Name
to all the People on board. About Ten o'clock
Mr. Perry, myfelf, and the other Ofhcers, with the
Cooper, confulted abeut fecuring the Caprain.  Mr.
Pervy caution’d us not to be too hot ; for, faid he,
if we fecure the Captain before we know Sir 7ok
is dead, I Thall be broke, and you too. We fent
for the Carpenter, and defired him to go down and
open the Cabbin-door, the Centinel who {tood there
having faid itwas lock’d; the Carpenter went down,
opened the Cabbin-door, and came up and faid Sir
Yobu was murdered ; and that he lay on his Left-
fide, with his Leg up crooked. I told thern, Gen-
tletien, there is nothing to be done before the Co-
roner comes ; and therefore we muft not touch
him : Whercupon the Deor was ordered to be

faftened -
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fattened up: We then confulted how to take the
Captain, and a Method was agreed on for that
purpofe. And as foon as the Captain was taken,
he declared he was innocent of it, that he knew
not that his Brother was murdered. When the
Coroner came, I faw the Deccafed, and my Heart

aked for him. |
My, Recorder. Who was it put the Centinel up-

on Sir Fobn ¢ |
Theodore Court, The Captain ordered it to be

done.
Mr. Vernon. Is it ufual to place a Centinel at the

Purfer’s Cabbin-Door ?

Theodove Court. No, it 1s not; unlefs therc be
fomebody there under Confinement.

Mr. Vernon. Is there any other Cabbin near the
Purfer’s ?

Theodore Court. Yes, there is the Slop-Room juft
by s there the Cooper and his Wife lay that Night:
there is jult a little Partition of about half-nch Deal,
parting the Slop-Room from the Place where Sir
Yobn lay confined.

Mr. Pernon. Pray, will you tell us whether any,
and what Difcourfe pafled between Mr. Gosdere
and you, about failing ; and when 1t was?

Theodore Conrt. Sir, in the Morning he afked
me, will the Wind ferve to fail? He faid, he had
another prefling Letter from the Lords of the Ad-
miralty to fail as foon as poffible. I told him, that
the Wind was Weft-South-Weft, and that we
could not go out to Sea ; for no Pilot would take
charge of the Ship, I believed.  And as this1s a
Harbour where a Pilot is allowed, I don’t pals for
this Place s otherwife I muft have obferved his
Orders. |

Mr. Vernen. Did he acquaint you how far, or
to what Part, he would have you fail 2

Theodore Court. Yes, he faid, if he got no fur-
ther than the Molines, he did not care ; and afked
me, if it was fafe riding there. 1 told him, it was
not ; for it was foul Ground for fuch a Ship as
ours.

My, Recorder. N, Goodere, will you afk this
Witnefs any Queftions ?

Samuel Goodere. What Cabbins are there in the
Cock-pit ?

Theedore Court. 1 know no Cabbins there but
the Purfer’s Cabbin and the Slop-Room, &,

Mr. Vernon. Call Mr. Williams.

(William Williains Iworn.)

Mr. Ve non. Mr. IWilliams, have you any Watch
in your poficflion belonging to Mr. Goodere.

1Villiain Williams. 1 have a Watch i my Pol-

fefTion. |
Mr. Fernon. Pleale to produce it, and let us

know how you came by 1t. |
Willian 17illiams, 1 had it from a Vault in Back-

fireel,

Mr., Vernoi, How came 1t to be fearched for
there ? |

William IWillizams. "The Night this thing was un-
der Fxamination, I was at the Council-Houfe, and
Culliford who keeps the Brockware Boat on the
Back, was there under Examination; he then re-
ported that there was a Watch and {fome” Money
feft in his Foufe: Upon which a Perfon was fent
down, and Culliford’s Wife at firlt denied the
‘Watch, but not the Money ; but at laft, after clofe
Examination, fhe confefled that the had thrown
the Watch into the Vauit. Upon which, by the
Order of Mr." Alderman Day, I, with a Mafon,
opened the Vault 3 where, on Scarch, I found the

River: and the Situation of the Ship, as it lay
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Watch, and took it out. Flere is the Watch; byt
whofe it 1s, I know not.

Mr. Vernon. Now I defire that Warch may be
fhewn to Mr. Court. [T'he Wartch is delivered to
Mr. Court.]

- Mr. Vernon. Now you have Jooked upon the
Watch, tell us it you can, whofe it was,

Theodore Conrt. 1 can’t fwear pofitively to it .
but I believe it was the Caprain’s Watch, he had
fuch a one.

Mr. Pernon. Did Mr. Goodere ule to carry a

Gold Watch about hin?

Theodore Conrt. The Captain did not ufually
wear a2 Gold Wartchs but T have feen fuch a Warch
as this 15, hanging up In the Captain’s Cabbin, [
believe 1t to be the fame,

Mr. Recorder. Mr. Court, you was afked by
Mr. Goodere, how many Cabbins there are in the
Cock-pit ?

Theodore Cont. There is the Steward’s Room,
the Purler’s Cabbin, and the Slop-Room.

Sanel Goodere, Where 1s the Steward’s Room?

Theodore Court. That 15 the Place where the
Centinel ftands ; and there is a Place on the other
Side where the Surgeon lies.

Samuel Goodere. What Perfons were in that
Place that Night, do you know ?

Theodore Conrt. The Surgeon, I fuppofe.

Sainuel Goodere. W hat other Perfons were in any
other of the Cabbing that Night ?

Toeodore Court. The Cooper and his Wife,

Samuc! Goodcre. Has the Cooper a Wife ?

Theodore Court. I believe {o.

Sanmel Goodere, 1How long before the nineteentls
of Fanuary did you new-moor the Ship 2

Theodore Court, Thurfday the fifteenth of Ya-
nuary.

Saiiue! Goodere. Jow were the Bearings then?

Theodore Conrt, (Looking on his Journal) Pof-
fet-Point Welt and by South, Denny-Iland North-
welt and by Weft, diftant by Computation about
four Miles: And the Paint to the Weftward of
the Hole's Mouth South-South-Iaft.

Mr. Recorder. Were thofe the Bearings on the
Eighteenth too?

Theodore Conrt. I know no Difference it is faid
here, ditto 18th : if there had been any Variation,
I fhould have taken notice of it.

Mr. Vernon. In what Parc of the River did the
Ship lie when Sir Jobn was murdered ?

Theodore Conrt. She lay in King-Road.

Samel Goodere. Do you know the Deany ?

Theodore Court. Yes, 1 do.

Samue! Goodere. Suppofe there was a ftrait Line
drawn from the South Corner of that Ifland to the
North part of the Water of Avsn, would the Ship
Ruby have been on the Eaft or Weft part of that
Line?

Theodore Conrt. As to that I am nota Judge,
unlefs I faw a {trait Line drawn,

Mr. Recorder. Mr. Conrt, how long did the
Ship continue in this Mooring?

Theodoire Court, T new moor’d the Ship the Sur-
day following. |

Samue! Goodere. Did the Wind then blow Eafterly
or Wefterly *

Theodore Conrt. The Wind blew hard Wefterly
the Sunday.

Samuel Goodere. As to the Diftance from the
Denny, 1 believe, you are right enough; but I have
a Gentleman here who hath taken a Survey of the

Stinte
day
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day the cightcsnth of Faruary, was in che River

e, VETY far Faltward of the Water of

Avon.
Mr. Perion. Mr. Recorder, by Mr. Geodore's

prﬂfﬁf}_t 1Ij,.nquirim;,,_ th {utmfr,m be p:'.*.ttirlg_his
-nd his Fellow-Prifoner’s Defence on the Points
of the Compafs; 1 !wpc he has fome Dbetter
Point to go on: for 1f not, thefe [ doubr will
fand him in very little ftead. It appears in
Proof, that the Ship was ftationed in Kiig-roed,
when this Murder was committed : Now K-
yoad, We all l~:now,_ 11:_13 been all ;11?115 rcp‘uu:d
and allowed to be within the local Limits of the
Citv and County of Briffel; and the City Dro-
cefs runs thither, which fhews it to be within
the Franchife of the City ; and the Sherifis of
Briftel do there conftantly execute Wiits and
other Procels from above, which fhews it to be
within their Buliwick as a County, whofe Bounds
-nd Circuit are beft afcertammed and pointed out
by Reputation and confcnmncous‘Ui.lg::, x_vhgch
ftand as perpetual Monuments of their Limits,
Jrer other Marks are chizced or obfcurdd by
Time. *

Mr. Shephard. T don’t at all queflion but this
City has great Powers, and s Lunis are un-
doubredly fet forth by Charter,

Mr. Ferzsir, 1fhould bz very {orry to find the
TuriddiGtion of a City (whofe Rights are dear to
e 18 My Own) (haken Dy a Side-wind, and hope
4 Attempe of this nature wiil not be fuftered.

(Duncan Buchenoi fvorn.)

nr. 7irisin. T ehink vou was one of the Com-
rany that was at the J/720iec-Herz upon Tinjuily the
wiellih of Fannaiy laft

Diecn Bechanziz, Yes, Sir,

Mr, Perncn. Wikl you give AAccount by whofe
Dircltions you came up there °

Dancan Bucbauan. Cn Tueflsy the turteenth
Day of Fanzary Iaft the Dot and Barge were or-
dered up to B fa! 3 bat upon what account, I
knew not. I was orcercd wo go to the Iise-
Hart to attend the Captain, and there was /a-
Fay and the Privateer’s Men drinking hot Flip.,
[ koew nothing of whatthey were upon, I lawa
Gentleman come out of DMr. Siuitd's, T fuppele
itwas Sir Fobn Dincl:y Geedeie 5 he mounted Dis
Horfe, and had Piitols before Lim, and his Sei-
vant followed Limy with Pifiols alfo. Then fome
of the Mea ran out; and Captain Gesdere went
out after them, and ordercd them to follow the
Gentleman, I flaid chere uil the Captain came
back againy and I know nothing more of what
was faid or done then,

Mr. Verncie, Will you give an Account what
happened on the Suinday following ?

Duncar Buchean, On Sunasy the eighteenth
Day of Faunnary about feven o’clock in the Even-
ing the Barge came along-fide the Ship with the
Gentleman in it, T flood in the Gang-way to re-
ceive him 3 when he came up, I heard him to
make a moan, and the Capwin faid I have
brought a Madman on board, bring him along,
[ will bring him to his Senfes by and by. 1 faw
them take him along the Ging-way 3 you muft
ot mind what he fays, faid the Captain; and he
wis ordered down to the Purler’s Cabbin 5 I was
ordered Centinel there.  About twelve o’clock
the Captain fent for me to come up to him, and
I laid down my Sword and went up, and Me-

rciiy was there with him ; and there was a Bottle
. "-.“' ?- . ) -
» 05, VI,

-coming down by and by
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of Rum and a Glafs before them: the Captain
afked me to drink a Dram, I thanked him and
drank, He afked me how his Brother was ? I
told him he groaned a little 5 fays the Captain,
I know the Reafon of that, he is wer, and I am
_ to fhift him with dry
Stockings : fo Tleft the Captain and Makouy to-
aether,  Some time after the Captain came down
to me, as I wasat my Poft at the Purfer’s Cab-
bin 3 he afked if his Brother made a noile? I
told him no: upon which the Captain liftened a
htele time at the Door, and then faid, give me
the Sword, asd do you walk upon deck ;
for I want to fpeak to my Brother in private,
Soon after this, Aabeny went down, and very
foon atter Mabouy was down, I heard a great
flrugaling in the Cabbin, and the Gentleman cry
out Murder! I then thought the Gentleman had
heen 1 one of his inad IFits 3 but now [ fuppofcy
they were then flrangling him. AsT was walking
toand lro 1n the Gun-Room, I looked down, and
faw the Captain take the Candle out of the Laa-
thorn, which was banging up there, and he gaye
the Candle into the Cabbin. o

Alr. Record.r. Where was Mr. Geodore when
you heard the Cry of Murder ? e

Duncan Buckauan, In the Cock-pit by the Par-
fer’s Cabbin-Door, with the Sword in his Hand,

Mr. Reeorder. What ume of the Night was
this? |

mpeay RBuchanan. Between two and three
o'clociiy 1 lighted a Candle at the Lanthorn in
the Gun-Rooin, and was going down 1o the
Caprain with 1ty as fuppoling him to be without
Lizhts and as T was gomyz down with it, the
Capzain held ap his Sword, waved 1t, and faid,
oo back and ftay where you are,

A, Recorder. You fard, that Sie Fobi Dincley
cricd out Murder! was that before you offered
the Candle 1o the Captrain?

D:ican Buchanan, Yes, Siry 1t was before,

A, Recorder. Tlow long?

Duncan Bucharain. Abouta Quarter of an Hou .

M. Recorder. How long did the Cry of vlur-
der continue ?

Dancai Buchayan, About three or four Mi-
nutes : Soon after the Captain had ordered me to
keep back, he called for a Candle, and I carried
once down, and he gave me the Sword, and bid
me ftand upon my Poft; and, faid he, if my
Brother makes any more noife, Jet him alone
and fend for me 5 and he locked the Purfer’s
Cabbin-Door, and took the Key away with him:
And in the Morning the Dottor’s Mate, the
CooperandI confulted together about ity and I was
willing to know, if Sir Jebn was dead, or not?
And when we peeped into theCabbin, wefaw him
Jying in a very odd fort of a Pofture, with his
IHat over his Face, and one of his Legs lay
crooked : upo nwhich, we concluded he was dead.

My, Recordei. How long was you off your
Poft {rom firft to laft?

Duncan Buchaizan, I can’t tell exactly.

My, Recorder. Recolleét as well as you can.

Duncan Buchaian. About three quarters ot an
Hour,

My, Recorder. And could you fee who was at
the Purfer’s Cabbin-Door all that time ?

Duncan Buchanan. Yes, Stry 1 faw the Captain
ftand at the foot of the Ladder at the Door, with
a drawn Sword, irom the time I went up-to the

7 T | time
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time I came down again; he locked the Door,

and carried the Key away with him.

Mr, Vernon. Pray, were there any Bolts on the
Purfer’s Cabbin-Door ¢

Duncan Buchanan. Yes, there were Bolts on the
Door 3 they were put on foon after Sir Fobu came
on board: Sir Fobr was in thac Cabbin when
they were put on.

Mr. Vernon. You fay you heard a Noife and Qut-
cry of Murder, how far was you from the Cabbin-
Door when you heard that Cry of Murder ?

Duncan Buchanan, I was walking to and fro
the Gun-room.

Mr, Pernon. How far is that from the Purfer’s
Cabbin-Door?

Duncan Buchanan, As far as I am from you.
Mr. Pernon. Whom did you fee go 1nto the

Purler’s Cabbin to Sie Fobn ¢

Duncar Buchanan, I faw Aaboiy go in there,
. Mr. Vernon. Did you fee any other Perfon go
in belides Mabany ¢

Duncan Buchanan, No, I didnot 5 I faw MVa-
bony go in juft before the Cry of Murder, but no

other Perfon,
Mr. Vernon. Do you know any thing about fe-

curing the Captain ¢

Duncan Buchanan. Yes, T will tell you what
happened then, We went and {ecured him. As
{foon as he was laid hold of, he cried out, Hey!
hey ! what have 1 done ? We told him his Bro-
ther was mutrdered, and that he had fome Con-
cern in it.  He faid, what 1f the Villains have
murdered my Brother, can I help ic? T know
nothing of it

Samuel Goodere. Did you fee me 1n the Cabbin
at all 2

Duncan Buchanan, No, Sir, I don’t fay you was

in the Cabbin
e Recorder. Mr. Gooderey, the Witnefs docs

not fay he faw you in the Cabbin, but at the
Door, and with a Sword in your Hand, and that
you handed in a Light after the Cry of Murder

was Over.
Samuel Gooder 1 could not have been in the

Cabbin without Buchanai’s {eemng me go 1n, be-
caule he flood at the Bulk-head of the Gun-

room.
My, Recorder. Mabouy, will you afk this Wit-

nefs any Queftions ?

Matihew Mabouy, Are you certain that T was
in the Cabbin when you heard the Groans ?

Duircan Buchanan. I am politive you was there
in the Purfer’s Cabbin, when I heard the Murder
cried out.

(Daniel TWeller {worn.)

Mr., Pernon. 1 think you are the Carpenter be-
longing to the Rudy Man of War,

Dauiel Weller. Yes, Sir, I am.

Mr. Fernon, Givean Account to Mr. Recorder
and the Jury of what you know relating tothis
Bulinefs.

Daniel Weller. The cighteenth of  Fannary
jaft, about f{even o'clock in the Ewvening, the
Captain came on board in the Barge; as T at-
tended him, [ obferved he feemed in a pleafant
Humour, he came upon the Deck at once, and
{aid he had brought a poor crazy Man on board,
who had been the Ruin of himfelf and IFamily,
and that he had now brought him on boardto
take care of bim: He took him down to the
Cock- pit, and having been there a litcle while,
one of my People came and afked for fome Bolts;

2
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I afked, what for? He told me, it was ¢p .
on the outfide of the Purfer's L'abhin-donr{;r
bolt the crazy Gentleman in. I gave him , B:;lt{f
after he had nailed 1t on, he camie and wapyg
anothcr ¢ 1 had another, gave it to him, and
went down to fee the Bolts put on. i Yl
cried out, What are you doing, nuiling the Duu?—
up? Ianfwered, Noo 1 ordered the Dogy to
be opened, to turn the Points of the Nails, 7.
Door being opened, Sir Yobu aiked whether rh;
Carpenter was there ? I told him T was the My,
The Centinel told me no-body muflt 20 1N there
however, I went in, while they turned the Pojgs
of the Nails,  Sir Febn bid me fit down, 4ng
afked me, what does my Brother mean by brine.
ing me on board in this manner, to murder mgg;-
No, Sir, fays I, Thope not, but to take care of
you, He afked me, if his Brother told me thy
he was nuad 7 I faw no more of him till pey
Morning.

Mr. Zernon. And what did you fke then ?

Dantel Weller. Next Morning the Licutenyne
fznt me down to fee 1t Sir Fobr was dead, ]
went down, and afked the Centined for the Kev .
he told me the Caprain had been chere in fh::
Night, and kad taken away the Key in his Pockir,

“Tbroke open the Cabbin-Door, and Sir Febi was

Iying on one fide dead, with his Right Leg hilf
up bent, his Flat was over lus Face, with Bleoy
befpattered about his Mouth and Nofe, [ won
directly up, and told the Licutenant of it.

Ar. Recorder. By whole Orders did you pi
the Doles on the Door ?

Daizel [Feller, One of my People came o me
for Bolts, and told me he was ordered by (s
Captain to put the Bolts on 3 and none of theny
cver came for any thing to be done, without 1
Order of an Officer.

(Edward Fones {worn.)

Mr. Pernon. Nr. fores, 1 think you are the
Cooper of the Ship Ruby,

Edward Jores. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Fernon. Was you on board upon Suide
the eighteenth of Fanueiy laft ?

Ldward Fenes, Yes, Sir, I was.

Mr. Vernon, In what Cabbin did you lie thas
Night ?

Idward Fones. T had no Cabbin, but I made
bold to lie 1n the Slop-Room that Night, having
my Wife on board.

Mr. Pernon. Pray what 1s that you call the
Slop-Room ¢

Ldward Fones, Tt 1s like a Cabbin,

Mr. Vernon. FHlow near s the Slop-Room to
the Purfer’s Cabbin ?

Edward Foucs, Nothing but a thin Deal-LPar-
tition parts it from the Purfer’s Cabbin.

Mr. Zernon. Will you relate to Mr. Recorder
and the Jury, what you know about the Murder
of Mr. Geodere®s Brother : Tell the whole you
know concerning It,

Edward Fones.  About IWednefday or Thur oy
before this happened, the Captain faid to mie,
Cooper, get this Purfer’s Cabbin cleaned out, for
he faid he expected a Gentleman fhortly to come
on board. I clean’d it out; and on Sunday
Evening the Gentleman came on board, when
the People on Deck cried, Cooper, fhew a Light.
I brought a Light, {iw the Caprain going down
the Cockpit Ladder, the Gentleman was halled
down ; he complained of a Pain in his Thigh

by their haliitng him on board, The Capram
afked
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{:ed him if he would have a Dram? he fiid
nos for he had drank rothing but Water for
ewo Years. The Captain ordered Mabony a
Dram, he drank 1t: He alfo ordered one Fack
7ce to put two Bolts on the Purfer’s Cabbin.
Door. ‘The Gentleman walked to and fro the
Purier’s Cabbin while they were nailing the Bolts
on. IHe wanted to {peak with one ot the Offi-
cers. The Carpenter told him he was the Car-
penzer,  Says the Gentleman, Do you underftand
whar 11y Brother Sam. 1s going to do with me ?
and faid, his Brother had brought him on board
o murder him that Night. The Carpenter faid
e hoped not, but what was done was for his
Good. The Captain {aid, they muft not mind
what his Brother faid, for he had been mad
for a Tweivemonth paft.  And the Captain
went up again, and went into the Doctor’s Room,
] went O B.fd ilbUUt ﬂigllt O,CIUCI{. SDI]].',: tiu]ﬁ
about cleven of the clock at Night 1 heard the
Gentleman knock, and faid, he wanted to cafe
himfelf 3 to which the Centinel gave no manner
of heed,  Is itnot a fhame, fud he, to keepa
Gentlemen in after this manner 2 At laft fome
other Perfon {poke to the Centinel, and fays,
why don’t you go up and acquaint the Captain
of i, that the Gentleman may eafe himfelf ?
Soon after Macony comzs down with a Bucke,
for the Gentleman to eafe himfelf,  Adabony fac
down in the Cabbin, and he and the Gentleman
had a great deal of Difcourfe together : The Gen-
denan 1aid he had been at the Eaff-Indies, and told
what he had got for his Ment 5 and AMabony faid,
fome by good Friends. I heard the Gentleman,
after Adabony was gone, pray to God to be his
Comforter under his AffliCtions. He faid to
himielf, he knew that he was going to be mur-
dered, and prayed that it might come to light
by or.e means or another.  Itook no notice of it,
becaufe I thought hima crazy Man,  T{lept alic-
tie, and about two or three o’clock my Mife
waked me. She faid, Dor’t you hear the Noife
that is made by the Gentleman ¢ [ believe they are
kiilling him. I then heard him kick, and cry
out, Here i1s twenty Guineas, take-it; don’
murder me; mult I die! mult Idie! O my Life!
and gave feveral Kecks with his Throar, and
then he was fhill. I got up 1 my Bed upon my
Knees, Ifawa Light glimmering in at the Crack,
and faw that fame Man Makbony with a Candle in
his Hand, The Gentleman was Iying on one
ide. Charles White was there, and he put out
his Hand to pull the Gentleman upright. 1 heard
Mekoiry cry our, Damn ye, let us get his Warch
out; but White faid he could not get at 1. 1
could not fee his Pockets. White laid hold -of
him, went to tumbling him up to get out his
Money, unbutton’d his Breeches to get our his
Watch 3 Ifaw him fay hold of the Chain 3 7¥bite
gave Mabony the Watch, who put it in his Pociet ;
and }7bite put his Hand into onc of the Gentle-
man’s Pockets, and carfed that there was nothing
but Silver: But he put his Hand in the other
Poclet, and there he found Gold, Fhite was
going to give Mabozy the Gold : Damn ye, fays
Maboiy, keep it ull by and by,

M. Recorder. In what Pofture did Sir Foba
lie atthat time ?

Edward Yones, He lay 1n a very unealy man-
ner, with one Leg up 3 and when they moved
him, he ftill remained fo ; which gave mea Suf-
picion that he was dead,  F/hbite put *his Hand

Voir. VL

813

in another Pocker, took out nothing but a Piece
of Paper, was going to read it ; Damn ye, faid
Mahony, don’c ftand to read it. I faw a Perfon’s
Hand on the Throat of this Gentleman, and
heard the Perfon fay, *tis done, and well done.

M. Recorder. Was that a third Perfon’s Hand,
or the Hand of Aubony or Ibite ?

LEdward Fones. 1 cannot fay whether it was a
third Perfon’s [Hand or not. I faw but two
Perfons 1n the Cabbin. I did not fee the Perfon,
for it was done in a Moment. I can’t fwear I
faw any more than two Perfons in the Cabbin.

Mr. Recorder, Did you take notice of the
Hand that was laid on Sir Feba’s Throat ?

Eiward Fones, 1did.

My, Recorder. Did 'it appear to you iike the
Hand of a common Sailor ?

Lidwaird Fones. Wo s it feemed whiter,

Mr. Peirnon. You have feen two Hands held
up at the Bar, 1would alk you to which of them
it was moft like in colour ?

Ldward Fones. 1 have often feen Mabony’s and
White’s Hands, and 1 thought the Hand was
whiter than either of theirs 5 and I think it was
neither of their Flands by the Colour of i,

Air. Recordzir. Was Sir Jobn on the Floor, or
on the Bed ?

Edward Fenes. Onthe Bed 5 but there was no
Sheets: It was a Flock-bed, and nobody had
lain there a great while,

Mr. Vernor. How long did the Cries and
Noife which you heard continue ¢

Lidizard Fones. Not a great while 3 he cried
like a Perfon going out of the World, very low.
At my hearing 1t I would have got out in the
mean time, but my Wife defired me net to go,
for the was afraid there was fomebody at the Door
that would kill me.

Mr. Vernon. What more do you know con-
cerning this Matter, or of Makony and I7bite’s
betng afterwards put on fhore ?

Idward Yones. 1 heard fome talking that the
Yaul was to go to fhore about Four of the Clock
in the Morning, and fome of us were called up,
and I importuned my Wife 1o et me goout. I
catled, and afked who is Centinel ? Duncan
Buchanan anfwered, leis L On, faysI, 1sit
you? I then thought myfclt fate. I jumpt our
in my Shirt, went o him, fays I, there have
been a devilith Noife To-night 1n the Cabbin,
Duncen, do you know any thing of the Matter?
they have certainly killed the Gentemun, whae
fhall us do? 1 went to the Cabbin Door where
the Doltor’s Mate lodged, atked him it he had
heard any thing To-night? I heard a great Noife,
faid he, I believe, faid I, they have killed that
Gentleman, He {aid, he believed {o too. 1
drawed afide the Scuttle that looked mto the
Purfer’s Cabbin from the Steward’s Room, and
cried, Sir, if you are alive fpeak. He did not
Ipeak, Itook along Stick, and endeavoured to
move him, but found he wasdead. [ told the
Duoétor’s Mate, that 1 thought he was the proper
Perfon to relate the Matter to the Officer, but he
did not care to do it then. [f you will not, I
will, faid I. I went up to the Lieutenant, and
defired hin to come out of his Cabbin to me,
What is the Matter ? faid he. 1 told him I be-
lieved there had been Murder committed 1n the
Cock-pit upon the Gentleman who was brought
on board laft Night. Oh! don’c fay {o, faysthe
Licutenant,  In that Interim, whilt we were

7 T 2 talking
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talking about it, Mr. Marfh the Midfhipman

came, and faid, thac there was an Order to carry
IWhite and Mabony oo fhore. T then fwore they
fhould not go on fhore, for there was Murder
committed. The Licutenant faid, Pray beealy,
it can’t be fo 3 I don’t believe the Capeain would
do any fuch thing.  That Gentleman there, Mr.
Maifh, went to afk the Captain, 1f Mabony and
IWhite muft be put on fhore? And Mr. Mar/h
returned again, and {aid, that the Captam fuid
they fhould. I then faid, 1t 1s certainly true
that the Gentleman s murdered between them.
I did not {ce Adabony and I/bite that Morning,
becaufe they were put on fhore. I told the Licu-
tenant, that if he would not take care of the
Matter, I would write up to the Admivaley, and
to the Mayorof Briffal. 'T'he Lieutenant wanted
to cet the Captain to drink a G[nﬁa of V\"'inu . the
Captain would not come out of his Cabbin: Then
the Lieutenant went in Arft, I {ollowed him. I
told the Captain that my Chelt had been broke
open, and Idefired Juftice might be done. Then
I feized him, and feveral others came to my

Afliftance.
My, Recerder. Mr, Geoderzy, do you afk Mr,

Foues any Quettions ?

Samucl Gocdere, Do you know whether the
Midthipman was {entaway on the King’s Bufinefs
or ¢lle only to put thofe twe Men on fhore?

Ldward Fones. Tkoow not 5 you was the Cup-
tain of the Ship.

Adr. Reeorder. Mabeny, will you afk this Wit-
nefs any Queltions ?

Mebouy, Did you fee me lay Hands on the
Gentleman ?

Edward Fones. YesIdid,asThavealready related.

(Margaret Fones fworn,)

Mr, Feizen. Mrs. Jones, pray acquaint Mr. Re-
corder and the Jury what yeuknowabout the Mur-
der of Siv Feki: Dineley Gooderey,  (the Gentleman
ordered by Mr. Gocdere into the Purfer’s Cabbin.)

Margciet Foncs, About feven o’clock in the
vening, the e’ “centh of lalt Fennary, the
Caprain (having been on fhore) came on board,
and came down into the Cock-pit, and afked if
the Cabbin was clean ? My Husband anfwered,
Yes. On which the Caprain gave Orders to
bring down the Gentleman ; and the Caprain faid
to the Doétor, Docor, 1 have got an old mad
Fellow here, you mult doctor him up as well as
you can. They brought the Gentleman into
the Cabbin, the Captain afked him how he did
now ! The Gentleman comolained that he had
a great Pain 1o his Thigh,  he was hurted by the
Mens halling him as they had done.  The Cap-
tain afked him it he would drink a Dram of
Rum ? Heanfwered, Noj; for he faid he had
drank nothing but Water for two Years paft.
The Captain gave a Dram to {everal Perfons
there 3 and he gave Orders for {ome Sheets to
be brought s and he faid to Mabony, As his Clothes
are wer, do you pull them off : And the Gen-
tleman faid to Mahony, Don’t ftrip me, Fellow,
antil I am dead.  The Gentleman faid, Brother
Sem. what do you mterd to do with me? The
Captain told him, that he brought him there to
fave him irom rotting in a Goal,  About ten
o’clock Mabony was left there; the Gentleman
defired him to go; but Mabeay faid, I have Or-
ders to abide here to take care of you. The
Gentleman faid to Mabeuy, 1 can abide by my
elf. Before the Captain wentaway, he bid Ma-

bony to fee if his Brother had any Knife aboy
him. The Gentleman gave up his Knifeto 217;.
hony, deflired him to care of it, for it was hig
Son’s Knife, The Gentleman afked about the
Knife feveral times in the Night,  About twelve
o’clock I went tofleep; about two o’clock | 4.
waked again : T heard the Gentleman ik o
Mabony, but Makony adviled the Gentleman
go to {leep, He faid, I cannot fleep. They talk.
ed togethera great while.  Aabony faid; 1 amg
go on fhore in the morning, and it you have any
Letters to {end to Briftol, 1 will carry them
for you, I heard fomebody fay to the G-
tleman, You muft lie ftill, and not {peak a Word
for your Life. Some Minutes after I heard 3
great Struzgling ;s who it was, I don’t kiow,
The Gentlemen cried out, Murder, help tur
God’s fake!and made feveral Kecks in his Throae
as though fomebody was fifling him. I fhook
my Huiband, told him that fomebody was ttitding
the Gentleman, T heard two People in the Cib-
bin whifpering 5 I don’t kiniow who they were,
The Gentleman cried out Murd-r again, el
for God’s fake ! Hle faid, I have twenty Guincg
in my Pocker, here take ity muoft Ldie! O my
Late ! And juft about that time,  before he was
dead, fomebody trom the Outlide offered to come
into the Cabbin : But I heard one of the Perfons
on the Inlide fay, Keep out, you Negro; and
then a great Norle was made, [ thoughr the Cib-
bin would have been beat down,  Some few M.
nutes atter the Gentleman had done ftruggling,
a Candle was broughr ; 1 {foon got up and 1wuked
througis he Crevice : I law a Man, who [ o
iove 10 be 7 hite, wke the Gentleman by e
Coat, aud pulled him upright. I faw Aladony
witha Candten his Hand 3 [ obferved che otlier
to put his Hand in the Gentleman’s Pocket. Oue
of them lad, Damn ye, pull out his Watch.
Then I faw the Perfon take hold of the Warch-
{tring and pull 1t oue, and he faid to che othir,
Here s, take ity and puticinto thy Pocket. Then
one of them put his Hand in another Pocke,
and took icout, fud, here’s noching but Stlver
and then he fearched another Pocker, and f2id,
here 1t 155 and pulled out a Green Purle @ Soon
after thar, the Door was unboleed, [ heard 2
Perfon fay, Where fthall I run? who I believe
was Mekbony 5 and the other, Charles White, faid,
Follow me, Boy.  And they went to go upon
Deck through the Hatch-hole, which is an un-
common way : And thatisall I know.

My, Kecorder, Mr. Goodere and  Mabeny, do
cither of you afk this Witnefsany Queftions?

Samurl Geodere. No.

Maitheww Mabony, No.

(Faiies Dudgeon fworn.)

Mr. 7 eruon. Mr, Dudgeon, 1 think you are the
Surgeon’s Mate belonging to the Ruby ?

Fames Dudgeon, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Vernon. Give Mr. Recorder and the Jury
an account what you know relating to this M-
rer.

Faines Dudgeon. I am very forry that 1 (houid
come on this Occafion againft Captain Goslire,
becaufe he ever behaved towards me in a genteel
manner.. The Week before this happened, I was
told by one of the Ofhcers, thac che Captain was
coing to bring his Brether on board ; and on
Sunday the eighteenth of Famuary, about the dull:
of the LEvening the Barge came down to the Shiy.
{ was at that e wwring -the Quarter-deck -

{ome
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fome of our People feemg the Barge a coming,
they faid, our Captin is coming on board with
his Brother fure enough 5 but inftead of coming;
up the Quarter-deck, the Captain went down
upon the Main-deck, and I fhill kept walking
on the Quarter-deck, expecting to fee the Gen-
eleman when he went into the Great Cabbin 3 but
I afterwards found that he was ordered down to
the Cock-pit. Soon after, I went down there
myfelf; and the Captain being there, faid, Doc-
tor, 1 have brought a Madman to you, I don’t
know what we fhall do with him, but we muft
make the beflt of him that we can; and Mabow
came down likewife: The Captain fent his Stew-
ard for a Bottle of Rum, Mabony had a dram of
it. The Captain afked Sir Fobn, if he would
have one? Sir Fobn replied, no; for, faid he,
I have not drank any thing of that nature for two
Years paft : he groaned feveral times. There
was then one Cole at the Foot of the Ladder, two
whom alfo the Captain gave a Dram: then there
was a Centinel put upon the Cabbin-door ; but
Cole afked the Captain if he mightgo in, and the
Captain faid he might.  The old Gentleman made
2 noile as the Captain went up the Ladder 3 the
Captain told him, we have now brought you on
board, and will take care you fhall want tor no-
thing, After the Captain was gone, Cole want-
ed to go in, but the Centinel would not let him ;
telling him, that his Orders were to let nonein
but Adaheny : however Cole went up, and got
Jeave of the Captain to go in, and he did go in,
Soon after this, the Captain came down again to
the Cock-pit, and came into my Place, and fat
down 3 and after talking of things promifcuoufly,
he faid, he believed it would be proper for me
to go and feel his Brother’s Pulfe 5 or elfe, Doc-
tor, he faid, do you chufe to leave it alone till
To-morrow Morning ? T made an{wer, that To-
norrow Morning micht be the beft time;  be-
caufe the Gentleman may be much confuled, by
being broughtdown on the Water.  Comie, faid
he, let us go in now ; for I believe, it will beas
well.  If you pleafe, Sir, faid I, Iwill; foche
Centinel opened the Door, and we both went in.
Immediately after, the Captain went out agatn,
and forthwith the Door was fhutupon me ; which
very much furprifed me, to think that the Cap-
tain thould leave me with a Madman, and I ob-
ferved the Captain to peep through : Ithen afked
the Gentleman what he moftly complain’d of,
and fele his Pulfe ; he then made fome Groans,
and told me, that he had gora great cold laft
Weekat Bash, and that he felt a fevere Pain inhis
Head. [ wasgoing toafk him fome more Quel-
tions, but the Caprain called me, and faid, Don’t
afk himary more queftions, but only feel his Pulfe.
Thenthe Centinelopenedthe Door,and I came our,
and the Captain and Iwent into my Flace again,
Well,Doltor, faid he, how doyou find his Pule ¢
Why, Sir, faid I, Lis Pulle are very regular.
Why, faid he, I believe he was pretty much hur-
ried upon the Water.  Then the Captain went
up the Ladder, and a lictle while after he came
down again; there were two Midfhipmen with
me in my Place, and when the Captain came in,
they went to go out, but he defired one ot them
to ftay, for he had fomething 1o fay to him, be-
caufe he was to go up for Letters in the Morning;:
fo we fat down, and talked of various things ;
but I informed the Captain, that the oid Gentle-
man have had hard Lodging Tg-night,  Why,

813
faid he, I would put another Bed in there, and
have given him clean Sheets, but he would not
hear any thing of this kind, Then faid he to
me, Dottor, I believe it will not be amifs to
take an Inventory of every thing he has about
him, for fear it fhould be reported that he is
robbed, I replied, Sir, it may not be amifs.
By and by Cole came tumbling down the Ladder,
the Midthip-man opened the Curtain to fee who
1t was 5 Captain, faid he, that is Coles and I
then told that Cole had been drunk a great Pare
of that Day. Soon after that the Captain opens
the Curtain, and fees Makony ftand by the Centry.
Mabony faid he, I thought you had been about the
thing which [fent you to do 3 which, I take to be
getting the Money out of the Gentleman’s Poc-
ket. No, Sir, faid he, I chufeto doit after
heisafleep.  Very well, faid the Captain, Then
the Captain {poke to the Midfhip-man, and faid,
Mr, Marfb, you are to go up for Letters to-mor-
row, and if any one takes notice of what was
done to-day, you may tell the People that it is
my Brother, and he is very much difordered in
his Brains, and I have got him on board in hopes
of getting Relief for him. Sometimes, Do&or,
fays he, he can talk as well as you or I'; butat
other titnes, he isvery much out of order. About
eight o’clock T was for going to bed, but did not
il an Hour and a halt after 5 and about that
time Sir Fobn was making a great noife, and
afking who is without the Door, what muft I
do my affairs in the Cabbin, what a fhame is ir,
will not you let me have any thing to do it in?
But nobody made any Reply. Upon which I
{aid to the Centinel, why don’t you anfwer the
Gentleman, are not you athamed of it? Upon
which, I {uppofe, one went up to the Caprain,
and he came down, and faid, he was forry that
the Gentleman fhould make fuch a Difturbance s
but he hoped, that the firft Night would be the
worft: Upon which the Captain went up, and
Mabony wentin; and I heard the Gentleman and
him talking together, and he atked Mabony,
what his Brother was going to do with him?
What, fays he, docs he fay, I am mad? For-
merly I ufed to be fo, but now I have not tafted
any thing ftronger than Water thefe two Years,
But, faid he, to be fure thefe Fellows are not
Sailors, who attacked me this day ; they arc not
Satlors, for if fo, they are fadly degenerated
from what Sailors were formerly 5 for I myfelf
have been at Sea, and might have been 2 Com-
mander,  About half an Hourafter Ten, [ fell
afleep, but was very unealy.  About twelve the
Centinel was {ent for to go up to the Captam, but
{foon came down again ; and about half an Hour

after two I awaked, hearing fome ftir in the
Cock-pit; and I heard Makony’s Voice in the

Cabbin, faying, Lie {till, and fleep, Sir. Ina
fhort time after that I heard a Scruggle, and Sir
Yobn cried out, here is twenty Guineas for you,
take it; muft I die? And it feemed to me by his
{peaking, that they were ftifling his Mouth. Up-
on which the Perfon who ftood Centry on the
Cabbin turned the Key, whereupon Mabony cried
out ina terrible pucker, Damn ye, keep the
Door faft. Upon which I {pake, and faid, What s
thematter, whatanoifeisthat? And the Perfonwho
ftoodCentinel made anfwer, Nothingatall,nothing
atall 5 fol lay {till a while, andall was pretty quiet.
A little time after that, Mabeny called for a Light

and the Cabbin-door was opened, and a Light
handed
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handed in; the Cock-pit was then in Darknefs,
fo all was quiet again for fome time. Soon after
that the Cabbin-door was opened again, and I
heard as if two or three Prople were coming
out of the Cabbin, and heard Mabony fay, Which
way {hall Igo ? And fomebody made anfwer, You
may go through the Hatch-hole. He repeated the
Queftion, Whichway il {go? Andtheotheran-
{wered, By the Ship-fide. I then thought fomebody
had beenmurdering Sir Fobn furcenough, and they
are carrying off his Body that way 5 at the fance
time a Perfon ftept up the Cock-pit Ladder, and
I heard the Captain’s Voice, and he faid, Cen-
try, if he makes any mere noife, let me know it
but I thought within myfelf, that he was paft
that, After this was paft, all was pretty quiet,
and the Centinel kept walking without my Room:
I was cautious of fpeaking to him, not knowing
who he was ; but foon after one of the Captain’s
Servants came down to the Store-room for Li-
quor, and he afked the Centry whether he had
made any noife lately ? To which he reply’d,
you may tell the Captain thatthe Gentleman hath

been at the Lock.,  Alout halt an Hour after,
the Perfon who was upon the Watch came to me,

and afked, If T hadany Commands on fhore, for
the Boat was going up? I told him no; but,
perceiving by his Voice who it was, I called him
to come to me 1n the dark, and I whifper’d and
faid to him, Mr. Heathorne, here hath been a
hellith Cabal to-night, I believe they have mur-
dered the Gentleman 3 doth Mabeny go on thore?
He anfwered, that he did 3 then, faid 1, the
thing is done.  I'then afked who was the Centry
without my Door, and he told me; whercupon I
called the Centry to me, and afked him, what
poife and cabal 1s this that hath been here to-
nizht ? Hefaid, hedid not know; but the Cap-
tain, faid he, hath been down feveral times to-
night, and that he had taken the Sword from
him.  Juft after this, 1n came Edward Founes the
Cooper, and his Wife, fhaking and trembling ;
and faid, JFbite a~ ' Mabery had murdered the
Gentleman fure envugh. I told them, T did be-
lieve they were both going on fhore ; and I
would, faid I, have you tell the Licutenant what
you faw of the matter, and let him know that I
am of the fame opinion with you: but do you
firlt go into the Steward’s Room and draw the
Scuttle, and then you’ll fee whether he is dead,
or no. Upon which they went and drawed the
Scuttle, and a Cat fled in their Face, and they
found the Gentleman lay in the fame pofture as
White and Mabony left him. I then bid themgo
and tell the Licutenant the matter, that thoic
Fellows might be prevented from going afhore ;
but yet, faid I, we can’t ftop them neicher, fee-
ing they have the Captain®s Orders.  Then went
Fones up forthwith, and, I believe, told the Lieu-
tenant 3 and I alfo ftept up to him juft after, and
told him, that [ believed Sir Yobiz was actually
murdered ; forfaid I, there have been a terrible
noife in the Cock-pit to-night, and the Captain
himfelf was there this Morning when *twas almoft
three o’clock, and the Men that were with him are
going on fhore, 'The Lieutenant anfwered, that
he could not ftop thefe Men from going athore,
becaufe the Captain hath given them leave 3 {o,
faid he, we muft let icalone till Morning, to fce
whether the Gentleman 1s dead, orno. About
eight o’clock in the Morning I went to himagain s
but he told me it was beft to defer i till we did
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fee whether the Captain fends down to him, ¢
not. It is, faid he, no way proper for s ¢
think of {cizing the Captain, till we fee that the
Gentleman is actually dead, and have reafon ¢
think he is murdered. When the Captain’s Break.
falt wasready, he {ent for the Licutenant and .
to come and breakfaft with him : accordingly
did 5 and foon after there was a Shore-beat came
towards us, and then Mr, Chamberlayne came op
board, and went to the Lieutenant’s Cabbin 5 and
the Licutenant told that Gentleman, that they
were then going to {eize the Captamn,  for ic wag
believed that he had been acceflary to the Murder
of his Brother, Immediately a Meflage was
brought by one of the Men, that Sir Fohr wag
dead : upen which the Captain was forthwith
fcized by cight or ten Men,

Mr. Veirnon, How far was your Cabbin from
the Purler’s ?

Fames Dudgeon. I can’t fay certainly, but be.
lieve about three Yards.

Mr. Vernen. Did you view the Body of the De-
ceafed whilft he lay dead in the Purler’s Cabbin?

Fames Dudgeon. 1 did.

Mr. Vernon, And did you find any vifible Marks
of Violence upon him?

Fames Dudgeon, Siry, 1 {aw no Rope, but ha
had a Neck-cloth about his Neck, and there were
fome Marks in his Neck, which looked like the
fcratching of Nails 5 and I believe that hie was
ftrangled, the Blood came oui of his Nofe and
Mouth,

(IVilliam Macguinis {worn,)

Mr. Pernon, Was you on board the Rudy Man
of War at the time when this matter happened ?

William Macguinis, Yes, Sir, I was,

Mr. Vernon. Then give an account of what
you know concerning it.

Williain Macguinis. The Night 1n which the
Gentleman came on board, 1 was appointed to
be the Centinel at twelve o’clock 5 but when the
Gentleman came on board, I was in my Ham-
mock., I was called up to ftand Centry in the
Gun-room; and (pleafe you, my Lord; I had
not been long on my Poft before I faw the Cap-
tain come down 3 and {oon after 1{aw Mabsny,
that Man there (pointing at the Prifoner Wakeiy)
alfo come down. I ftopt him, and afked him
where he was going ¢ Damn your Blood, you
Son of a Bitch, what is that to you ; how buty
you make yourielf? And when he came to thebot-
tom of the Cock-pit-Ladder, Iheard him fay to
another Man, Come here, this 1s the way? But
who it was hefpake to, [ know not,  This was
a little after two o’clock.  The Captain efpied
me, he made towards me, and waved his naked
Cutlafh, and faid, Stand back! ftand back!

Mr. Vernon. Where was Mr. Goodere, when
he advanced towards you, and bid you ftand back ?

William Macguinis, The Captain was down In
the Cock-pit then.

Mr. Veraon. Had he any thing in his Hand?

William Macguinis, Yesy he had a Cutlafh.
Duncan Buchanan had been ftanding Centincl in
the Cock-pit, but was releafed by the Caprain,

Mr. Vernon. Whatmore did you fee?

Williai Macguinis. 1 faw Mahkony go into the
Parfer’s Cabbin, and afterwards, 1 faw the Cap-
tain and Mabony come upaguin fromthe Cock-pit.

Mr. Pernon. About what time ?

Williain Macguinis, 1 believe 1t was then about
three o’clock.

IMir.
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My Recorder. Mr. Goodere and Mabony, do
either of you alk this Witnefs any Quettions ¢
Samuel Goodere. NoO.

Matthew Mabony. No.
(Mr. Walker {worn.)

M. Vernos. 1 think youare the City Mafon?

Walker. 1 am.

Mr. Pernon. Look upon that Watch, and give
an Account how you came by it ?

ralker. 1 found it in the Neceflary-houfe, at
the Brackwaie-Boat, a Public-tiou e on the Back.

Nir, Pernon. Who kepe that Public-houfe at
e time you found the Watch ?

17alker. Oue Culliford.

Nr. Pernon. Was it accidentally, or upon
Search that you found the Watch

Walker. 1 {earched for it in the Neceflury-
houfe, by the Juftices Orders ; when I found 1t,
the Cafe was 1n one Place, and the Watch in
another, about a Yard apart.

(Sarah Culliford fworn. )

\Mr. Pernon.  Look upon that Watch, Mirs.
C:f!fffr;r.fz' , you live at the Sign of the Brockware-
Boat on the Back, do you not?

Surah Cufliferd.  Yus, Sir.

Nr. Perion. Do you take that fo be the fame
Watch, that was found by Mr. [Valker, the City
Mufon, in your Neceffury-houfe ¢

Sarah Culliferd. Yes, Sirs I believe it 1s the
fame.

Mr. Vouon,  From whom did you receive I,
before it was thrown into the Neceffary-houfe

Sarab Clliford. 1 received 1t from Adahony’s
[ands, that Man there ; (pointing to the Prifo-

ner Melony.)
Nir Ferpoin. How long belore he was appre-

hended ?

Serab Cullifsrd. Thad it in my Pofleflion abous
w0 Hours before, and two Hours after he was
faken up. ,

Mr. Perwoi.  And what became of it after-
wards?

Sarab Culiiferd. This young Man (meaming
the Prifoncr AMabszy) was drinking 10wy
Houfe, he pulled out the Warch, delivered it
o me, and defired me to keep it for him until
he did call for it : Some Time after I had Bufi-
nefs to go out, I went into Town, and had the

Wach in my Pocketr; when I came back, my

Children told me that the Conftable had been
there to fearch the Houfe for ir, which much
lurprized me 1 went and threw the Watch into
the Neceflary-houfe, for fear I fhould come in
Trouble.

(Fefias Fuffcd fworn.)

Mr. Perigir.  Mr. Fuffell, look on that Hand-
kerchiel, and give an Account from whom you
had it, and when ?

Yefias Fuffell. 1 had this Handercluet from
Mafisiy, on the 1gth of Fanuary laft, the Night
when we took him, 1 foundicupon his Neck s
when he was feized, he took itoff'; I took it out
of his Hand, it was bloody then as it1s zow, I
put it into my Pocket.

(Mr. Fobn Mtchel, Chief Clerk to the

Town-Clerk, {worn.)
- Mr, Peraen. Mo, Mitchel, what Paper is that
wyour Hand ¢ .

Mr. Mirchel, The Examination of Aathew
Mchony, the Prifoner at the Bar, 1axen belore
Hinry Combe, Yig; Mayor,
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Mr, erwon. Did you fee the Prifoner Adubony
fign it in his Prefence ¢
Mr. Mitchel, Yes, Sir,
Mr. Vernon. Did he do it voluntarily ?
Mr. Mitchel, He did.
Mr Pernon, Did you fee Mr, Mayor fizn that

Examination ?
Mr. Mitchel, Yes, 1did.
Mr. Pernor. Then I defire it may be read ?
My, Recorder, Read the Examination ?

Clerk reads the Examination, in thefe IWords :

City andCounty HE voluntary Exa-

of Briftol. mination and Con-
feflion of Matthew Mabony, a Native of Treland,
agedabout 21 Years, Thisxaminant confefieth
and faith, That about fixteen or feventeen Days
ago, and feveral times fince, he was delired by

}to Wit 3

* Mr. Goodere, Captain of the Ruby Man of War,

now lying at King-Road, 1n the County of the
City of Brifel, to feize his, the Captain’s Brother,
Sir Fobn Dineley Goodere, Bare, and bring him on
board the faid Main of War; and that on Tueflay
laft, this Exg.mipa?t and the Crew b:longing to
the Man of War’s Barge, and Ediwerd Aac-
Daniel, Fobn Mac-Graree, and IWilliam Haminen,
Privateer’s Men, were placed by the faid Capain
at the Wbhite-Hart Alchoufe oppofite St Au-
gufting's Church, in order to feize Sir Fobi Dine-
ley Goodere that Day 5 bur 1t fo happened, the
Captain forbid them to do it then.  And thaton
Sunday lalt, this LExaminant, the fud Barge’s
Crew, or the greatelt Part of them, and Geerge
Beft Cockltern of the Barge, the {uid Edward
Mac-Danicl, Fobn Mac-Graree, IVillia Ilammon,
and one Charles Bryer, Privateer’s Men as atore-
faid, were again placed av the [White-Hart afore-
faid, to feize the taid Sir Fobu Dincley Goodere,
and waited there for fome Tune 5 and he coming
out of Mr. Tarrit Smith’s Houfe, and coming
under St. Auftine’s Church-Yard Wall, this Exa-
minant and his Comrades purfued hum, and near
the Pump there, they came up with him, and
told him there was a Gentleman wanted to fpeak
with him ; and he afking where the Gentleman
was, wasanfwered a lietle ways off, and he went
quictly a little way, butno oneappearing, he re-
fifted and refufed to go, whereupon this Exami-
nant and Comrades fometimes forcibly halled and
pufh’d, and at other Times carried him over St.
Auftine’s Butts, Captain Day’s Rope-walk, and
along the Road to the Hot-Well, (Captain
Goodere being fometimes a ittle behind, and
fometimes amongft the Croud all the way) till
they came to the Slip where the Barge lay. ~ Buc
Sir Fobir was very unwilling to go, made the ut-
moft Refitance, and cryed out Murder a great
many Times; and when he was put into the
Barge, called out and defired fomebody would
oo to Mr. Farrit Smith, and tell him of bis ill
Ufage, and that his Name was Sir Fobn Diucley.
Whercupon the Captain clape his Hand on Sit
Yobn’s Mouth to ftop his fpeaking; and told him
not to make fuch a Noife, he had got him out of
the Lion’s Mouth (meaning the Lawyers Hands)
and would take care he fhould not fpend his Eftate;
and bid the Bargemen row away, which they did;
and in their Paffage to the Man of War, the two
Brothers bicker’d all the Way : But when they

came 1o the Man of War, Sir Fehn went on
board
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part of the Money he took out of the Deceafe,
Pocket, and then the Captain ordered thep g
be put on fhore in bis own Boat.  And furele
this I'xaminant confefles, and faith, That b:‘ﬁ;r;
and alter the Murder was committed, the Cap-
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hoard as well as he could, and the Captain tf:'){)k
him down into the Purfer’s Cibbin, :}nd ﬁ:_:ud a
little Time with .him, and Lrefztcd him with a
Dram of Rum, and then left him for a conﬁdtf-.
rable Time, And in the Interim fent for this

Examinant into his, the Captain’s Cabbin, and
there told this Examinant he muft murder his
Brother, for that he was mad, and thould not
live till Four 0°Clock in the Morning; and this

Examinant reafoning with him, and telling him
he would not be concerned, and that he thought
he had brought him there with Intent oaly to
brine him to Reafon, and take care that he

fhould not {pend his Eltate in Law, and to have

a perfect Reconciliation 3 but the Captain {till -

fiting, that as this Examinant h:}d raken b,
he fhould do it s and this Examinant then fay-
ino, he was not able to do it of himfeli; the
Captain replicd, i Elli% li:{n.xnin:mt muh]gct o«
body clfe, he and this Fxaminant muitdo it ‘I:ﬂl.m_a‘*m
felves. And then ordered him tocall one 275702
Cele, and he being too drimk to undcrtnlii fuch
an Affair, bid this Examinant call one Cauives
White, avery frout lufty Fellow, and the Captain
gave him a Dram, and bid hm ﬁt‘dmvn, and
foon gave other Drams, and afid if he could
ficht, and told him here’s a Madman, he I*ﬂllﬂi
be murdered, and thou fhalt have a handfome
Yeward.  And this Examinant, the fd Charies
7170ite, and the Captain, being all agreed to
murder the fwid Siv Foba Dincley Goudie,  the
Captain then propofed the Method, and produced
2 Piece of Half-inch Rope of abour ninc Ioot
long, and Chailes IWhite having made 2 Noofe 1n
the Rope, the Guptam aid, applying !nimlulir to
e Fxaminant and the faid Cociles [Fee, You
muft {trangle hiim x:.'i:h”this I.{qpe, and ar the
fame time gave the 1-1111;11?@1‘(1111::& row produced,
that in cafe he made a Noife, to ftop his Mouih;
and faid, T will ftand Ccnti_nul over the Door
whillt vou do ity and accordingly inftantly wens
out of his own Cabbin, and turned the Centinel
from the Parfer’  .bbin-Door, and let this Lxa-
minant and 77hire into the Purfur’? C{ibbi]’_l,
where Sit Folkir Diicler Goodeie was lying in his
Clothes on aBed : The Captain having pulled
to the Door, and ftanding Centinel himicif, the
uid 77 bire Grft frangled Sir fobi with bis Hands,
and then put the Rope about Sir Jooi's Neck,
and halled it tight, and Sir Jebs flruggled, and
endeaveured to cry out, burceuld not.  Andthis
Tsaminant confefies, that whilfe [¥hire was
frangling Sir febi, this Examinant took caze to
keep him on the Bu.d, ‘r..nd _whun one End of th_c
Rope was loofe, this Examinant drew I:.Ilfl held it
tight 3 and thus cach borc a part till Sir Fobis was
dead 5 and they having rifled the deceafed of his
Warch and Money, knock’d at the Door to be
let out s and the Captain called out, Have you
done ? They replied, Yes. He opened the
Door, and afked again, Is he dead ? and being
niwered in the Affirmative, and having a Light,
fwore by God he’d be fure he was dead ; andchen
went in himfeif, and returning, locked the Door
and put the Key in his Pockes, and they all
went together to the Captain’s Cabbin again, and
there this Examinant gave the C::pftt_un Sir Jobw's
Watch, and the Captain gave this Kxaminant
his own YWatch in fieu ol 1t; and ‘tl‘lﬂ‘n tl_m_ C“p_"
tain gave, them both fome Moncy, and 27bite at-
serwards gave this Examinant cight Guineas, as
2

tatn, Charles I7hite, and this Fxaminant confuliy
what to do with theCorple; and the Captain Dio-
poled to keep it two or three Days in the St
and as he expected to go to Sea, would few ;

in a Hammock, or fomething clfe, and ther
throw 1t overboard :  And that before this Exa.
minant and his Comrades were fent to iz Sis
Jobiry s 1s betore det forth, they were ordered
Captain Goodere, that, 1f they met with any Re.
iftance they fhould repel Force by Force, qng
were prepared with fhort beavy Sticks, or Blyd.
ceons for that purpote,

”Pa
¢ i)

B BRSSO Il

Mi. Reecider, {Speaking to the Jury] Ger.
tlemen, youare to take notice,  thar this Confef.
fon1s Evidence againtt the Prifoner A2ebeiy alons
aid fo far only ought you torecard ir. T i ;.fj
}'ﬁvidcncc, nor ought you to Ly any Strefs upoy
ity as agaimft che Prifoner Gezler2,

Mr. Perusie. NMr. Recorder, we have Ol
throvgh with our Iividence of the Fué, and e
we fhould have vefted ir, were 1t nor that My
Gorevie, by his firict Enguiry into the Spot whers
the Ship lay, feenis to quetlion whether it weg
within this County or not: A Queftion, which,
Iconfels, I no more expedted to hear of) thin
whether we ourlelves are now within e, T
ever to obviate all Pretence of that Kind, and
give the Gentlemen of this Jury as full Sagi fact
in the Point, as undoubtedly the Grand Inqudd
for the Body of this County had belore i v
found the Billy we fhall beg leave to call 1 Wit
nefs or two, jufl to fhew that Kig-Rs.0.7 has been
conftantly taken to lie within the Ciry and County
of Briffely and that accerdingly the Shenifis Off-
cers of Briffel, from time o time, have ufed w
xecute both the City and County Procels i
Kiig-Reod 5 which, Tappresend, will of ifelf
be fatisiallory Lvidence, without entring into
any other Difquilition of the County Limit,
Call My 770t

(F bl 7nt fworn.)

Mr. Ferion. Mr. Ity what Oficer are vou
in Bijftid ?

Febi: Iint. 1 am an Officer to the Sherids of
Biiftel, and have been fo for tiefe thirty Years
and upwards,

Mr. Fernon. Flave you been ufed, asan Ofi-
cer to the Sherthis of Diiftel, 1o {erve Procefs i
King- Road ?

YobuIl'int. T have ferved Procefs in King-Road
forty or fitty Tunes.

How far down the River ?

o Il 7nt. Very often down as far as Peffet
Peins,

M. Recorder,
you {erved thicre ?

Febu I mt. Town Alions out of the Mayor
and Sherilis Court, and out of the Piepewder
Court,

Afy. Reeerder. Have you ever executed Pro-
cefs there which was direéted to the Sheriffs of
Briftel 2

Fobu Tint,  Yes, Sir, I have ferved Sheriffs

Warrants, or Wrus, iffued from above,'GU;
| ¢

What Kind of Piocefs have
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of the Court. of King s~Bench and Comion-Pleas
o the Sherilis of Briffol. | |

i, Recorder.  Mr. Goodere, will you afk this

Mirnels any Qlf:ﬁinns 7
Wimels 0 Yes, Sire Isall that 15 called

i’ r
L ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ *

King-flead  Within the Libesty of the City of

Brie! 2 . o
j’ff:,-; it Yes 1ts,

onel Goodsice. Arve you fure of 1t?

Fuba T 102, I know where the Ship Ruby lay
was within the City of Briftel,

Comuel Goscdire, How do you know that
coba g, Boeaule I have been down with
the Mayor to the Holiizes,

Vi, Feoragin. Call Mr, Lozden.

(Mr. Lowden tworn.)

Mr. Yernon.  What Officer are you,
Lowlon?

Lowdea. 1 have bren an Officer in this City
Jyour nineteen Years @ I have ferved Town
Actions, Tewn Warrants, ﬂ:.‘.nd W“trmnts fn;ldc
out upon Writs from thfu Cgurts ot [Vefluiiifter-
Jia and e czamirally, 1o Ii:;{g-R 5G4 Anq any
Parc of Rirr-Road on the Southward ‘of the
Deininy, we adways ke 1t to be in the Libertics
of firiel

M, derien. Mr, Recorder, we have done.

Ao Recerder, N Goodere, and  Matthew
Alabzize, e Coualed for the King hus gone thro?
with bis Evidence, and now is your Time to
enter upon your Deferce,

Samic] Goadere. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
I il endeavour to give you and the Jury as
littke Troubic us poffible. T fhall call Evidence
t prove e the Gentleman was a Lunntii:]{, and
anetdered 1n his Senfes, and T was dﬁlﬂg my
beit 1o take care ot b,

Call Mys. Gething,
What do you call her 1o

Mr.

r} W o= - Jq.r-
FANS /TR ST R

Sezcizl Geodore, 1 call her to prove that before
my Brother was taken on board, T was to take an
Upnei-room of her to put him in, where he
might be taken care of, to cure his Madnets,

Mr. Recorder. What, Mr. Geodere, do you
admit then that you did take your Brother on
board ¢

Seine! Gooavie, 1 do admit that I carried my
Brether on board, I went 1 the Boat along

with hin,
(Mrs. Gethins fworn.)

Sasitic] Goodere.  Mrs. Gethins, did] not fpeak to
you a Fortmightor three Weeks before my Brother
was taken on board the Ship, to have a Garret
of you to put him in, aund that Mabony was
to have fve Pounds a Monch to ke care of
him?

Mrs, Cettius. The Prifoner Caprain Geodeive,
cid afk me if” I had not a Garret to let him keep
his Brother in, for that he was aMad-man: And
Captain Goodeie never made it a Secret that he
L.tended to teke and keep his Brother as a Mad-
L,

Scrine! Goodeire. Whether I did not tell you
it Valeny was to take care of my Brother a
Fortnight or three Weeks before he was taken on
board ¢ Speak to the time as near ag you can re-
cotlect 5 and whether you knew that Mebony
w.s to have hve Pounds a Month, and that I
made no manner of Secret of i, and that I en-
deavoured to take cere of him as a Lunatick,

Vor, VI,
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Mrs, Gethivs, Sir, 1 have already faid that
you fpoke to me about a Room to put your Bro-
ther in, but what you mention shout Mabsny, 1
know nothing of .that.

Mr. Ferwon.  Pray is Kino-Road in the Road
to your Houfe ¢

Mrs. Gethins,  No, Sir.

Mr. Verusis. Was your Garret a proper Place
of Accommodation for 2 Gentleman, and one
who was clteemed an £nglifh Baronet think you ?
Pray, do you keep a Mad-houfe, Madam 2

Mrs. Gethins, No,

Mr. Verion.  Don’t you think fuch a Confine-
ment would have been the way to have made him
mad ? '

M. Recorder. Was any Perfon as you know
to have taken care of him ia your Garret ?

Murs. Gethins. 1 have heard the Captain talk
with his own Do&tor abour it.

Saitel Gasdere. 1 fhall give you and the Jury
as lictle trouble as may be, [ have an BEvidence
In Relation to Mabeny and /7 hite's TOINZ AWy
at Four o’Clock in the Morning, blcaufe it is
charged that I fent them away, The Boat wene
away in the King’s Service to bring Letters.

(Mr. Mesfh fworn.)

Saumnc! Goodzre. T4 you go afhore in the
Morning about the King’s Bufinefs, or what Bu-
finets did you go ubout ?

Mr. Aderfh, 1 had an Order about Lighe
o’Clock the Night Sir Yals was brought on board
to go up in the Morning to Brifsf for <hz Letters
from the Admiralty, and about Four of the
Clock in the Morning I was called up to go; but
the Licutenant feemed much difordered, and bid
me come to him before I fer our. 1 waited on
the Lieutenant, and told him, that /7% and
Mabony faid they had Liberty to e on fhore,
that the Captain had given them Liberty to go;
the Licutenant faid, he knew nothing of it. But
as 1t 1s always my way, before I carry any body
off, I{ad, I would go to the Captain and atk
[cave. T went to the Captain, and afked him,
i Abite and Alabony had Liberty from  him
to go on thore? and he fiid, Yes, leo them
0.

Saittel Goedere, Nr. Maifd, did you go upon
the King’s Baflacds, or on purpofe to wke up
thefe Men ?

Mr. Afarfb, T went about the King’s Bufi-
nels,

Mr. Fernen, But it was after Sir §shn was
brought on board, that Mr. Geadere ordered you
to goup?

Mr. Adarfh. Yos, Sir, it was,

Mr. Pernon, Did any body elfe go up with

you, befides Adabeny and IWhite 2

Mr. Marfb. No, there did nor.

NMr. Feraon. Did Mr. Goodere
ders to put them on fhore in
Place s

Mr, Maif. T will do Juftice between Man
and Man 3 the Captain did not give me Orders
to put them on fhore in any particutar Place.

Nr. Vernon. Were they landed publickly or
privately £

Mr. Afaifh. 1 put them on fhore at the Gilé,
about fix of the clock tn the Morning.

Samucl Geedeie, Now, may it pleafe you, Sir,
I fhatl fhew that Adebony had bufinefs at Briffol
that Day by Appointment, to recelve fome Wages

7 U thag

give you Or-
any parocular
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that was due to humy for which purpofe I fhall
call Mr. Dagg.

(dAbel Dagg, Keeper of Netygate, fworn.)

Sanuel Govdere. Do you know any thing of
Captain Mervin, and of Mabony®s coming to
Briftol on the Mondsy to fettle an Afair with
him ?

Abel Dagg. There was one Captain Faines
Mervin who failed into this Porr, and on his
coming was charged as a Debtor in my Houle,
at the Suit of fome Gentleman in Lowden; m an
Action of three or four hundred Pounds.  Ale-
bouy was one of his Sailors until he was pref,
and he charged the faid Afiviy with an Adtion
for his Wages.  Captain Adervin had o defire to
make up the matter with Mabopy, 1 went to
the Capiain of the Man of War the Tuifiay or
IWednsfilay before this Ailair happened, which

was the firft time I ever faw him, to the beft of

my knowledge @ The Captain faid he would
meet me the Mond 'y following, 1n order to ac-
commodate the diticrence,

Mr. Vernen. Was Mabziy appointed to meet
you that Day, or not ?

M. Recorder. Mind the
heiy to come that Alsinday ?

stbe! Dagp. The Caprain made an Appoint-
raent, my Lord, to meet on the Veiday 5 and
I told Mr. Taylor the Attorney, that Mabeny was
to come on fhore that day, to make up the mat-
ter berween him and deyovin,

Mr, Vernon, Twould afk you another Quettion;s
TIad F7kie too any Aliair to make up at Briffal

bel Dagr. No, 1 know nothing of that.

Samuel Gosdere. Now I call Bricget Kiug.

My, Recorder. What do you call her for 2

Samue! Goodie. Touching the Lunacy of Sir

Yobn Dincley.

Queftion, was Mo-

(Bridget Kinz {worn.)

Samuel Gesdere. Mrs. King, will you give the
Court an account of what you know of the Lu-
nacy of my Brother Sir Febir Dinelry.

Dridget King. P e you, my Lord, T think
he was mad 3 for he would get up at two or three
of the clock in the Morning, and call his Ser-
vaats up, and fall a finging 5 and then he would
go to bed aguin, and fwear it was but twelve
o’clock at Night, and lie a-bed all Day. He
would fend his Boy out all over his Grounds to
pick up Stoncs, and have the Wheelbarrow rat-
tling abourt the Streets on a Sundev: he hath ringed
the Bell to call his Servants up to his Bed-hde,
and when they were come up, he would afk
them what they did there, and fwear they were
come to fhoot him ? He himfelf hath gone over
all his Grounds on a Sunday to pick Sricks, and
hath feat his Servants to Marker when there was
nonc ; and he would be bufy 1 every thing, and
hang on the Pot himfelf5 and he hath been quite
raving mad.

Mr, Vernonr. Did you live as a Servant with
Sir fobu ¢

Bridget King. I lived as a Servant with him
in London, and he came down for the Air to
Tockington 5 he brought me down ro go to Bath.

Mr. Pervon. How long did you continue with
him ¢

Bridget King. A Twelvemonth, Stir.

Mr. Vernon. And how durlt you venture to
live fo long with a Mad-man? He did not go
mad for love of you, I hope? Have you lived

any time in Briffol ?
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Bridret King. No.

Mr. Feraon. Then I luppole you came but noy
from Laad.

Biidget Kirg, Yes, I did.

Samel Goodere. Do you believe he was a Mud.
man ¢

Briidzer King. In the Actions that T have feqy
by him, [ have reafon to think he wias a Mag.
man,

(Mrs. Mary Stafford fworn.)

Saimel Goodere, Mrs, Stafford, will you tell hig
Lordthip and the Jury what you know of S
Fobir being a Lunatick ?

Mary Stafford. Siv Fobn hired me for a Houfe.
keeper  In Loidony and told me he had 4
oreat many Servanss, and he wanted a Houfe-
keeper.  When he brought me down, lie or.
dered me to bis Seat at Teckington 5 where, he
faid, he had a great deal of Company frequently,
When I came there, T found there was nothine
in what he had told me 5 for, inftead of a grc;?t
many Servants, he had butene: a poor old that
tered Houfe, rexdy to tumble down about one’s
cars, and the Houthold Goods all to pieces: he
was a Mad-man g for if I had followed his Di-
reCtions in any thing, I {hould have done mif-
chicf,  He hath fent nie and the reft of his Ser-
vants to Thorncury Marker, when there was none;
he hath ringed che Bl to call his Servants o
come to his Bed-fide to bim, and when we have
come np to him, he hati afked us, what we did
there ? Sir, fud 1, you called me up; he hath
f1id, he did net: and after we bhad been there 2
quarter of an Flour, he would take a Knife, Fork,
Glafs-Bottle, or any thing that came in his way,
to throw at us, afkine of us, what did we come
to rob him? And I was atraid of my Life, to
live with him. I do believe he wasa Mad-man,
or elfe he would never have adted as he did: he
would go into the Kitchen, and take the Pot and
hang it on the Fire. I ftyle him a Mad-man by
hts Actions.

Mr. Fernor. And muft he therefore be hanged
himfelf like a mad Dog, think you?

Mary Stafferd. 1 know nothing of that, Sir,

Mr. Pernon. How long did you live with Sir
Fobir ?

Mary Stafford. Three Months, Sir.

Sainnel Goodere, Call Mr. Robert Cock,

Mr. Recorder. What do you call him to
prove?

Samuc! Goodere. My Lord, n order to prove
Sir Fobn Dineley a Lunatick,  Mr. Cock, will you
aive an account to my Lord and the Jury what
you know of the Lunacy of Sir Fobn Dincley ?

(Robert Cock fworn.)

Robert Cock. My Lord, T have kaown M.
Dincky at Charlron tor fome Years; [ have been
feveral times 1 his Company 3 I have feen him
do feveral Acts of Lunacy as a Mad-man.

Mr. Ferson. Where do you live ?

Robert Cock, 1live in Cumberland, when Iam
at home.,

Mr. Pernon. Are you of any Bufinefs ?

Robert Cock. I am an Officer beloncing to his
Mujelty.

Mr. Fernon. What kind of Officer ?

Robert Cock, A Salt Oflicer.

Samucl Goodere. I will not give your Lordfhip
and the Jury much more trouble. Iam entirely
innocent 3 they have not proved that I was pre-

fent at the Death of Sir Yobn Dincley.
-?tﬂ..
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My, Recerder. Don’tdeceive yourfelf s though
they have not proved that you was alually in the
Cabbin, when Sir Fobit was murdered, yet they
have given Lvidence of that, which (if the Jury
ive Credit to) will amount to Prefence in the
:?yc of the Law, .

Sl Goodere. 1 1hall nowﬂcall fome Witnefles
to my Character, and likewile to thew how im-
probable 1t 15, that I fhould be guilty of the
Nuorder of my Brother.  Call Mr., Pritebard,

(Mr, Prutchard fworn,)
. Mr. Pritchard. 1 have known Mr. Goodere, the
Prifoner at the Bar, many Years: He always
hore the Character pf a good Hufbind, a good
Neighbour, and a kind Friend.

Samusl Goodere. T {hall call a Perfon who faw
the Will of Sir Fobn Dineley 5 and then any body
would think that I fhould be the maddet Man in
e World to commit a Murder that T knew
would be Forty Thouland Pounds Damage to me,
Tt was my bufinefs, confidering the Circumftance
of the Will, and that T was Sir fobir’s Heir at
Law, at all events to preferve him.  Call Mr.
[ atdiins.

(Reverend Mr. Watkins fworn.)

Samus! Goodere. Mr. IWatkins, did not you fee
or hear the Contents of Sir Fahn Dineley’s Will,
and did you not tell me prefently after the Will
wis made the Contents of it, and how long was
that before his Death ?

Mr. I7athins, It was above three Months, or
half a Year before his Death, to the beft of my
Knowiedge, It was fo long ago, as you dined
with me at Croptharie.

Sainnel Goodere. Did you not inform me, that
that Will did cut me off ol every thing, and
cive the Eltate to the Foots 5 and that Sir Febu
wld you fo?

Mr. 7Vatkine. Sir Fobn told me that he had
made his Will, and had cut his Brother off from
every thing 5 and that he had given the Liftate to
the foors = of which I told Mr, Goedire foon
after.

Samuel Goodere. How long ago ?

Mr. IWatkins. T can’t tell exaltly 5 about half
aYear, or three quarters of a Year, it might be.

Mr, Fernon. They have been giving Siv Fobis
the Character of being a Lunatick ; T think, Sir,
you arc Minifter of Croptisiie, and muft, I pre-
fume, have been pretty converfant with Sir Foby,
and a frequent Witnefs of his Bebaviour tn that
Neighbourhood 3 be pleafed theretore to fpeak
what you know, as to his Sanity or Infanity of
Mind,

Mr, Wathins. Sir Fobi's Charalter in my opi-
nion hath been very much nufreprefented to the
World. During my Acquaintance with him, I
have found him to be a good Neighbour, and a
kind Friend : He was a Man of firong Paflons ;
if any oncafironted him, he would ler the Party
know that he did refentit. All his Tenants of our
Country, and thofe I have converfed with fay,
that he was one of the beft of Landlords.

Mr. Vernon. 1 don’t afk you, Sir, concerning
his moral Charadter; but whether he was in his
Senfes, or not ?

Mr. Watkins. In his Senfes! I faw him laft
Chriftrias, he was making up his Accounts-with
feveral of his Tenants; he was then in very good
Underftanding.

Mr. Vernon, Pray did you ever know him
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Mr. IWatkins. 1 never did; but on the con-
trary, I ke him to have been a Man that always
had his Senfes ina reguiar Exercile,

Mr, Pernon, Do you know, Sir, whether there
was any Mifunderftanding between the two Bro-
thers ?

Mr. atkins. There has been a long Mifunder-
ftanding between them.

Mr. Vernon. What have you heatd the Prifo-
ner Mr. Goodere fay, in relation to Siv Folu's
making his Will ?

Mr. Watkins. 1 believe he told me. that Sig
Joln had not pewer to make a Will: I told him
it was my Opinion, if they would be reconciled
together, Sir Fobi’s Will would not ftand.

(Mr. Thoiiras {worn.)

Samuel Goodeire. Mr. Thoimas, how long have
you known me, and what was my Character #

Mr. Thewmas. 1 have known the Prifoner, Mr.
Saitel Goedere, a great many Years, have very
often been in his Company : I never found bue
that he ever behaved with all the Good-nature
that poifibly could be. I always took him to be
1 good-natured well-behaved Man, and he is 2
Man well-beloved in his Country.

(Mr, dfbficld fworn,)

Mr. Affeld. 1 have known Mr. Goodere a great
many Years, I never heard any i)l of him ull
this Affair; beis reputed in the Country of
general good Character. T have been concerned for
him in feveral Suits, I never knew any ill of him.

Mr. Pernon. Pray, Sir, what have you heard
Mr. Goodere fay, concerning his Brother’s cut-
ting off the Lntailt of his Eftate ?

Mr. Afbficld. T have heard Mr. Goodere {ay,
that his Brother bad no power to cut off the En-
tal, and that he would fet the Recovery afide y I
have licard him f{ay that forty times.

Mr. Fernon. What is your opinion as to the
Sanity or Infanity of Sir Fobu ?

Mr. Afficld. 1 never thought him a Mad-man 3
I always thought him one of the beft Under-
ftanding in the whole Family,

(Reverend Mr, Rogers fworn.)

Mr, Rogeis. 1 have been acquainted with the
Prifoner Goodere feveral Years, I know he hath
behaved very well, done good Offices to all Man-
kind 3 and I never heard any other of him,

[Mr. George Forcevil fworn.]

Mr, Forcevil. The Prifoner Geodere hath been
my Neighbour for fourteen or fifteen Years; he
hath always behaved well 1 his Neighbouarhood,
and has a very good Character 5 he conftantly
attended his Church twice 2 Day Suidays, and
would be there at Prayers almoft every Day 5 he
was always a fober Man, and a good-hurmoured
Gentleman. I thought him to be 2 «eod Man.

Samuel Goodere. Mr. Recorder, I would not
atve you and the Jury any more trouble in tela-
tion to my Charactery all I have to fay further
is, my being deprived of Evidence in my Be-
half, by realon of my Duorder and the Sicknefs
in the Goal, which hath prevented my Friends
from comirig to me to advile me about making
my Defence 5 and alfo of having feveral Wit-
nefles from on board the Ship, which might have
been of great Service to me. I had an Order
from the Lords of the Admiralty to require
them to {tay on fhore, it I had occafion for them;
but, as the Ship was gone before the Letter came
to my hands, I have no occafion now to tell the
Names of the Perfans. |

7 U 2 Mr,
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[Mr. Goodere held up the Letterin his hand,
but the Court did not receive it. ]

Mr. Frederick, Mr. Recorder, there have been
feveral Afperfions publifhed in the New-papets,
to the prejudice of Mr. Goadere 5 there has been
a Pamphlet allo publithed, which I have here in
my hand, intitled, The Briftol Fratricide 5 but I
hope the Gentlemen of the Jury will takenonotice
of, nor be influenced by them again{t the Priloner.

Mr. Vernonn. I dare fay they will have no Regard
to any Book, but that on which they have been
{worn: thofe who know them and their Charac-
ters, mull certainly think fo.

[The Jury declared they had never {cenany
fuch Pamphler, or Papers. ]

Mr. Veruon. Mr. Recorder, we mult beg leave
to afle Mr. Farrit Smith’s Opinon, as to Sir Fobu’s
being a Lunatick, or not ¢

Mr. Farrit Smith. Mr. Recorder, T am fur-
prifed to hear it fatd by fome of Mr. Goodere’s
Witnefles, that Sic Fobn Dinelyy Goodere was
mad s I knew him fourteen or fifteen Years, and
converfed with him both in Perfon and by Let-
ter 5 but never difcovered that he was in the leatt
difordered in his Senfes, I always took him to be
a Man of found Underflanding.  On the Swrday,
the Day before his Death, he expreffed himfelt
with a great deal of Good-nature and Aflection

at the fight of his Brother.

Mr. Shephard. Mr. Recorder, with humble
Submiffion, Tam inflructed to ofier it in Evidence,
that the Place where the Ship lay 15 not within
this City and County of Briflol.

Mr, Pernor. We have already proved it to be
within the County of Brifte/ 5 nor 1s there the
leaft reafon to apprehend, that Mr. Recorder will
extend the Rule of Boni Fudicis eff ampliare Fu-
sifdictionen to the extending of the County an
[nch beyond its ancient and known Limits : He
is too juft to attemptit.  On the other hand, we
may depend he will not fufer the County-Limits
to be abridged, b fervare Fus illefuin s and (as
he hathhithertodoie ) dilcountenanceall fncroach-
mentson the Rightsand Franchifes of Briffol.

My, Recorder, It has been proved, and 1ndeed
it can’t be denied, that at the time the Fat in
queltion was committed, the Ship lay n Kiigg-
road 3 and Ithink the LEvidence which has been
aiven of the Exercife of Jurifdiction by the Ma-
aiftrates of the City and County of the City in
King-road, and of the Shenff’s Officers executing
Procefs of all kinds there, amounts to a full ’root
that King-road 1s within the Body of the Caunty
of the City of Briftol. It is the fame fort of Proof
by which the Bounds of every County 1n the
Kingdom muft be afcertain’d, the doing Acdts in
the Place in queftion by the Officers of theCounty,
which muft bedone inthat County, and no other.

Mr. Goodere. All King-road is not in Briftol,
Willyour Lordfhip plealc toadmit me to call Mr.
Hilf 2 he 1s a Gentleman cthat has {urvey’d the
Situation of the Place where the Ship lay, and
will delcribe it.

Mr. Pernon. 1T am forry to find Mr. Goodere
driven to this Subterfuge in his Defence, 1 could
wifh he had one to make on the Merits 5 if he
ftands upon his Innocence, what need of all this
Stir about the Station of the Ship, or where on
arth can he hope to be tried before a fairer, or
more impartial Judicature than the prefent ?

Samuel Goodere, Call Mr. Hill,

My, Recorder, Mr. Goodere, if you can fhew

that any Part of Kiug-road is, or cver was efteer.
ed to be in any other County than the County of

the City of Briffol, 1 will hear you; otheryifes
it will be to no purpofe to deferibe the Situatioy
of the Ship, fince 1t is admitted that fhe lay in
King-road.— Mabony, have you any thing tofay3

Aebeny, 1 hope your Lordthip will confidey
that I was a poor, prefs’d Servant, and I wyg
drunk when I made the Confeflion, and [ wys
frightned out of my Wits.

My, Recorder. You fay you were drunk whep
you made the Conteflion ; ’tis poflible, that Nigle
when you were firlt taken and brought before the
Magiftrates, you were 1n Liquor, but it feems
your Confeliion waus not taken *ull the nexe Day,

Mabony. My Lord, T was in Bridewell, 1did
not {leep a Wink the whole Night.

Mr. Recordir. Have you any Witneflesto cal] 2

Mobeiv. No, pleate your Lordfhip, [ amg
Stranger here, Ihave no Witnefles to call,

My, Fernon, Mr. Recorder, T apprehiend we
are 1n a Cale exceeding clear againft both the
Prifoners ac the Bar s and, conlidering that Deaty
and Life are in the Power ob the Tongue, 1am
unwilline to reply, where Life 1sat ftake ; bur,
as Mr, Geedeie eems to lay fume Strefs on the
Circumltance of his not being altually in the
Cabbin, at the time his Brother was murder'd
there, 1 beg, Sir, you will indulge me an Ob-
fervation or two as to that fingle Pomt : Not
that [ imagine the leall Doubt 1n Law can re.
matn with Mr. Recorder, but being in the Cafe
of a Capital Profecution, I would leave no Ob-
jeCtion unanfwered that has the lesft Dependance
on the Law ; and Lagree, Sir, that in order to
bring Mr, Gogdere within the Compafs of the In-
dictment, he muft appear to have been prefent,
as an Abcttor, at the Perpetration of the Mur-
der. The Law is extremely clear in this Parti-
cular, but then it is as clear, that if feveral Per-
fons are engaged in a Defign of murdering ano-
ther, and one of the DParty ftands upon the
watch, at the Room or Houfe-door, whilft the
reft actually commit the Murder, he s, 1n the
Judgment of the Law, prefent at the Murder,
and as much aPrincipal in itas the reft: and the
Law is the fume, though he {tood at a confide-
rable dittance from the Place where the Murder
was committed, as at the Gate or the Lane’s
Iind; for it is not necefliry he fhould be
Confpetn, if near enough at hand to embolden hus
Accomptices in the Murder, through the Hopes
of prefent Affiftance, or Security from the Per-
fon upon the watch.  And fo it is exprefsly lud
down, in Lord Chief-Juftice Hele’s Hiftory of
the Pleas of the Crown, in the Chapter of Pesit-
Treafon 5 where he fays, that if a Wife or Ser-
vant con{pires with a Stranger to kill the Huf-
band or Mafter, and be in the fame Houfe with
the Stranger whilft he commits the Murder, the
Wife or Servant is guilty of Petit-Treafon,
though not in the fime Room where the Murder
was committed, The fame Doétrine is laid down
in fecond Hawkins’s Pl. Cor. g12. (whom asa
living Author I cite, only for the fake of
the Authoritics he has been at great Pains in col-
leting.) And the Cafe of Lord Dacre is full in
point: My Lord Dacre, with Manfz! and feveral
others, went by Night into another’s Park, un-
Jawfully to kill Deer ; my Lord waited aboutthe
Park-Gate upon the watch, whilft the reft went

a quarter of a Mile into the Park, where they
| met
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et and killed the Keeper; Lord Dacre, thougli he looked upon as difordered in his Senfes; and

at fo grear Diftunce when the Keeoer was killed,
was adjudg’d a Princinal 1o the Murder, and ac-
cordingly died for it.  And agreeable to this,
was hkewife the Cafe of Berry, (the Porter of
Scmzrfet-Hoife) who was concerned with Green,
1Ji and others, 10 the Murder of Sir Edmad-
Bury Godfrey s lome of them way-laid that wor-
thy Magtltrate, and having inticed him into the
vard lading to Semerfet Houfe, Green, Hill and
others itrangled him. Berry was one of their
Gung, and whillt the others were committing the
Murder, {tood at a great diftance from them on
the watch, upon the Stairs leading to the upper
Court of Somerfet-Honfe : he was Indidled with
Green and Hilly as being prefentand abetting the
Murder, and upon this Lvidence was convicted
.nd executed. Gentlemen of the Jury, in the Cale
row before you, 1t is fully made out 1n Proof,
that the Decealed was under one continuing armi-
ed Force, from the Inftant of his being feized to
ehat of his Death; and that his Brother (the Pri-
{oner Mr. Gosdere) put and kept him under that
Force, Then, Gentlemen, Mr. Goodere's dif-
placing Buchana from the Cabbin-door, and
placing himfelf there in his ftead, with the drawn
Sword in his Fland 3 Mabony’s entering into, and
being let out of the Cabbin, whillt Mr. Goedzre
kept Guard at the Door of ity Mr. Gosdeie wav-
ing his Sword at Macguins, and handing mthe
Candle ; the dying Outcries of his Brother (which
could not but reach his Ears, thought not his
Heart) and other black Ingredients in this dread-
ful Cafe, are an undeniable Proof that Mr. Goodcre
was concerned with Maboiy and W/bite as their Ac-
complice in his Brother’s Murder, and took his
Seand at the Cabbin-door with no other Intent
than to embolden and affift them in the Perpe-
tration of that cruel A&, and keep off others
front coming to his Brother’s Reliet, or from
difturbing them in the fatal Bufinefs they were
sbout,  Under which Circumftance he is guiley
in the fame deoree as Mabony 3 and in the Lye
of the Law looked upon to have been as much
prefent at his Brother’s Death (as an Abettor of
the Murder) as if he had ftood by the Bed-fide
.nd held the Sword over his Head, whillt Mabony
was (frangling him. 3o thit, Gentlemen, Iap-
pichend we have made oood the Inditment a-
oainft both the Prifoners, by clear and convin-
cing Evidence 5 and therefore doubt nor but their
Guile will ftand recorded to future Ages by the
Jultice of your Verdict.

Mr. Shephard. Mr. Recorder, will you pleafe
to indulze me a2 Word as to the Point of Law ¢
Mr. Vernon mentions, in the Cafe of the Park
that he hath taken notice of, the Lord Dacre and
his Party came by Nightunlwtully to kiil Deer,
and therefore the Law prefumed they all came
with an intent to oppofc all that {liould hinder
them in that Defign; and {o when one killed the
Keeper, it muft be prefumed the Act of all, be-
caufe purfuant to that intent. Butr whether the
prefent Cafe is circumftanced as that Cufe, ought
to be confidered. 1 do admit that Mr. Goodere
was down in the Cock-pit at the time this Fadt
was done, and he was certainly obliged (as hath
been obferved) by the Law of Nature to take
cire of his Brother. But if he had no other In-
tention of carrying him on board the Ship, than
to fecure and take care of him asa Perfon whom

[

the Lord Dacre's.

look upon his Brother to be fo ——

with a view of reducing him to Reafon ¢ then
furcly Mr. Goodere’s Cafe is very différent front
And that Mr. Gesdere did

Ir. Recorder. M. Shepbard, you are going, off

fromy the Point of Law to Mateer of Fact;
fhall charge the Jury, that it they behieve Mr.
Goodere ftood at the Cabbin-door 1n order to pre-
vent any Perfons coming, who might have pre-
vented the Murder, or to encouraae thofe within
the Cabbin in the Bufinefs they were about, they
muft find him guilty on this Indictinent 5 other-
wife they muftacquit him.

Mr. Shepbaid. If he was not there with that

Intention, hecaunot be guilty 5 and in this Cide
no fuch Intention appears.

M. Recorder. His Intention is Mattetr of Fadt;

which muft be left to the Jury on the whole
Ewidence,

Gentlemen of the Fury,
HE Prifoners at the Bar, Matthew Mabosy
and Samnel Goadere, Ltand indicted for the
Murder of Sir ¥ebn Diuncley Goodere. And the
IndiGtment charges that Maboiry {trangled Iiing
and that the Prifoner Gsodere was prefent, aiding
and abetting him in the Faét,  They are both
charged as Principalsin the Murder.  For, Gen-
tlemen, in the Eye of the Law, the Perfon who
is prefent, aiding and abetting, is as much a Prin-
cipal in the Murder, as the Perfon who actually
commits the Fa&. Whether the Prifoners, or
either of them, be guilty in manner charged in
the Indi®ment, you are to determine upon the
Evidence you have heard.

The Evidence has been very long 5 but T will
endeavour to lay the material Partsof it before
you in fuch a light, asmiay belt afift you in your
prefent Enquiry. |

>Tis out of all doubt, that Str Foln Dincley
Goodere was firangled on board the Rudy Man of
War in King-read, in the Night between the
eighteenth and nineteenth of Famuary laft.  And
therefore what paft at that time, which may af-
fec the Prifoners, or either of them, as théy ftand
charged on this Indittment, will deferve yout
principal Attention. Butas the Profecutors have
(very properly I think) gonc pretey far back in
their Jividence, in order to fhew by what means
Sir Yabn was got on board, 1t will be necellary
for you to take that Part of the Evidence like-
wifeinto Confideration,

The firlt Witnefs is Mr. Chamberlayne, who
tells you, that about three ‘Weeks before the
Murder happened, Mr. Goodere defired him to
ufe his good Offices with Mr. Farrit Sitth a
Friend of Sir Fobn’s, in order to bring about a
Reconciliation between Sir Fobn and him.

Mr. Smithtells you, that Mr. Chamberlayne did
apply to him for that Purpofe ; and afterwards
brought Mr. Geodere to his Houfe on the fainé
Frrand : And that Mr. Goederethen repeated the
{ame Requeft Mr. Chamberlayne had belore made
 his Behalf. He fays he propofet the matter
to Sir Fobn, who with fome Difficuity con{ented
to give Mr. Goodere o Meeting; which wasfix’d
for Tuefday the 13th of Sanuary, at M. Smiths
Houfe in the Colledge-Green, of which Mr. Gooderé
had timely Notice. That on Tuefday the 13th,

Sir Yobni rode up to his Door, and having juft’
2 alighted”
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aliphted and acquainted him that he could not at
that time ftay; but that the next Time he
came to Town, which would be the Saturday or
Sunday following, he would meer his Brother ;
he mounted his Horfe, and went off, attended
by his Servant, both armed with Piftols. Fe
fays, thaton the fame Day he mer with Mr.
Goodere, and acquainted him, that Sir 7obn would
be again at his Houfe on Saturday or Sinday; and
1t was then agreed that Mr. Good ¢ [hould have
noticc when Sir Johy came. e fays, thaton
Sunday Morning the 18th of Fauraiy Sir joui
fent him word, that he would be at his Houfe
that Day, atany IHour he fhould appoint 5 and
accordingly Three in the Afternoon was ap
pointed.  He fays, that the fame Morning he
pave WIr. Goodere Notice of the Appomntment,
U'hat 1 the Afternoon Sir Yebn and Mr. Goedere
met at his Houfe, where mutual Civilities pafled
between them ¢ That Sir Fobi focon took his
Leave, the Witnelsand Mr, Geadeie waiting on
him to the Door,  He fays, that he prels®d M.
Goodere to ftay longer 5 and faid to him, 1 hope
I have done greac Things.  To which Mr.
Goodere reply’d with fome Limotion, By God this
will not do 5 and immediately followed Sir Fobir
down the Flill.  He fays, that ftanaing at his
Door he obfervedaCompany of Sailors gathering
about Str Fobu, and heard Mr. Goodere fay to
them, Is Ae ready, oris i ready ? (heis not, [
believe, pofitive, what were the Words ;) To
which lome of the Sailors anfwered, Yes, Sir.
Whereupon the whole Company went haitily off,
fome towards the Busfs, others towards the Lsceer
Green s and Mr, Gosdere follow’d them by the
Butts.  Mr. Si:th had no Sufpicion at that time
that the Sailors were oflering Violence to Sir
Fehn, and fo made no farther LEnquiry into the
matter ; *tilla Soldier, who islikewife produced as
a Witnels, told him what happen’d at the Barge.
The next Wimnels they produced 1s Maarice
Ilstds, who, it feems, keeps the IFhite-Hart
Alehoufe at thel”. - of the Colledze-Gireen : And,
Gentlemen, you will obferve, that from the
Front Windows of that Houfe, one may havea
View of Mr. Smith’s.  And he eells you, that
on Monday the 12th of Fanuary laft cthe Prifoners
at the Bar came to ns Floufe 5 that Mr, Geodere
defired to fee an upper Room, over the Parlour,
fronting the Street 5 and having feen 1t, faid,
he would come the next Morning and drink
Coftee 1 that Room.  Accordingly, the next
Morning he came {(early for that time of the
Year,; before the Windows were opened, or
Fires lighted 3 his Drefs fo different from what
he wore the Day before, that the Wienefs did
not at firft recolledt him. But, it feems, he
changed his Clothes after he came chither.  He
feeny’d willing to drink his Coftee 1n the Pariour;
but being defir'd to walk vp ftairs, he went into
the Room he had pitch’d upon the Day before.
Soon afterwards the Prifoner Mabony, with three
other Perfons, came 1n; and after them, five or
fix more, Thelfe People, Gentlemen, were not
all together 1n one Room; but they were all en-
tertain’d at My, Goodeore’s Expence. The Witnefs
tells you, that Mr. Goeedrie ordered they fhould
be entertain’d ; and at going away paid the whole
Reckoning, Ile lays, that while the Company
was at his Houle, MNr, Goosere above ftairs, and
others below, Siv Febin Dineley Goodere rode by
trom Mr, Smith’s, attended by his Servant 5 and
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that as they pafled by, Mr. Geedeie called oyt 14
the People below, Look well at him, but dog;
touch him.,  He fays further, that on Swiday the
18th of Fanuary, Mabory came to his Mool iy
the Morping, and defired him that if he f1w ¢l
Gentleman in the black Cap (by which Deferip.
tion it appears Sir Yobn was meant) go towards i
Green, he would fend a Porter to him at 2 Pyl
lick Howle in Marfb-firect : That n the Afser.
noon Alubeny came again, with a greac mupy
other People, all appearing by cheir Drefs o Iy
Salors,  And that as the Deceafed walked by th
Houfe, they ail rufl’d out and went off,  }i.
coes, I think, no farther in his Evideace 5 for
he feems to be too much concern®l for bi;
Reckoning and his Tankard, to mind any thisz
that paffed afterwards,

The next Evidence 1s Thomas IWilliams, who
belongs to the Ruby. e fays, that on Sctindy
the 15th, he brought up the Barge from Kiigz.
read 3 and was order’d by Mr, Gocdore to Jeavs
two Hands aboard the Barge, and twke cight of
the Crew to the [Fhire-Heit Alehoule on th
Colledze Greciry and there watt for him ¢ for, faid
he, I have a Gentleman to go on board me,  He
accordinely went to the [Fbite [art with his Men,
and there tound Mabeny and four or five People
belonging to the Firnon Privatcer.  He fys, h
had not been long there, before the Compa.
ny ruthed out of doors: Upon which he 1ol-
lowed, and found they had laid vielent hands
on the Deceafed, and were carrying him on
board the Barge 5 aiving our, that he had mwr-
dered a Perfon on board the Ship, and th
they were carrying him thither in order, as they
pretended, to bring hun to Jultice, e wlis
you, that the Priloner Mabony was very ac-
tive In this OQutrage; and that the Prioner
Goodere vias prefenr, feeing and hearing all thi
paffed.  He likewtle gives you an Account of the
Converlation that pafled between Sir Fobir and
the Prifoner Goodere, alter they were In the
Barge s and, among other Things tells you, that
upon the Deceafed’s faying, You are carrying
me on board to murder nie 5 the Prifoner Geeder:
anfwer'd, No, I don’t intend to do fo, butl
would have you make your Peace with God, This
Witnefs fpeaks lictle to what pafs’d after they came
on board the Ship; for, fays he, Ihad been em-
ploy’d all Day, and went To-bed early.  But he
teils you, that in the Night he heard a very un-
b{ual Notife on board 3 and that about Two tn the
Morning, he faw the Prifoner Goodere go down
the Ladder leading to the Purfer’s Cabbin,——
You have neard, Gentlenien from the Witnefles,
whom I fthall mention prefently, that the Murder
was committed in this very Cabbin,

The Profecutors then called feveral Witnefivs,
Sciitnel Tiivet, Thoinas Coarinbury, Mrs, Daizy,
and Williaw Dupree s who all fpeak to the man-
ner of carrying Sir fobi from the Colledge- Grezi 0
the Place where the Barge lay,

Thele Witneflis agree 1n general, that he was
rreated with great Rudenefs by the Company m
whole Hands he was. But, as the Priloner
Goodere admits, that he did ke his Brother on
board ; and, as Meleay endeavours to excufe the
part hie had in 1t, by alledging that he was under
Command; I need not be very particular m
repeating the Crrcumftances attending this part
of the Aflair. Orly, Gentleinen, it may be
proper for you to obferve, that the Pretence

2 given
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given out [0 b]ingl the People who enquired into
the meaning of this Oatrage, was, that the Gentle-
man bad committed & Murder on board the Ruby,
And that when Sir Fobn was on board the Barge,
and calling out for Hclp to the People on fhore,
telling them his Name, and begging them to e
his Friead Mr. Farrit Smith know what had hap-
pen’d o him tllf_l’_rlfm‘wr Goodere at that inftant
ftopt kis Mouth. This Circumftance is prov’d by
three of thefe Watnefies,

The next Set of Witnefles who have beep
called, are Perfons belonging to the Rady., And
from them you have an Account of what pafled

from the time Sir Febi was brought on board to
the time of the Murder.

The arlt 15 Theodore Court, the Mafter of the
Ridvy and he tells you, that about feven in the
Fvoning Sir Fobu was brought on board, and
immeditely by Mr. Geoaere’s Order carried down
into that part of the Ship which is called the
Cockpit, and fecured in the Purfer’s Cabbin, and
a Centinel fet on him. e tells you further, that
Mr. Gesdere, as foon as he came on board, faid
to I'm and the other Company prefent, I have
brought a Mad-man on board. And, Gentlemen,
you will oblerve, that the Ship’s Crew were made
to entertain an opinion, that Sir Febn was mad 5
fiys Mr. Geodere, don’t mind what he fays, he is
mad.  This, all the Witneffes agree . And
you may remember too, that when the poor
Gentleman was dragg’d and hurried along towards
the Barge, then he had murder’d 4 Man on board
the Ruby, Now he is brought aboard, where
that Pretence cannot ferve, he s a Mad-man, and
mut be confin’d.  This Witnefs was prefent the
next Morning when the Purfer’s Cabbin was
broke apen, and Sir Fobn was found there mur-
dered : upon which, he fays, Mr. Gosdere was
made a Prifoncr.  But he tells you, that before
this, Mr. Goodere exprefled a great Inclination to
{1il that very Morning; and upon his reprefent-
ing to him the Danger of attempting the Brifto/
Channel without a Pilot, he anfwer’d, if I can
but ger as low as the Holms 1 don’ care,

This Witnefs was afl’d a Queftion by Mr.
Geocdere, touching the Place where the Ruby was
moor’d, at the time the Falt in queftion was
committed ; and he fays, that fhe then lay in
King-Road, and has defcribed her feveral Bear-
ings to Ports bead Point, the Denny, and the
Hele’'s Mouth, But, Gentlemen, 1t will not be
material in the prefent Cafe, m what part of Azig-
Rsed the Ship then lay, 1if you are fatisfied from
the Ioviden.ce you have heard, that King- Road 1s
in the County of this City, becaufe it 1s admitted
by the Prifoner; and indeed it 1s too plain to be
denied, that the Ship was then in King- Road,

The nexe Witnels s Duncan Buchanan, who
was one of the Company at the WWhite-Hert Ale-
houfe, on Tuefday the 13th; and he confirms
what [Z¢bls told you, that when Sir Fobu and his
Servant rode by, the Prifoner Goeders call'd to
Nabeny and the Company at the Fbite-fiart,
and bid ’em mind him well, but not to touch
him. He fays too, that Mr. Goodere at the fame
time order’d fome of the Company to {ollow Sir
Fohi.  He {peaks much to the fame purpole as
the lalt Wiwefs, touching the bringing Sir jofu
aboard, and carrying him into the Purfer’s Cab-
bin; and adds, that two Bolts were put on the
Out-fide of the Cabbin Door by Mr. Gesdere’s
Orders. He tells you, that he was the Centinel
]_')]HCEd at the Cabbin-door b}f Mr. Gogdere, who,
you are 1o take notice, had then the Commind
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ol:‘ the Ship; and fays, that about Twelve at
Night he was fent for into the Captain’s Cabbin,

where he found both the Prifoners at the Bar to-
gether. That Mr. Goedere enquirtd of  him
whether his Brother made an |
believe he is wet in his Feer, Pl carry lim a
Pair of clean Stockings? That between One and
['wo the Prifoner Goodere came down to the
Cock-pir, and liften™d fome time ar the Cabbin-
door, where Sir Fobn was; and foon afterward
took the Sword from him, and order’d htm up
to the Deck .
Door, : [ at being ek he faw the
Prifocr sty 50 dow the Lo

hony Ladder towards the
Purfer’s Cabbin, and is politive he went into the
Cubbin s the Prifoner Grodere ftanding at the
lame ume Centinel ar the Door,  He tells you
that a fhort time after this he heard a great noile
and flruggling in the Cabbin, a Puerion Crying
Murder, likeone going intoa Fic: that, Il]1in]~:t:
was his Ixpreflion.  This Noife, he judges, con-
tinued four or five Minutes ; and is pofitive that
the Prifoner Gosdere flood at the Door all thae
time, with the Sword in his Hand, [He fis, that
after the Noife in the Cabbin ceas’d, he fiw

y noife, and faid I

and {tood himfelf as Centinel ac the

e
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Prifoner Goodere hand 2 Candle into the the Cili-

bin; and that he, fecing Mr. Gosdere had no Lioke
with him, lighted a Candle at the Lanthorn upon
Deck, and wus going to carry it down 3 upon
which he fays Mr, Goodeie waved the Sword to-
wards him, faying, Keep back, ftay where you
e fays, that foon afterwards the Prifoner
Goodere call’d for 2 Lighe, detiverd back the
Sword to him, lock’d the Cabbin-Door, and
put the Key in his Pocket s and faid, if my Bro-

ther malkes any more notile, let me know of it,

The next Witnefs is Dawniel 17eller, the Cap-
penter of the Ruby : He agrees in the main with
the two former Witnefles, touching the bringing
Sir Fobr aboard, the carrying him into the Pur-

fer’s Cabbin, and putting the Bolts on the Door
and gtves an account of the Converfudion he had

with Sir Fobirn the Cabbin while the Bolts were
faftening on: from which it fecms natural 10
conjecture, that Sir Yelu expeled he thould have
foul play for his Life. He did not ftay long with
him s for 1t feems nobody was to vilit the poor
Gentleman but Afelony, He fays, he broke open
the Cabbin-Door next Morning, and found Sir
Fobi dead, and ollerv’d fome Blood abour his
Mouth and Nofe; which, Gentlemen, i1s what

may be expedted n cafe a Perfon 1s {trangled.
‘The nexe Witnefs is Edwward Fones, the Cooper
of the Rudy 5 and he tells you, that on the 7o/
dcy before the Fact in queltion was commirtted,
My, Gosdere order’d the Purfer’s Cabbin to be
clear’d out; for, faid he, I thall bring a Gentle-
man aboard, e fays, that foon aficr Sir 7ol
was brought aboard, Mr. Geodere came down to
the Purfer’s Cabbin, and ofter’d him a Dram of
Rum, and alfo perfuaded him to make ufe of
fome to chafe his Leg, which it feems had re-
ceived fome hurt that Day.  He fays, that Mr.
Goodere, Tpeaking of Sir Fobis to the People pre-
fent, faid, Don’t mind what he fays, he’ll be
well enough again. He tells you, that about
eight o’clock he went to bed in the Slop-Room,
which, it feems, is parted from the Purfer’s
Cabbin by a thin Deal Partinon.  That before
he went to fleep, he heard what pafied in che
Cabbin, particularly the Difcourfe between Sir
Febn and the Priloner Aabony, which T need
not repeat to you. And fays likewile, that
he heard Sir Fobn praying to God to deliver
him
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him out of his prefent Diftrefs, and exprels
hinafelf as a Man fenfible of his prefent Danger,
Lie tells you, that betweeen Two and Three 1n
the Merning, his Wife, who happencd then to
be aboard and in bed with him,  waked him,
and that he then heard a grear Struggle in the
Cabbin, Sir Jobu crying out, asa Perlon in greac
Confufion and Dittrels, Flore™s Twenty Guimeas,
talee it, take ity mult [die? Fle fays, that ina
lictie time Wl wasquiet, from which he concluded
the Genteman was difpatch’d 5 apd thena Light
was brought into the Cabbins upon this he fays,
he got up vpon his Kaces, and peep’d through
4 Crevice in the Partition, and faw the Priloner
Mabony and one Charles [17hite villing the Poclets
of Sir Fohi, who was lud upon the Dod, m thf:
Polture he has deferibed to you, and mationles,
He fays, at this time he jaw a | Land at Sir Jobu's
I'hroat, and heard a Perfon fay, "Tisdone, and
well doney  he cannot fay who the Perlon was
whote Fland was at Sir Fedar's Throat, but be-
lieves *twas not the Fland of 77bite, or Adubony,
for it was a white Fand, and not like either of
theirs.  He fays that he lay in tear of his own Lite
(as indeed I think he had great Reafon) *all abou
IFour in the Morning, and then the Men belong-
ing to the Yawl being called vp, he gotup too,
and acquainted the Lieutenant with what pafled,
and confulted with bim and others of the Officers
alioer apprehending Mr. Geodeie, which was at-
terwatdo cone mthe Manner you have heard,

The noxt Wienels is Aarzaiet Foics, Wile of
the Lt Wirnels,  And fhe gives much the fame
Account of the bringing Sir fehn aboard, and
B, Goodere's offering bim Rum, as her Hufband
does.  And fiys farther, that Mr, Geodere talk’d
of ordering Shetsfor Sir Febn’s Bed. But, Gen-
dlemen, it does not appear to me that any Sheets
were ordered, or indeed any furt of Rcf'rt:iﬂnut:nt
provided for him, excepta fingle Dram of Rum,
which he refufed, having toiborn the Ule of
lrong Liguors o b forts for a confiderable
dme.  Tiis Witieh likewife gives an Account
of the Converfation between Mdabory and Sic
Yetity and tells you, toat when Mabery offer’d
to pull off Sir Fotw’s Stockings, he lund to him,
Pray don’t firip me till Iam dead.  She fays,
that about T'wo in the Morning fhe heard a-
beay defive Sir Fobn to compole himielf to fleep
and foon afterwards the Light was put out, and
the heard Adabony fay, You muft lic il and not
ttir for your Lite ;and immediately fhe fays there
was great {trugeling in the Cabbin,  two Perions
whilpering, and Sir fsbu crying Murder, and
kecking i his Throat (as fhe exprelies it) lo
that the concluded they were {lrangling him.
At this time, fhe fays, fomebody on the outfide
of the Door olfer’d to come in;  upon which,
thole in the Cabbin faid, Danime you Negro,
keep out, She {ays, Ehc Npiih atid Strugglings
continued for a fhort time afterwaras, and then
all wis quicr, and a Light was brought nto
the Cibbin.  She then faw the Prifoner Afahoiy,
and Charles M bite, the Perfon her Hufhand fpoke
of, nilling S Febi's Pockets.  The particular
Circumltances fhe menttons in this part of her
Evidence [ nced not repeat,  She fays, cthat afeer
this was over, they went out ot the Cabbin, and
the Door was lock’d and bolted 3 and the heard
.one, of the Perfons fay, Which way fhall T gc,
where fhall I run ? Yo which the other anfwered,
. Follow me, my Boy.
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The next Witnels is Jame's Dudgeon, who, i¢
lcems, s the Surgeon’s Mate.  And he tells yo,
that when Sir febn was broueht aboard, he Wig
carried directly to the Purfer’s Cabbin, and 4
Centined placed over him. Says Mr. Goadere 14
this Wirnels, Doctor, I have brought a Mad.mgp
on board, you muft do the belt you can wig,
him; pray go and feel his Pulfe now ; or yg,
may ler 1t alone ull to-morrow, the firlt Njah,
wiil be the worlt with him.  The Doétor did Eo
bue was told by the Centnely that he had Onﬁ:r;
to et no body in but AZebony 5 however, he went
i and fele Sir Fobi’s Pulle, and found no Dif:
order there but what might be occafioned by the
[atipue he had undereone that Afternoon, s
Witnels, who, 1t feems, Jodg'd in a part of the
Cockpit near the Purler’s Cabbin, fays, that aboye
‘T'wo in the Mornmg he heard an unulual Sty in
the Cock-pit, and overheard Aelony, who wis
in the Purfor’s Cabling fay, You mull i [hil],
dor’t ftir; and immediately there was a orear
Bultic in the Cabbin, Sir 7sdn crying, Murder,
and faying here’s Twenty Guineas, take it, take i,
He fays, that by the Noe he heard, and from
other Circumflances he has mention’d, he then
apprehended that fomebody was flrangling the
ant!::m&n. Jefore the Noife was quite over, he
lays he heard the Lock of the Cabbin go 5 upon
which fomebody within cry’d, Damnye, keep the
Door tuft.  The Witels hearing chis, call’d
out and vnquired what was the Caule of the Noife
and he fays that the Perfon who then ftood at the
Door anfwered, *Tis nothing ac all.  He dots
not lty who the Perfon was, but fays he is fure
that the Prifoner Goodiye was in the Cock-pit
while the Outcery was in the Cabbin.  Soon alter
the Noife was over, he fays, a Lizht was called
for, and carried into the Cabbin ; and in a liude
time he heard the Tread of People running out
of the Cabbin, and is fure he heard the Prifoner
Malony fay, Which way thall I g0 To which
Antwer was made, You may go by the Ship-
fide. FHe fays, about this time a Perlon {tpt
up the Ladder from the Cock-pit, towards the
Dccl{, and he then heard the Prifoner Geodere
fay, It my Brother makes any more Noife, let
me hear of it. Thefe Words, Gentlemen, if
you believe Duncan Buchonain, were fpoken to
him at the top of the Ladder, It feems indeed
probable, that Mr. Geodere was follicitous to know
whether Str Jobz made any Noife or no, after
this time ; for this Witnefs tells you, that Mr.
Goedere’s Servant, fome time afterwards, came
to kim 1o enquire whether he bhad lately heard
any Noife in the Cabbin ? Yes, fays the Witnefs,
I heard {fomething at the Lock.  This Noife che
Witnels fuppofes was occalioned by a Cat which
had been lock’d 1n the Room.  This Witnels in-
{pected the Body the nexe Morning, and tells
you, that he found grear Impreflions about the
Neck, and the Marks of Nuils and Fingers on
it 5 and upon the whole, 15 of opinton that Si
Fobu died by Strangling,  And, Gentlemen,
whether a Rope was made uie of in the Bulinels,
or whether 1t was done by thrulting their Fingers
between the Neck and Cravar, and fo training
the Cravat clofe abour the Neck, will not be ma
terial ; for though the Inditment charaes that it
was donc with 2 Rope, yet if it appears on the
Evidence, that the Deceas™d was ftrangled by any
Means wnatever, fuch Evidence will be fufficient
to maintain the Indictwert,

The
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The next Witnefs, and the laft that has been
examined touching what. was done on board the
Ship, 15 Williaws Macguinis, the Centinel at the
Gun-room. And hc.tells you, that after Twoiin
he Morning, the Prifoner Goodere went down in-
o the Cock-pit 3 that foon afterwards the Prifoner
Maboy pu’d by hims he fays he would have
kept him back, but ﬂ‘fribaz:_y gave hin ;H Language
and pals’d on, and call’'d to another Perlon to fol-
low him. He fays, that Duncair Buchanan was or-
dered up to Deck, andﬁth:u: he faw Mr. Goodere
{tanding at the Purfer’s Cabbin-Door with a Sword
his Hand ; and remembers, that when he

drawn 1 O 3
offer’d to come near the Cabbin, Mr. Goodere or-

Jer’d him to keep back : This was at the time the
Noife and Qutcry was 1n the Cubbin. He fays fur-
ther. he faw Mabony go into the Cabbin before the
Noife was heard there 3 and, tll:{t‘abOLIE Three 1n
the Morning, he faw both tIH:‘ Pritoners at the Bar
go up the Ladder from the Cock-pit to the Deck
together. ' 3

The Profecutors then examinad two Witneffes
touching the Gold Watch which has been produced.
One of them, Sarab Crlliford, fays that the Prifoner
Mabony, the Day he was apprehended, deliver’d
the Warch to her, defiring the would put it by for
him; thatthe, upon hearing that Mabony was taken
up for the Murder, 1n a Surprize, threw it into the
Vaule.  ‘The other Witnefs tells you, that he, by
Order of the Magiftrates, open’d the Vault and
tyund the Watch there.  This Watch the Profecu-
tors would fix upon the Prifoner Goodere, and to
that end, it was thewn to Theadoie Conrt, who was
examin’d before, to other Pomnts.  And he fays, he
cannot be pofitive, but believes 1t to be Mr., Gos-
dre’s Watch, having often feen it, or fuch a one,
hanging up In his Cabbin. T_he Profecutors then
produced a Handlicrchie_ﬂ which was taken out of
Mahony’s Pocket the Night he was apprehended ;
it appears to be a little bloody, but I don’t fee what
ufe they make of that Circumftance.

The next Piece of Evidence the Profecutors went
to, was Maboiy’s Examination and Conteffion,which
has been read to you. ‘This, Gentlemen, 1s very
proper Evidence, and ought to have s Weight
with you, as far as 1t concerns Mabony himielt 5 but
with regard to the other Prifoncr Gaodere, you are
to lay no manner of Strefs‘upon it, it is no Lvi-
dence again{t him.

The Profecutors then proceeded to fhew, that
King-read, where the Ruby lay at the time the Faét
was committed, is within the County of Briffel. 1
think indeed that fome Evidence of that kind was
proper to be given, for your Satisfaction, and to
that end they have called Mr. 7¥7nt and Mr. Loteden,
two ancient Officers well known to you all.  And
they fay, in general, that Kiug-road has always been
eftecemed to be within the County of Briffel.  And
they oo farther and fay, that they have conftantly,
as Occafion required, cexccuted Procefs of all kinds
in King-road 3 Warrants from the Mayor and Al-
dermen, Procefs from the Mayor’s and Sheriff’s
Court, and Warrants grounded on Writs from a-
bove, dire€ted to the Sheriffs of Briffol. And, Gen-
tlemen, I muft fay, that tho’ another fort of Lvi-
dence might have been given, touching the Bounds
of this County by Water, I know no Evidence fo

proper to prove the Bounds of any County, as the
conftant Exercife of Jurifdition in the Place in

queftion, where that fort of Evidence can be had.

I think, I have repeated to you the material Parts of

the Evidence which has been given againft the Prifo-

ners at the Bar; and you will now confider what they

have offered by way of Defence to this Charge.
You. VI,
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As for Mabony, Tdo not hear hint fay any thing
by way of proper Defence, nor has he called & fin-
gle Witnefs. He hopes indeed, that it will be taken
by way of Excufe, that he was a poor prefs’d Scr-
vant, and acted by Command. But, Gentizmen,
if you believe the Evidence which has been giverd
agamft um, no Command of any Superiour what-
focver (fuppoling that to have been an Ingredient
In his Cafey will excufe him.
~ M. Goodere fays, that his Brother was 4 Luna
.“Ck’ and that he being his only Brother, thoushe
it his Duty to take Care of him in that Condition ;
that il:l order thereto he had endeavour’d to eet &
Lodging m this City, where he was to be contin’d
under the Care of the Priloner Mabony, who was
to have 5/ a Month for his Attendance on him.
That not being able to get a Lodging for the Pur-
pofe m the City, he took him on board the Rudy,
n order to have him taken proper Care of there,
He denies that he ever confented to the Murder, or
had any Knowledge of 1t 5 and infifts on the great
Improbability there is that he fhould be concern’d
in the Muider, {ince, he fays, he knew that Sir Yo/
had cut off the Lintail of the Family-Iiftate, and had
actually made hus Will, by which he had devifed
the Zftate to another Branch of the Family. So
that, fays he, Sir Jobu dying while this Will ftands,
1 have no Chance for the Iiftate: whercas, as long
as he lived, my Chance as Heir at Law continued
for he might have chang'd his Mind, and alter’d
or deftroy’d his Will,

The firlt Witnefs he call’d was Mis. Gethins,
who, I fuppofe, lets Lodgings in the City 5 and
the fays, that Mr. Gosdere never made a Sccret of
his Defign, of confining his Brother as a Lunatick
and that about three Weeks before this Matter hap-
pen’d, he fpoke to her for a Garret in her Houfc
for that Purpole ; but {he remembers no Difcourie
the Prifoner had with her about Mabony.

Mr. Goodere then call’d twoWitnefles in telation to
fomething which was open’d againft tm, (but not di-
rectly prov’d by any of the Witnefles call'd by the Pro-
{ecutors) touching his fending Mabany and 7)ite a-
way in the Yawl theMorning the Fact was commutted,

They were Mr. Marfb and Mr. Dagg.

Mr. Marfh fays, that on the Sunday in the Af-
ternoon, after Sir Fobn was brought aboard; he was
order’d by M., Goodere to go up in the Yaw! carly
the next Morning, to fetch Letters from the Poft-

fice ; and he tells you that as he was fetting out
on Monday Morning he was inform’d by fonie of
the Ship’s Company, that Mabony and /¥bite were
to o with him.  Upon which he went to the Cap-
tnin to have his Orders 3 for, faid he, 1 never take
any body afhore without leave. And he tells you,
that Mr. Goodere did order him to take #/bite and
Mabony up in the Yawl. He fays, that he had no
Orders to Jand them at any particular Place ; and
that they were put afhore at the Grbd, the ufual
Place of Landing, about fix in the Morning,

Mr. Dagg tells you, that Mabony had charg'd
one Mervin in his Cuftody in an Action for Wa-
ges 3 that the Wedicfday or Thurfday before this
Matter happened he waited on Mr. Goodere from
Mervin, in order to accommodate Matters with
Mabony : And that Mr. Goodere appointed to meet
Mervinon that Affair the Monday foilowing, He can-
not fay, that Mazbouy wastomeet on that day (tho” in-
decd he fays he did rell 2 Gentleman fo)andknows
not of any Bufinefs #/bite had that day 1 Briffel,

Mr. Goodere next called three Witnefles to the
Point of Sir Fobn’s Lunacy. The two firft have
lived with him as Servants, and they give you di«
vers Inftances of an extravagant unaccountable Be-

7 X havioug
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haviour in him ; from which they conclude that he
muft have beena Madman. The other Witnefs fays,
that heknew Sir Fobn for fome Years; andingene-
ral fays that from his Actionshe took him tobe mad.

He <hen called feveral Witneffes, Gentlemen of
‘Worth, who have known him many Years ; and
they all agree in giving him a very good Charadter,
as to his former Life and Converfation : and parti-
ticularly fay, that they always took him to be a
opod-natur’d, well-behav’d Man, and one that me-
vited the Love and Lfteem of his Neighbours, One
of thefe Witnefles, Mi. foicowidy fays, that he was
conftantat Church on Swadays twice a Day, gene-
rally attended the Church-Service, and feldom mif-
{ed attending at the Sacramenr.,

Another of thefe Witnefles, Mr. A/fic/d, having
aiven the Prifoner a good Character, was atk’d
touching Sir Fobn, particularly with regard to his
Sanity 5 and he feems furprifed to hear Sir Fobn
reprefented as a Mad-man ; and tells you, that he
always took him to be a Man of good Underftand-
ing : and goes o far as to fay, that he took him
to be the Man of the beft Senfe in the Fannly,  He
was afked, touching the Prifonct’s having been in-
tormy’d of the Contents of his Drother’s Will 5 and
he tells you that the Prifoner was inform’d ol the

Purport of the Willy but adds, that the Prifoner
declar’d that he did not value the Will: And fays,

that there had been a long Mifunderflanaing be-
tween the Brothers,

Mr. Goodere call’d a Witnels (Mr., Watkins) to
prove that he was inform’d of the Contents of Sir
Febir’s Wil And he tells you, that about halt a
Year, or three quarters of a Year ago, he did in-
form Mr. Goodeiey that Sir Fobu had made his Will,
and had given his Lftate tothe Foots; who, it feems,
arc Nephews to Sir Fobr and the Prifoner. But he tells
you, that the Prifoner then fatd, he thought Sir Fobi
had no Power to make a Will.  He fays, that i dif-
cowrfe about the Willy he {poke it to the Prifoner as
his Opinion, that if Matters could be reconciled be-
eween Sir Folbn and him, that Will would not ftand
long: For, Gentlemen, he likewife fays, that there
hasbeen a long Mif  lerftanding between the Bro-
thers,  This Witnels was likewife afk’d, touching
Sir Febn’s Lunacy, and he feems furprifed to hear
that his Sanity 1s call’d in queftion ; and gives hun
an advantageous Character in other Refpedts too.

This, Gentlemen, 1s the Subftance of the Evi-
dence that has been given on the one {ide and the
other. And though the Evidence has been very
long, and, as you obfcrve, chicfly pointed at
the Prifoner Goodere 5 yet with regard to your pre-
fent Enquiry, the Matter afeer all will hie in a nar-
row compafs. You obferve, Gentlemen, the In-
diétment charges that he was prefent, aiding and
abetting the Murder; and therefore however in-
frumental you may fuppofe him to have been In
procuring the Death of Sir Fobir, by carrying him
on board, and treating him there in the manner
you have heard ; yet if you have not Evidence to
induce you to believe that he was prefent, aiding
and abetiing at the Murder, he will not be guilty
on this Indi¢tment.  But, Gentlemen, you muft not
be deceiv’d by the meer Sound of Words, Itis
not neceflary, in order to render a Perfon guilty
as a Principal in Murder or other I'clony, that he
Thould be in the fame Room, or on the very {pot
where the Fact 1s commutted, or even in fight or
heartng of it ;" If he be engagad in the Defign, and
polts himiclf at the time of the Execution in a pro-
per Station to give Affiftance, 1t need be, or to
prevent a Surprife whereby the Perfons actually
committing the Fact are encouraged in the Perpe-
Y PR r |
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tration of it, he is in the Eye of the Law prefeys
aiding and abetting, and cqually a Principal iy gy
Fact with thole who actually commit it.  Ap .
ftance or two may make this Rule beiter yngl.
flood. If feveral Perfons agree to commiz o Mur.
der on the High-way; or in the open IPlelds, and
one Party of themundertakes to fee the Fact commgs.
ted 5 the others difperfe themielves to their {Lvegg)
Stations, and {tand upon the Watch to PIevent 3
Surprile : they are all equally gutlry, and in )
Fye of the Law prefent at the Fact. So, ifa INup.
ber of People agree to commit a Murder, and to
that end break mto a Houfe, and then difpeife
themlicelves nto feveral Rooms s or, if any of the
Company {tand without, and keep the Door while
the Mucder 1s commutted within, they are all equal-
ly euilty, andin the Lye of the Law prefent, Nay,

tho’ the ortginal Intention might be barely to com-
mit a Robbery, yet, if in Prelecution of that De.-
fign a Murder is commitied, the whole Company,

thofe who {tood upon the Watch, as well as thofe
who commutted the Fact, are all equally guilty and
Principals 1n the Murder.  And therefore, Gep-
tlemen, if, upon the Evidence which has been gi-

ven, you believe that the Prifoner Goadere did ftand
at the Door of the Purfer’s Cabbin while the Mur-
der was commitied, In order to encourage thots
within in the Perperration of the Fact, or to pit-
vent any Affiftance which might have come, vou

muft find him gulty. And, Gentlemen, T muit
obferve to you, that it 15 proved by four Witacflis,

that he was in the Cock-prt while the Cry of Mur-

der was heard 1n the Cabbin,  Two of thefe Wit-

nefles are pofitive that he ttood at the Cabbin-Door
at that time with a drawn Sword in his Hand ; and
that while he was there pofled, he order’d them to
keep back. And one of the fame Witnefles is Jike-
wife pofitive, that foon after the Cry of Murder
ceas’d, Mr. Gecderehanded a Candleinto the Cabhin,

Mr, Goedere indeed has call’d feveral Witnefles,
who have given him an advantageous Charaéter ;
but, Gentlemen, I think it my Duty to tell you,
that tho’ Character ought to have its weight when
Matters are in themielves doubtful, or where the
Charge is fupported by Witnefies of doubtful Cre-
dit; yer in clear Cafes, and when the Credic of
the Witnefles 1s not 1impeach’d, I think Characier
alone ought to weigh very hitde with you. And upon
the whole, 1f youbelieve the Witnefles for the King,
you muftiind him guilty ; if not, you muft acquit him.

As to Mabouy, T think you can have no Difh-
culty if you believe the Evidence of Fones -and
his Wife, and lay any Strefs on his own Con-
fefion ; and 1ndeed he now rather endeavours ta
excule than denies the Fadt.

Then the Fuiy withdiew, to confider of their Verdid s
and after a fhort [pace, veturn’d again.

Clerk of Arvaigns, Gentlemen, anfwer, to your
Names. Chriffopier Bromadse.

Chriftopber Bromadge. Here. [ And fo of the reft.]

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of
your Verdict ? *

Fury. Yes.

Cl. of Ar. Who fhall fay for you ?

Fury., The Fore-man.

Cl. of Arv. Mutthewo Mabony, hold up thy Hand.
You of the Jury, look upon the Prifoner: How fay
you, is Matthew Mabony guilty of the Felony and
Murder, whereof he ftands indicted, or not guilty?

Firy. Guilty.

Cl, of Ar. What Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements had he at the Time of the faid Felony

and Murder committed, or at any Time fince, 0
your Knowledge ? . 1
Fury.
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Tury. None.
Cl. of Arr. Samitel Goodere, hold up thy Hand.

You of the Jury, look upon the Prifoner : How
fayyou, is Samuel Goodere g}ulty of the Felony and
Murder, whercof he {tands indiéted, or not guilty ?
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dere is guilty of the Felony and Murder, - whereof
he ftands indicted ; and that they, nor either of
them, had any Goods or Chattels, Lands or Te-
nements, at the Time of the faid Felony and Mur-
der commiftzds- or at any Tince fince, to your

Fury. Guilty.

Cl.of Arr. What Goods or Chattels, &¢. (as before,

Fury. None. |

Cl. of Arr. I-Icarkm} to your Verdift, as the
Court hath recorded it.  You fay that Masthew
Mabony is guilty of the Felony and Murder, where-
of he ftands indicted : You fay that Samuel Goo-
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Knowledge ; and fo you fay all.

Cl. of Ar. Keeper, take Matthew Mahony and

Samuel Goodere the Prifoners from the Bar, and look
to them ; they ftand convicted of wilful Murder.

Then the Court adjourn’d to the fame Place the
next Morning Light 6 Clock,

for the Murder of Sir John

Dineley Goodere.

N IFriday the 27th of March 1741, Charles

1White was brought to the Bar of the Court,

o0 be arraigned for thc' Murder of Sir Fobn Dincley

Goodere, upon an Indictment found by the Grand

Jury for the City and County of Briffel on the Day
preceding ; and the Court proceeded thus

Cleik of the Arraigus. Charles White, hold up

your Hand. [Which be did.]

Mr. Vernon. May it pleafe you, Mr. Recorder,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am Counfe! for
the King againit the Prifoner at the Bar, who flands
indicted for the Murder of Sir Fobn Dincley Gooderes
and the Indictment charges that one Matthew Ma-
hony (who has already undergone the Juftice of his

Country) ftrangled the Deceafed, and that the Pri-
foner at the Bar was prefent, aiding and abetting

. . . o
htm in the Perpetration of that horrid Fa&t; and
which (if true) will be the fame in confideration of
Law, as if the Prifoner had with his own Hands
{lrangled the Decealed, and actually drawn the fa-
tal Cord which put a pernod to his Life. Gentle-
men, itis with an aking Heart I difcharge this me-
lancholy Task againft the Prifoner, but criminal
Juftice muft be adminifter’d as well as civil, and
the great Safety of the Innocent 1s in the Punith-
ment of the Guilty : And of this the Prifoner may
be affured, that as he now {tands at the Bar for his
Life and Death, and unaffitted by Counfe! in Mat-
ter of Fat, I fhall carefully confine my {elf to the
Letter of my Inftrultions, withoutany Aggravation
of Fa&sor Circumftances, and endeavour fo to dif-
charge my Duty on this melancholy Occalion,: as
that he may have nothing to fear but from Guil,
or to hope but from Innocence.  And, Geatlemen,
as [ am inftructed, Captain Samue! Goodere, late
Commander of the Rudy Man of War, and Bro-
ther of the late untortunate Sir Fobn Dineley Goo-
dere, having on Sunday the eightcenth of Fanuary
latt, with the Afliftance of AMabony and other Ruf-
fians, forcibly feized upon Sir Jebn, and hurried
him on board the Rudy, (which then lay ftationed
in King-read, within the Body of your County)
with a defign of murdering Str fobu ; the Prifoner
(2 private Mariner belonging to the Ruby) was
pitch’d upon by the Captain as 2 Perfon fit to be
concerned with Mabony in the Executton ol that
bafe and barbarous Defign.  And accordingly, on
Monday the nincteenth about One the Morning,
the Prifoner was called up by Mabony to attend the

vou ftand indifted by the Name of Charles
1hite, late of the Parifh of St. Stephen, in the City
of Briffel and County of the fame City, Labourer,
for that you and one Matthew Maboiy, late of the
fime Parith, City and County, Labourer, not ha-
ving the Fear of God, (¢, on the nineteenth Day
of Fanuary, m the fourteenth Year, &9¢. In and
upon one Sir Fobu Dineley Goodeire, in the Peace of
God, &¢. then and there being, felonioufly, volun-
arily, and of your Malice afore-thought, did make
an Adnule ; and that the faid Matthew Mabony, a
certain Cord of the Value, &¢c. about the Neck of
the faid Sir Fobn then and there folonioufly, volun-
tarily, and of his Malice afore-thought, did put
and faften: And that the faid Aatthew Mabony
with the Cord aforefaid, by him fo about the Neck
of the faid Sir Fobn put.and faftened, then and
there, him the faid Siv Fobu felonioully, &9, did
choak and ftrangle; of which faid choaking and
trangling of him the fmd Sir fobu by the faid M-
thewo Mabeny, in Manner and Form aforefaid done
and perpetrated, he the faid Sir Fobn then and
there inftantly died.  And that you the faid Chailes
White, then and there felonioufly, ¢, was prefent,
aiding, abetting, comforting and maintaining the
faid Matthew Mabony in Manner and Form atore-
faid, felonioufly, &c. the faid Sir Fobs to kill and
murder 3 and o that you the faid Charles IWhite,
in Manner and Form aforefud, the faid Sir Folir
then and there felonoully, {Fe. did kill and mur-
der, againft the Peace, {J¢.

How fay’ft thou Charles IFbite, art thou guilty
of the Felony and Murder, whereof thou ftande(t

indicted, or not guilty ¢
Charles White. Not guilty.
Cl. of drr. Culprit, how wilt thou be tried ?
Charles White. By God and my Country.
Cl. of Arr. God fend thee a good Deliverance.
The Court proceeded in like manner as upon the
Indictment againft Mr, Goodere and Mabony 5 and
the Names of the Jury fworn, were as follow:

Fobit Nafh. Willian IWilliams.
Tofeph IVilfon. William drunold,
Sanuel Cave. Tobn Willis.
Villiain Abrabam.  Cornelius Sandford.
Willian fones. Tobn Taylor.
Robert Moody. Lhomas Seed.

Then Proclamation for Information was made,
and the Jury charged with the Prifoner,

Captain 1 his Cabbin, which he did ; and the Cap-
tain after plying the Prifoner pretty plenafully wich
Rum, propofed to him the murdenng of his Bro-
ther, in conjunction with Mabony; and no {ooncr
faid but done, Gentlemen: for this infatwated
Wretch the Prifoner, influenc’d by the ftrong De-
lufion of Wickednefs, and Temptation of miftaken
Gain; and not content with his honeft Wages,
nor confidering that the Wages of Sin are Death,
gave at once nto the monftrous Propofal for the
fake of Plunder.  In a word, Gentlemen, he readi-
ly followed Mabany into the Purler’s Cabbin, where
Sir Fobn lay confined ; and as that unhappy Gen-
tleman had from the time of firft feizing him been
treated as a Malefattor, fo they exccuted him as

7 X 2 juch;
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fuch s for Mabony feiz’d him by the Throat, and
then faftening about his Neck a Rope, which they
had brought with them for the purpofe, ftrangled
him in the Prefence and with the Affiftance of the
Prifoner ; and indeed withour his Affittance, Sir
Yobn being {trong and of an undaunted Spirit,
would probably lave been able to have defended
him{elf againft the Attack of Mabory.  Gentle-
men, no fooner had they robbed Sir Febn of his
Life, but they fell to rifling him of s Watchand
Money; they divided the Spoil between them,
and then betimes in the Morning the Prifoner with
his Accomplice Mehony made off from the Ship,
and took retuge in this City 5 avery unfic Sanctuary
for Ruftians and Murderers, confidering the good
Orderand Government ot the Place, and the con-
ftant Care of its worthy Magittrates in the due Exe-
cution of the Laws,  But Juftice purfued, and will,
I doubt not, overtake him. e was apprehended,
and made an early Confeflion of his Guilt, and
comes now to anfwer for his Delinquency.  Gen-
tlemen, we fhall call the Ship’s Cooper and his
Wife, who heard the Groans and Outcries of the
Decealed, and were Spectators of what pafied m
the Purfer’s Cabbin immediately after this Trage-
dy, and faw th: Prifoner in the very Act of nlling
the Deceafed, almoft at ehe nftant of his Deaih.
We thall alfo lay before you the Prifoner’s own Con-
feffion, on his xamination before the Juftices; and

then, Gentlemen, we doubt not, but you wil be of

opinion, that by the Laws of his Country he ought

to die for his Tranforefion, as fome Atoneiment for

his own Guile, and an Lixample of Jultice to others,
( Edward Feues Tworn.)

Mr. Pernsin. Ld:eard “fones, tell My, Recorder
and the Jury what you know concerning the Death
of Sir Fobn Dinclcy Gosdeie ?

Edivard Fones, On the 18th of Fanuary lalt, at
night, I was in bed with my Wife in the Slop-
roomn, next to the Purfer’s Cabbm down in the
Cockpit in the Ruby Man of War, then lying at
King-road, and Sir 7 -hir Draeley was then confined
in the Purfer’s Cabl.a. T heard him pray to God
to be his Comiorter under his Afllictions; he faid
that he koew he was to be murdered there; and
he praved that it might come to light by one
means of another.  But I took no notice of him,
becanfe T thought hiny a crazy Man, as T had heard
the Captan fay he was,  Afrer that, Tfell afleep;
and, T behieve, about twa or threc of the clock my
Wife waked me, and faid to me, Don’t you hear
the Notle that is made by the Gentleman? 1 be-
lieve they are killing him. I then heard Sie foba
kick, andcry out, Here 1s twenty Guineas, take it,
eake it don’t murder me; muolt [die! muft I die!
Oh my Lifc! and gave feveral Kecks with his
‘[hroat like a dying Man, and then he was il T
would have gotout of bed, but my Wife perluaded
me not, for fear I thould be lilled ton. It was
dark; but a Light was handed 1n te the Purfer’s
Cabbin, and then I got up upen my Knees, and I
could {ee a Light glimmering througzh the Crack of
the Boards; I faw Adabony with a Candle in his
TIand, Sir Felu was lying on his Side.  The Pri-
foner Charles F/pite was there, and he pulied Sir
Fobn to tarn him about, and Zbite fard he could
not get the Watch out of his Pocker; and he
tumbled him up to come at the Moncy, and unbut-
toned his Breeches. T faw him get hold of the
Watch-Chain s and /7ite gave Mabony the Watch,
and 7¥bite put his Hand mone of the Gentleman’s
Pockets, and curfed that there was nothing but
Silver 3 he put his Hand in another Pocket, and
there he found the Gold; he offered it to Maheny,
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but Mabony damned him, and bid him keep ¢ ¢
by and by. #hite pulled out a Picce of Paper
from onc of Sir fehu’s Pockets, and was going 1
read ity but Mabony faid, Damn ye, don’t ﬁa? to
read 1t now.

Mv. Ferioir. Was St Foln dead in appearance
wlien you faw them rifling his Pockets?

j;;":*a:zzf'd Joies. As they were turning him aboy
one of his Legs was crooked, which made me think
he was dead, and that they had killed him iy g
Dark. The next Morning I faw Sir Fokir dead
lying in the Purfer’s Cabbin, and I belicve he wye
{trangled.

My, Recorder. Prifoner, will you afk chis Wi
nefs any Quettions?

Charles IWhite, Pleate you, my Lord, I defire
you will afkk M. Fowes, whether Sir Fobir was liv-
ing or dead when he faw me in the Cabbin firft?

Mr. Recorder, Mr. fones, the Prifoner afks you
whether Sir Fobu was living or dead when you fit
aw him n the Cabbin?

Edward “foncs, Str Fobun was dead when 7)1
turned him about, for they killed him in the dark,
[ heard two Vorces.

Charles IVbite. \Vhether Edward fones faw any
body ftrangling Sir Folu befides Afabory ?

My, Recordeir. "The Witnels docs not fay that he
faw any body ftrangling Sir Fobu, that he fays wa;
done m the Daric: bug, he fays, he heard two Voices
in the Cabbin, and as foon as the Lishe was broveh
in, he faw you rifling 3ir felv's Pockets.

Mr. Jeruon. Call Alargaret Fones.

(Moigarct Foues fworn,)

Mr. Vernen. NMis. Foires, will you give Mr, Re-
corder and the Jury an 2Account of what you know
in relaston to the Deathot Sir Fodir Dincley Gosdere 2

Maigairet Fones. Yes, Sir. On the 18th of Fu-
nuary latt, at Night, I lay on board the Redy Man
of War with my Hufband, and in the Purfer’s
Cabbin, next to where we were in bed, Sir Fobn
wias under Confinement; the Capram faid he wasa
Mad-man, and that he brought um there to fave
him from a Goal.  Abour ten o’clock Adehsiy was
left there with Sir Fobuy Sir Fobn defired him to
ap, but Mabony faid he had Ordersto ftay there to
tike care of him,  About 12 o’clock in the Nighe
I went to fleep; about two o’clock I awaked, and
heard the Gentleman talk to AMabeny, and Mebsiy
perfuaded the Gentleman to go to fleep 5 the Gen-
tleman fard he could not: they talked together a
cood while. I heard fomebody fay to the Gen-
tleman, You muft lie ftill, and not fpeak a word for
your Life; and then I heard a great ftrugghng s
who it was, Idon’tknow. The Gentleman cried
out, Murder! Help, for God’s fake; and made
feveral Kecks in his Throat, as though fomebody
was (tifing him.  Tthook my Huthand, and waked
him. I heard ewo People i the Cabbin wiifpering s
the Gentleman cried out Murder again, Help for
God’s fake! he faid, THere's ewenty Guineas w my
Pockets, take 1, take 1ty mult I die! Oh my
Life! And fomebody in the out-fide oftered to go
into the Cabbin: but one of them within faid,
Leep out, you Negro; and then a great noile was
made, as tho’ the Cabbin would have been boat
down; and then a Candle was brought 1. 1 got
up and look’d through a Crevice: Tfawa Man,
Lelieve it was TPbite, pulled the Gentleman upright.
Mehony had the Candle in his Fland. [ obferved
the other put his Hand inthe Gentleman’s Pockets;
one of them fad, Damn ye, pull oue his Watch:
I faw the Perfon take hold of the Watch-tring,
and pulled it our, and faid to the other, Here thee
take irs and then fearched another Pocket, and

faid,
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fiid, Here’s nothing but Silver: but then he
fearched another Pocket, and faid, Here it is; and
pulled out 2 Purfe. And foon after that I heard
“he Door unbolted, and then I heard Mabony fay,
Where thall I run? And another faid, Follow me,
Bay. And they went upon Deck through the
Hatch-hold.

Mr. Yernon. Did you know the Voice of either
of the two Perfons whom you heard fpeaking to
one .1110[&‘.5‘!‘ ?

Mairaret Foues. Yes, Ili:new Charles Hohite to
Le one of rhe Men by his Voice.  Tknew his Voice
when he faid to Mabony, Follow me, Boy. Iam
cerrain the Prifoner at the Bar was in the Cabbin; I
obiorved his Bulk, but could not look carneftly at
him, being very much fhocked and furprifed ; bue
my i lufband told me 1t was Charles White.

M. Recorder. 1 hite, will you afk this Witnefs
any Qucﬂtinm?

Charles W hite, Pleale you, my Lord, to afk
her, whether the can fay that (he ever heard my
Voice i the Cabbin?

Mr. Recorder. Mrs. Fones, the Prifoner atksyou,
if you heard his Voice 1n the Cabbm? |

Margaret Fones. T could not know his Voice in
the Cabhin, for he fpoke low; and when a Perfon
whifpers, the Voice 1s not fo diftingwnthable: but as
foon as he fpoke aloud, I knew it to be his Voice,

Alr. Recorder. Ihd you fee him in cthe Cabbin,
Mrs. Foiues 2 |

Margaret Fores. My Lord, Tdid not fee his
Face, but by his Voice when he went out, I knew
him to be the fame Man.

Charles IVbite. Pleale you, my Lord, to alk her,
whether the ever heard me fay, Follow me Boy,
befare ?

M. Recorider. Mrs. Fones, you hear the Quef
tion, give an anfwer to it

Marraret Fones, I never heard him fay fo be-
forc; but [ knew his Voice perfectly well, having
been acquainged with him for two Years,

Nr, Vernon., We muft now defire that the Pri-
funet’s Examination may be read, Cryer, fwear Mr,
fainzs Britte, {iccond Clerk to the Town-Clerk,)

(My. Britten {worn.)

Mr. Pernon. Mr. Brittein, what Paper 1s that?

Mr. Britten. The Examination of the Prifoner
at the Bar taken before Mr. Mayor.

Mr. Peron. Did you fee the Prifoner fign 1t in
Mr. Mayor’s Prefence?

My, Britzen. Yes, I did.

Mr. Fernen. Did you fee Mr. Mayor fign 1t ?

Mr. Britten. Yecs,

Mr, #eriron. Is that his Hand ?

Mr. Britten. Yes.

Mr. Frederick, Comnfel for the Prifoner. Tt is
opened by Mr. Perion, that this Examination con-
tains the Prifoner’s Confellion of the Fale. T would
aftk Mr. Britten, Was the Confeflion voluntarily
made or not ? for, 1if it wasnot voluntarily, 1t ought
not to be read.

M. Recorder. That 1s an improper Queftion,
unlefs the Prifoner had infifted, and made it part
of his Cafe, that his Confeflion was extorted by
Threats, or drawn from him by Promifes 5 in that
Cale, indeed, it would have been proper for us to
Inquire by what means the Confeflion was pro-
cured : Bue as the Prifoneralledges nothing of that
kind, T will not fulfer a Queftion to be afk’d the
Clerk, which carrics in it a2 Refleétion on the, Ma-
wiftrate before whom the Examination was taken.
Let it be read. ‘

Cl. of Arr. Reads.
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City and County of 0 i 20 Fantary, f74b
the City of Bril’col.} 0 Wit -
The Examination of Charles White, ¢ Sailsr
belonging to the Ruby Man of Wai, #ow Jy.
g i this Port, born in Drogheda 72 Ire-

land, aged about thirty-fiv Years.
THE Examitnant voluntarily coafeffeth, and
aith, That he hath been a Sailor on board
the faid Ship for about feventeen months laft paft;
That about one of the clock in the N 1ght of Sunday
latt, the cighteenth Inftant, he was nﬂccp 1n his
Hammock on board the faid Ship, and was called
out by one Matthew Maboiy, another Sailor on
board the faid Ship (and now in Cuttody) who
told him that the Caprain (meaning Captain Sammnel
Goodere, Commander of the fiid Ship) wanted to
fpeak with him in his Cabbin ; and accordingly he
went to him : and when he came to him, the Cap-
tan afked him to fit down, and then gave him
a Wine-Glafs of Rum, and after that four or five
more, and then afked him if he could kii] 3 Spa-
niard ? and this Examinant anfivered him, That
he never did.  Upon which the Captain told him,
he had gota Job for him to do, if he would under.
take it: And this Examinant afk’d him wliat Job
it was? And the Captain told him, it was to'make
away with his Brother, whofe Name (as this Exa-
munant is informed) was Sir Foba Dineley Gordere,
Bart. who was in the Purfer’s Cabbin on board the
faid Ship: and the faid Ma:thewy Mabony told this
Lxammant, that he muft go with him to help do
it.  Whereupon the faid Caprain went out of the
Cabbin furft, Mahouy followed him, and this Fxa-
minant went nexe ; and when he came to the Pug-
fer’s Cabbin-door, where Sir Yoba Dinel.y was, the
Captain was flanding Centinel himfclf at the Door
with a Cutlath in his Hand, and Adadony hal en-
tered the Cabbin, and this Examinant entered like-
wife, where Aaloiry was talking with the faid Sir
Jobny and had a piece of Rope, called three-quar-
ter of an Inch Rope, in his Hand, about fix Foot
in length, and Sir Fobn was lying on the Bad; and
particularly Mebony asl’d Sit Fobi how his Head
was, and what he had got about it? and at laft
told him, 1t did not fignify talking about it any
longer, and then fell on him on the Bxd, took hold
of his Throat with his Hand (his Stock being on)
and fo ftrangled him with lis Stock, and after-
wards put the faid Rope about his Neck, (which
was prepared for the purpofe, with a Noofe in i,
before 1t was brought out of the Captain’s Cabbin)
and then Aabeny halled the Rope ught about his
Neck; and upon this Examinant’s asking him what
he did that for? he faid, For fear he fhould nor be
dead enough. And this Lxaminant took a Knife
out of his Pocket, and cut it off his Neck, and
threw it over-board.  During all which time the
Captamn {tood Centinel at the Door as aforefaid ;
and as foon as this Examimant had {o cut the Rope
off, the Captamhanded a Candle to AZebouy, who
gave it to him, and Mabony took the Warch and
Money out of Sir Jobu’s Pocket; and then the
Captain ask’d them, Have ye done? meaning, (as
this Examinant apprehended) murdered the faid
Sir Jobu, And then came in hmmfelt, and this
Examinant went through the Hold, and came up-
on Deck, where he walk’d for about the fpace of
half a quarter of an Hour, and the Captain and
Mahoiry went nto tie Captam’s Cabbin together,
and then this Ixaminant went into the Steerideg,
and Mabony called this Examinant mto the Cab-
bin, where tie Captain had undreffed himfelf in
order to go to Bed; and there the Caprain gave
him five Guineas, and this Examinant had received
of
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of the faid Captain a fix and thirty Shilling Piece
of Gold before the faid Sir Fobn was murdered.
And further this Examinant faith, That Mahony
thewed the Captain the Watch he had taken out of
Sir Jobn's Pocket, and the Captain gave Mahony
his own Watch, and kept Sir Fob#’s himfclf ; and
Mabony likewife fhewed the Captain the Money he
had taken out of Sir John’s Pocket, who bid him
keep it; and Mabony gave it to this Kxaminant,
who put it in hisPocket,and he and Mabony thared
the Money on the Fore-caftle, and this Examinant
had two Pieces to one, in confideration that Afa-
bony had the Watch; and this xaminant believes
they fhared about thirty Pounds between them.
And further, this Examinant faith, That the faid
Captain told him and Mabony, that they might go
any where for threc Weeks, and he would fend
chem their Tickets. And laflly, this Examinant
faith, That between four and five of the clock the
(ame Morning the Man of War’s Yawl was go-

ing to this City, and he and Mabeny landed at the
Gibb here. Clarles White.

My Recorder. Well, Prifoner, what have you
to offer in your Defence ?

Charles IWhite. Pleafe you, my Lord, I was m

my Hammock between the Idours of Twelve and
One, and this Aabeny camc to me and faid, Charies
White, Charles White ! T faid, what do you want ?
He {2id, Turn out. Iafked him what he wanted
of me now ? He faid again, Turn out, turn out.
And with that I turn’d out, and went upon Deck
to make Water, and while I was doing it, he told
me that he wanted me to go with him. I afked
him where he was going to bring me ? But he Jed
me into the Cabbin where the Captain was. When
I came in, the Captain bid me fit down. I begged
him to excufe me from taking fo great a Frecdom
as that, in his Company. But at laft T fate down,
and I drank a Glafs of Rum. Then the Caprain
2{k’d me, whether 1 had ever killd a Spaniard ¢
I told him, No, ! aever was engaged with one to
kill him.  Drink about, Mahony, faid the Captain,
With that we drank about, and finifhed 2 Bottle
and a half in raw Drams. With that he faid, come
along with me. I afk’d him where he was o0ing ?
I went with him, the Captain firft, and Mabony
after him 3 and they went below, and to what In-
tent 1 knew not, being quite in Liquor with drink-
ing fo much Rum. Said the Captain to me, when
we came down, Tarry here “till I call you.  Soon
after, Mahouy came to me, and told me the Cap-
tain wants you.  Then I went down into the Cab-
bin, and fat down init,and Aabony and the Captaim
were talking together; butwhat they did Iknownot,
for I never laid a Hand near the Gentleman,

My Recorder. Youlay you wereinthe Purf=r’sCab-
bin, and do you not know what happen’d there ?

Charles White. 1 cannot tell, Siry what paft.

My Recorder. If this Defence be true, how came
you to be fo unjuft to your {elf, to make the Con-
feffion which has been read ?

Charles I¥hite. Pleafe you, my Lord, [ was
Liquor, and did not know what pafs'd between

them, for I had not my Senfes about me.

Mi Recorder. Why, tis charg’d upon you, by
the Cooper, that you examin’d Sir Fobi’s Pockets,
and tock out his Watch and Money, and a picce of
Paper which Mabeny perfuaded you to throw 2-
way, as of no Confequence, or elfe to put it nto
your Pocket, and read it at another Tune,

Charles 1V7bite. Pleafe you, my Lord, I know no-
thing of it; Thave feveral Witneflestomy Charater.

M. Recorder, Call your Witneffes,
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- (Michael Smith fworn.)

Mr. Recorder. How long have you known ¢he
Prifoner? |

Smith. From a Child, Sir; we went to Schgg]
together for eight Years.

Mr. Recorder. What do you know of him ?

Smith. Sir, Ineverheard to the contrary by .that
he was an honeft Man, and bore a good Charade;

(Theodore Conrt [worn.) '

Court. 1 never knew any Harm of the Prifoner
unti! this unhappy Affair; but I have been inform’g
that fince he hath been under Confinement, he hath
told feveral People who have gone to fee him thalt
if he can get clear of this, he will kill my I\'I;:te

(Edward Fones.) |

Edward Fones. 1 have known the Prifoner fio
three Ycars, but never knew any Harm by him,
I was with him in the 2Vefi-Tudics, in the K:’ngﬁ:{;
Man of War, but ’all this Misfortune happeneg
[ never knew any Harm by lum, ’

M Recorder. Are you fure then, that you faw
him in the Cabbin, nfling the Decealed’s Pockets?

Edward Fones, Yes, my Lord, I am fure of tha,

(IWilliam Alacguinis {worn.)

Macguinis. Pleafe you, my Lord, T knew the
Prifoner at the Bar cver fince he was an Infane, [
went to School with him, and never kiew ajny
Farm that he did beforey I have often both eat
and drank with him, and when he 1s fober, he i
as good and civil a Man as need to be.

(Daniel Wellar, Carpenter of the Ship, f{wom,)

IVellar. 1 have been abour {ixteen or {cventeen
Months with him, and he always behav’d himfelf
well on board, and I never knew any Haim of
him before; but his Voice i1s known from all the
Men in the Ship.

Mr. Recorder. To what purpofe do you fay, that
his Voice is known from all the Men in the Ship?

Wellar. Becaufe they talked about his Voice of-
tCNLImcs.

Mrt. Perngn. If Tapprehend him right; Sir, he
fpeaks this in Confirmation of Mrs. Foues’s Evi-
dence, who fwore fhe knew the Prifoner’s Vouce,
Gentlemen, I was in hopes the Prifoner would have
ftood to his former Contellion, inftcad of endea-
vouring to retract it, and have given Glory toGod
by a public Penitence and Sorrow for the Heinouf-
nefs of his Crime, inftead of putting on a Shew
of Innocence againtt Proof fo apparent of his Guil.
— Defence, 1 apprehend, he has made rone;
he has called indeed fome Witnefles to {peak to
his Chara&er ; and Charaéter, it muft be acmit-
ted, is of weight, by way of balancing the Proofs,
where the Fact is doubtful and uncertain; butwhen
the Lvidence is ftrong and pregnant, and Guilt
ftares the Prifoner in the Face, Character weighs
not a fingle Grain in the Scale of Juftice, How
far the Prifoner’s Character and early Confeffion of
the Fa&, with fome Ingredients in his Cale, may
be of Service to him in another Place, is not the
prefent Confideration ; he ftands now at the Bar
for your Juftice, not your Pity; and it fully ap-
pears in proof, that he was an Accomplice with
Mahony in this barbarous Murder, as laid in the
Indi€tment 3 fo that Life cushe to go for Li%, by
the Laws of God and Man, and I doubt not i

the leaft, bur that you will confcientioufly difcharge
the Duty you owe to God and your Country, by

going according to your Evidence, and finding the
Prifoner guilty.
Mr. Recorder.
Entlemen of the Jury, the Priforer at the
Bar ftands indicted for the Murder of Sir

Fobn Binely Goedere. The Indiftment charges,
that
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ot the Deceafed was_ftrangled by one Matthew
Mabony, and that the Prifoner was prefent, aiding
and abetting im 1n the Fadl. | |

To {upport this Charge, the Profecutors have
called two Witnefies, Edward Joues, and Marga-
ot his Wife.  Edward Foies fays, that he lodged
o the Night between the Elglltccnth and nin'(eten:th
of Fannary lait, in the Rutby VIan of ‘.\:ar, in the
Slop-room, which adjoins to the Purftr‘s Cabbin
where, he fays, the Decealed was contined.  He
ells you, that about "L'wo 1n the Morning he was
waked by his \Viﬁ?,. and heard S_irﬁb;; Crying ou,
Here's twenty Guineas, take it, take it; don’t
murder me s mult I die? He fays Sie Fobn gave
(rveral Keexs with his Thlfoat like a Man expiring,
andd quickly after was {hill. * Ile tells you, that
then a Light being brought into the Cabbin, he
got Up and look’d t[u_'qugh a Crevice 1n the Pari-
tion, and fw the Prifoner at Ehc Bar cnga.g::d n
ifling Sir Fabi's Pockets, Mabony flanding by
wich a Candic in his hand. e fays, that Sic Fsbn
was dzad, as he believes, waen the Prifoner was
rfling his Poclets; and from what he obferv’d
ehe nexe Moraing, that he was ftrangled.

Margarct Jones is fomething fuller in her Evi-
dence, as to fome Circumitances previous to the
Murders but in the main, agrees with her Huf-
band touching the rifling of Sir Febu’s Pockets af-
rer he was dead. She 1s fure Adabony held the
Candle, and that another Perfon whom fhe takes
o be the Prifoner at the Bar, was nifling his
Pockets.  She fays, the had not a perfect view of
him; but by his Bulk, and from what her Huf-
band then told her, fhe concluded at the tume,
that it was the Prifoier at the Bar,  She fays fur-
ther, that when Adsbony and that other Perfon
went out of the Cabbin, fhe heard Mahony fay,
Whither thall I rua? The other an{wered, Follow
me, my Boy. Andthen fhe lays, fhe knew it was
the Prifoner made that Anfwer, by s Voice,
She fays the Knows the Prifoner’s Voice perfectly
vell, having been acquainted with him two Years.

The Profecutors then read the Prifoner’s Exa-
mination, which contains a full Confeilion of the
Fa&, as laid in the Indictment.

You have heard, Gentlemen, what the Prifoncer
has faid to this Charge,  Tle admnts that he went
into the Purfer’s Cabbin, but fays, that bemng
much in Liquor, he knows nothing of what pals’d
there; and denies that he had any Concern in the
Murder. He called fome Witnefles to lus Cha-
racter; and I muft obferve to you, that one of his
Witneffes, Dawjel IVellar, fays, that the Pnifoner’s
Voice is diftinguithable from the Voices of all the
Menin the Ship., This will give fome Weight to
Margaret Foues’s Evidence, That fhe knew him
by Ius Voice.

And, Gentlemen, upon the whole, if you be-
Jieve the Evidence for the King, and give Credit to
the Prifoner’s Confeflion, you muft find himguiley.
Their the Yury withdiew, to confider of their Ver-

diét 5 and aftcr a fhort Space reltrned again.

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, anfiver to your Numnes :
Johi Nafb,

Yobu Nafb. Here. [And {o of the reft.]

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of
vour Verdiét ?

Juiy., Yes.

Cl. of Arr. Who fhall fay for you?

Fury. The Foreman.

Cl. of Arr. Charles White, hold up thy Fland.
You of the Jury look upon the Prifoner 3 How

ﬁf Murder:

Qan
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fay you? is Chailes I7hite onilty of the Felony and
Murder whercof he ftands indicted, or notg{iihy ?

Jury, Guilty, .

Cl.of s, \What Goous or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements, had he at the time of the fud Felony
and Murder commtted, or at any tine fince, to
your knowledoc?

Fury. Nonc,

Cl.of Arr. Hearken to your Verdit, as the
Cowrt hath recorded it: You fay, that Cherles
Ihite 1s guilty of the Felony and Murder whereof
he ftands indi&ted, and that he had no Goods or
Chattels, Lands or Tenements, at the time of the
fard Felony and Murder committed, or at any
time fince, to your knowledges and fo you fay all.

CL of ciri. Kezper, take Charles [770ite the Pri-
foner from the D, and look to him; he ftands
convidied of wiliul Murder.

On Saturday the 28th of March the iifoners
were brought again to the Bar, 1 order to receive
their Sentence 5 and the Court proceeded thus:

Cl. of Adrr. Cryer, open the Couit,

Ciyer. Oyez, Oyez, Oyezy all manner of Per-
fons that have any more to do befere the King's
Majefty’s Jullices of Oyer and Terminer, and ac-
neral Goal-Delivery for this Ciey and County, and
vere adjourned over to this Time and Place, draw
near, and give your Attendance,

Cl. of v, Mr. Recorder, will you pleafe that
the Prifoners fhall be called up to Judmment ?

M. Recorder. Ycs,

Cl. of Ari. Keeper, fet Mattheo Mabhoizv, Sa-
mnl Goodeire, and Charles Ti7hite to the Bary which
was done.,

My, Reecorder. Ask them what they can fay to
hinder Judgment?

Cl. of Ari. Matthew Mebay, hold up thy
[land. Thou haft been ndifted of Felony and
Murder, thou haft been thereupon arraigned, thou
haft pleaded thereunto not guilty, and for thy
Trial, thou halt put thy felf upon God and thy
Country, which Country hath found thee aumlty ;
what haft thou to fay for thylelf, why the Cowrt
fhould not proceed to give Judgmentof Death up-
on thee, andaward Executton according to the Law?

[Fle oficred nothing, but begg'd for T'ime to
prepare himfell. ]

Cl. of Air. Sainne! Goodere, hold up thy Fland.
Thou haft been indided of Felony and Murder,
¢¢. what hail thou to fay? &,

[I1e offered nothing, but begged alio for Time
to prepare himiclf. ]

Cl. of Ari. Charles White, hold up thy Fand.
Thou haft been indicted of Felony and Murder,
§5¢. what hatt thou to fay? .

[He offered nothing, but declared he was drawn
into it, and begeed for Tranfportation for Lite. ]

Cl. of Arr. Crycr, make Proclamation for Silence.

Cryer. Oyez; The King’s Majefty’s Juttices
Lraitly charge and command all manner of Perfons
to keep Silence whilft Judgment is giving, upon
pain of Imprifonment. .

(Then M. Recorder [poke Lo the Prifancrs thus:]

My Recorder. Samuel Gooderey, Matlbew M-
howy, Chasles White, and = fane [Villiams, you
have been all conviéted, upon very full I:.Vldf‘l‘lcr_‘,
of one of the greateft Crimes human Nature 1s ca-
nable of; deliberate and wilful Murder, A Crume,
which in all Ages, and through all Nations, hath
been had in the higheft Deteflation.  IFor how-
over Mankind have differed in other Matters, they

have been in one Sentiment concerning this Crim{
RN

R Convigied af the fame Seffions for the Murder of hir Baflard CLild,
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and che Demerits of it; as if they had been all Wit-  him under Confinement. Admitting that.yofir Bro.

nefles to the Promulgation of the Precept, IWhoever
Joeddeth Manw’s Blood, by Man fhall his Blood be fhed.

But this Crime, great as it is, is capable of fe-
veral Aggravations, anfing from the Circumftances
which attend it.

To lay violent IHands upon a Perfon who never
gave his Murderer the lealt Offence, whom per-
haps he never faw till the Moment he was mark’d
out for Execution ; and to do this for Hire, thews a
Mind loft, Ifear, toallthe Impreflions of Flumanity.

But what then is the Cafe of one, who can pro-
cure all this Mfchief, and nvolve others in chis
Guilt; efpecially if the Perfon to whom the Vio-
lence is oftered, is near to him by the Ties of
Blood or Iriendfhip?

*T1s true, Murders of this kind are not very
frcquent y and lefsfo i this Natton than m any
other. But in the Cafe in which three of you are
concerned, they all concur,

A Gentleman of Diftinétion is murdered by
Perfons, who, 1n a manner, were Strangers to his
Face, and his only Brother aiding and abetting
the Murder. T may fay thus much, becaule your
Country hath upon full Lvidence found it fo.

I will carry thele Reflections no  farther: I
choofe to leave that Part to your own lerious
Confideration,

I hope I need not perfuade you to employ the
Time you have to ltve, in making your Peace
with God: T hope, I fay, that a Senfe of your
own Coudition hath already put you upon that
Work. And pray don’t fulfer yourfelves to be
diverted from it by the IHope or Expeétation
of Mercy from the Crown, His Majelty’s Dif-
pofition to Mercy 1s great; but his Love of
Jutice, and his Love to his People is flill
areater.  And becavle T would not miflead you,
nor have you deceive yourfelves in 2 Cafe of
this Importance, I think it my Duty to deal
freely with you.

I do not fee what room any of you have to
expect Mercy.

You who have been the immediate Actors
in this Affair, what wave you pleaded in mi-
tigation of your Crime? One fays, he ts a poor,
prels’d Servants and the other, that he was
drunk when the Fa&t was committed.  Nei-
ther of thofe Excufes can avail you.  You both
undertook the Murder for Hire, rifled the Gen-
tleman’s Pockets, and fhared the Plunder be-
tween you.

You had, perhaps, no Deflign upon the Gentle-
man’s Life, till near the Time of Execution, This
15 no Lxcufe. It fthews you were ready to fhed
innocent Blood at the hirft Call : That you yiclded
to the firlt Temptatton.  And if Drunkennefs could
be admitted as an Excufe for Crimes of this na-
ture, this would be no World then of Virtue and
Sobricty.

You, Sir, who have been the principal Acor in
this Aftair, what have you offer’d for your felf?

You admit, that you imploy’d a Number of
People to feize your Brother, here in the Heart of
the City, and in the Face of the Sun, and to carry
him on board the Ship of which you had then the
Command. This 1s too evident to be denied, and
for that Reafon only, I fear, ’tis admitted.

To give fome Colour to this unparallel’d Qut-
rage, you fay, that your Brother was diftracted,
and that you took him on Board in order to put

ther was diftradted, was the Place you carridd hin
to, or the Hands into which you committed him,
or the Treatment which he met with from them
before he was got aboard the Barge, at all proper
for his Cafe, or fit tor a Brother to think of ?

You called Mrs. Gerbins to prove, that Mabsyy
was to have had five Pounds 2 Month for lookine
after him at her Houfe.  She remembers nothine
ol Alalery, Bur, had that been proved, could TE
at all avail you to fay, thac for three Weeks befor
the Murder was commutted, you intended to haye
confined him under the Care of the very Man wh
now appcats to have murdered him ?

Indeed, you have demied all Concern in the Mur-
der, or the leatt Knowledee ot 1t But it hath been
proved by three Witnelivs, that you were in the
Cock-pir while the Murder was commiteing, and
might have heard the Notfe and Struggle in the
Cabbin, the Cry of Murder, and your Brother’s
dying Greans, as well as they did,

Nay, two of them are politive, that you ftood
Centinel ar the Door, with a drawn Cutlath in your
Hand, while the LFact was committing.  One of
them fays that you deltvered a Candle into the
Cabbin, after the Cry of Murder ceafed 3 and thae
you, foon after, lock’d the Door, and took the
Key withyou.  And it 15 agreed on all hands, that
when the Door was open’d the next Morning, your
Brother was found there murdered.

Thofe Facts,with other Circumitances, are frong
and pregnant Prools of your Concern in the Mur-
der 3 unlels the Credit of the Witnefles could be
impeached, which you have not attempted to do.

It was charged as a Circumitance againft you,
that after the Falt was comnutted, Mabony and
[Fbite were fent afhore by you,  This likewife you
dented.  But it canie out of the Mouth of 2 Wit
nefs called by yourlelfy that they went up in the
Yawl by Leave from you.

I have nothing more to do, betore I proceed to
that shich the Duty of my Place obliges me to,
than to exhort you all to make your Peace with
God by a ferious and hearty Repentance. His
Mercy 1s infintte, and to that we muft leave you.
For the Judgment of this Court is, That you, Sa-
muel Goodere, Matthew Mahony, Charles White,
aird Jane Williams, go from benee to the Prifon from
whence you came 5 and frein thence you fhall be led to
the Place of Esecution, <where you fhall feverally be
hauged by the Neck till you fhall be dead.  And the
Lord have Mercy on your Souls,

Then the Keeper carried away the Prifoners to
the Gozaly to be referved till their Execution.

On Hednefday the 15th of Aprif following, the
Prifoners Matthewo Mabony, Samuel Goodere, and
and Charles White, were exccuted at Briftol, ac-
cording to the Sentence pronounced againft them,
They all confeffed the Fa&t. The Body of Ada-
bony 1s hung in Chains near the Place where the
horridd Fact was committed,

At the feme Court Charles Bryan, Edward
M Daniel, aad William Hammon, were indited,
tried and conviéted, for a Mifdemeanour, in for-
cibly aflifting and feizing Sir Fobn in the Pa-
rith of St. Augnftine, in the faid City and Coun-
ty, and carrying him on board the Barge be-
longing to the Ruby Man of War; and were
fined yos. each, to be imprifoned for one Year,
and then each to give Sccurity for his good Be-
haviour for one Year more,
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Pritchard weifus Papillon; an Ation for Falfe Imprifonment.
Rex verfus Hampden, for High-Treafon.

Rex werfus Dominmem Delamere, for the fame.

Rex werfus Dominuin Mohun, for the Murder of W. Mountfort,

Rex werfus Charnock, for High-Treafon.
Rex werfus Cranburn, Lowick, & al’y for the fame.
Re:x werfus Vaug 'an, for High-Trealon.

1bid.

40

ibid.
ibid.,
57

Rex werfus Com? Warwick & Dominum Mohun, for tbe Murder of

R. Coote.
Regina verfus Fuller, for & Cheat.
Regina verfus Hathaway, for @ Cheat,
Regina vesfus eundem, for an Aflault.

Regina verfus Bouchier, for High-Treafon.
Reginag verfus Lindfay, for the fame.

58
ibid.
59
ibid.
60
1bid.

Rex werfus Coke and Woodburne, for [litting the Nofe of Edward

Crifpe.

ibid.
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APPENDIX

CONTAINING

Several RECORD S velating to the foregoing TRIALS

and PROCEEDINGS.

2 H E Second and Third Trials in this
Colle€tion being for Herefy (a Crime
heretofore very frightful, and pu-

(H,rﬁfﬁ 7 nifhed with great Severity) 1t may
@%&ﬁgﬁ not be amifs to ftate how the Law

formerly ftood relating thereto, and,
fince we have not the Precedents of the Pro-
cels iffued in thofe particular Inftances, to give a
Precedent o two in fome others of the fame Na-

re. .

. By the ancient ®* Law, Burning was the Pu-
Sithment for Herefys  but the Party accufed
was frft to be tried and convicted thereof by the
Archbifhop and the reft of the Clergy of his Pro-
vince affembled in Convocation. After Convic-
tion the Offender was delivered over into Lay-
Hands, and the Sherift of the County, by virtue
of the Writ de [lcretico combuyendo, was to canfe
him to be burnt.  Brit. lib. 1. ¢. 17, Bro. Adbr. iit,
Herefy, Fitz, Nat. Brev. 595. '

The firft Statute in relation to Herefy is the 5th
of Rich. 11. cap. 5. whereby it is enalted, That
the Sheriffs and other Civil Officers thould ap-
prehend and imprifon Perfons fulpeéted of He-
refy, in order to their being tried by the Laws of
Holy Church; and it being found inconvenient
to fummon the Convocation for the Trial of eve-
ry Offender, a Statute was made the 2d of Hen. IV,
cap. 15. impowering cvery Diocefan to imprifon
Perfons fufpedted of Herefy in their refpective
Diccefes, and try them (fo that fuch Diocefan pro-
ceeded judicially and openly againtt fuch Perfons)
and where any Perfon was convicted, he might
be imprifoned at the Difcretion of the Ordinary ;
or, if the Party refus’d to abjure his Errors, or,
having abjured them, relaps’d, he was to be left
to the Secular Arm; and the Shenft (whom the
Ordinary might call to be prefent at the Trial )
was to caufe the Party to be burnt in fome high
(or open ) Place. | o |

The Lord Chief Juftice Brook (in his Abridg-
ment, Tit. Herefy) fays, that upon this Statute it

was refolved, That if a Perfon was convi@ed of
Herefy in the Prefence of tlie Sheriff, the Ordi-
nary might ‘commit him to the fame Sheriff, and
he was tocaufe him to be burnt without the Wrir
de Heretico comburendo 5 but if the Sheriff was ab-
fent, or if the Heretic was to be burnt in another
County, in either of thefe Cafes the Writ de Hee-
retico comburendo muft be firft obtained, before the
Sheriff could burn him.

Some Authors have wonder’d, Why the Wit
de Heretico comburendo was iffued for the burning of
Sawtre, when by the laft mentioned A& the She-
riff was impowered to exccute Perfons convicted
of Herefy without that Writ: But the Wonder
ceafes, if we confider that the Sheriff could not
proceed to execute the Offender by his own Au-
thority, unlefs he was prefent at the Convi@ion ;
and though the Diocefan might call the Sheriff to
attend the Trial, yet he might too convi& che Q-
fender in his Abfence.  And further, Secctre was
convited by the Convocation ; and it may be dif-
ficult to give one Inftance where the Convocation
calied the Sheriff to affilt at the Trial of an He-
retic ; and, if they had, fuch a Convi®tion was not
within the Letter of the A&: Therefore, upon
this Conviction, the Sheriff was under a Neceffi-
ty of waiting for the Writ de FHeretico comburends,
before he could execute him 7+,

By the 2ad of Tlen. V. cap. 5. all Civil OfE-
cers were to be Iworn to affit the Ordinaries in
extirpating Hereftes; and one conviét of Herefy
was to forfeit his Goods and Chattels, and Fee-
fimple Lands,

By the 25th of Ifeun, VIII. cap, 14. the A& of
the 2d of Ilen. IV. is in part repealed 5 and it s
thereby provided, That no Perfon fhall be execu-
ted as an Heretic, without the Writ de Herelico
comburendo firft obtained.

By the 1ft of Liiz, cap. 1. the abovefaid Sta-
tutes, as well as that other Statute of the &rft and
fecond of Phil. and Mar. cap. 6. againft Héretics,
are repealed.

- e — L I — il

a Sce W nitiock’s Speech in behalf of Farses Naylor, Vel Il p.273. N% 53 See allo Hales's Ho P, C. Vol L, p. 392,
Note (4) and p. 394. and Note p. 70q9. |
+ The Writ for burning Sazvtre feems to be a (pecial A& of Parliament made for that pu pofe forat is teited Per vegem &

eavciliar i parfiarzenss, which isto beintended of an A& of Parliament. Sez8. Co. Rep. 19, a. LPrince’s Cafe. Sce alfo Hal
Hut, P C. Vol. L. p. 390.
And
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And by the 29th of Car. I1. cap. g. the Writ
dv Heretico comburends, with all Proceedings there-
on, and all Capital Punithments in purfuance of
any Ecclefiaftical Cenfures, are from thence forth

utterly abolifhed.
So that at this day a Perfon convicted of He-

refy is liable only to Excommunication, and fuch
Pains and Difabilities as Perfons ftanding excom-
municated for any other Offence.

)
ool

The Writ de Heretico comburendo, for buyning
Willlam Sawtre b, convidted of Herely in Con-
VOCAtion <,

E X, &c. Majori & Vic’ London falutem.

Cum venerabilis Pater Thomas Archiepif-
copus Cantuar’ totins Anglie Primas, & Apofto-
lice fedis Legatus, de confenfu & afienfu, ac
confilio Epifcoporum, & confratrum {ufiragan’
fuorum, necnon totius Cleri provincie fuze in
confilio fuo provinciali congregat’, juris ordini-
bus in hac partc requifit’ in omnibus obfervat’,
Will’ Sawtre, aliquando Capellanum in heeres’
damnat’, & per ipfum Willielmum praeantea 1n
forma juris abjurat’, & ipfum Willielmum 1n hee-
refin praediét’ relaps’, per fuam fententiam defini-
tivam hareticum manifeftum pronunciav’ & de-
clarav’, ac degradandum fore decreverit, & ab
omni prerogativa & privilegio Clericalt ea de
caufa realit® degradaverit, ipfumg; Will® foro fe-
culari relinquendum effe decreverit, & realiter
reliquit, juxta leges & canonicas fanctiones editas
in hac parte, & fanta Mater Ecclelia non habet
ulterius quod fac’ in preemifs’: Nos igitur, zela-
tor juftitize, & fidei catholice cultor, volentes
Ecclefiam fanétamn, ac jura & libertates ¢juidem
manutenerc & defendere, & hujulmod: herefes
& errores de regno noftro Anglize (quant’ in no-
bis eft) radicitus extirpar’, ac hereticos fic con-
vittos animadverfione condigna punirl; atten-
dentesq; hujufmodi heercticos, in forma praedict’
conviftos & damnatos juxta legem divinam &
humanam canonica inftitutione, & in hac parte
confuetudinar’, ignis .ncendio comburi debere,
Vobis diftinctius quo poflimus preecipimus, fir-
miter injungentes, quod praefat’ Will" in cuftodia
veltra exiflen’, in aliquo loco publico & aperto
infra libertat® civitatis praedift’, canfa praemufia,
coram populo publice igni committ’, ac ipfum in
eodem igne realiter comburi fac’ in hujus criminis
deteftationem, aliorumqs; Chriftianorum exemplum
manifettum ; & hoc fub periculo incumbente nul-

latenus omittatis, Tefte, &%,

The Form of the Warrant to the Lord Chancellor
for iffuing the }rit de Heretico comburendo
againft Bartholomew Legatt, on a Convittion for
Hercly before the Ordinary.

YAMES REX.

AMES, by the Grace of God, King of

England, Scotland, France, and Ireland, De-
fender of the Faith, & To our right-trufty
and right well-beloved Counfellor, Zhomas Lord
Ellefmere, our Chancellor of England, Greeting,
%Vhereas the Reverend Father in God, Foln Bi-
fhop of Londen, having judicially proceeded in

NDIX

a Caufe of Herely againft Bartholomew Legant, of
the City of London, in the Diocefe of the faig
Bifhop of London, concerning divers wicked [ir-
rors, Hlerefies, and blafphemous Opinions, hold-
cn, afirmed, and publithed by the faid Barb,.
lomew Legatt, and chiefly in thefe Thirteen blaf.
phemous Pofitions following, viz. That the Creed
called the Nicewe Creed, and dAthanafius’s ¢ reed,
contatn not a Profeflion of the true Chrittian
Faith, or, that he will not profefs his Faith ac-
cording to the fame Creeds; That Chritt is not
God of God begotten, not made, but begotten
and made; That there are no Perfons i the
Godhead; That Chrift was not God from ever-
lafting, but began to be God when he took Flefh
of the Virgin Mary; That the World was nos
made by Chrift; That the Apoftles teach Chrift
to be Man only; That there s no Generation in
God, but of Creatures; That this Affertion,
God to be made Man, is contrary to the Rule
of Faith, and monftrous Blafphemy ; That Chrift
was not before the Fulnefs of Time, except by
Promife; That Chrift was not God otherwife
than anointed God; That Chrift was not in the
Form of God equal with God, Thatis, in Sub-
ftance of God, but in Righteoufnefs and giving
Salvation : "That Chrift by his Godhead wrought
no Miracle; That Chrift is not to be pray’d un-
to: Whercin he the faid Bartholemew Legatt hath,
before the faid Reverend Father, maintained his
faid moft dangerous and blafphemous Opinions,
as appeareth by many of his Confeflions publick-
ly made and acknowledged. For which his dam-
nable and heretical Opinions, he is by definitive
Sentence by the faid Reverend Father Fobu Bi-
fhop of London, with the Advice and Confent
of other Reverend Bifhops, Learned Divines,
and others learned in the Laws, affiting him in
Judgment, juftly adjudged, pronounced, and de-
clared to be an obftinate and incorrigible Here-
tick, and is left by them under the Sentence of
the great Excommunication, and therefore as a
corrupt Member to be cut off from the Church
of Chrift, and Society of the Faithful, and is to
be, by our fecular Power and Authority, as an
Heretick punifhed, as by the Sigaifizavit of the
faid Reverend Father in God the faid Bithop of
London, bearing Date at Loid:i the third day of
March, in the Year of our Lord 1611, in tho
Ninth Year of our Reign, and remaining in our
Court of Charcesy, more at large appearcth.
And although the faid Bartholomews Legatt hath,
fince the faid Sentence pronounced againft him,
been olten very charitably moved and exhorted,
as well by the faid Bithop, as by many grave and
learned Divines, to diffuade, revoke, and remove
him from the faid blafphemous and heretical Opi-
ntons, yet he arrogantly and wilfully perfifteth
and continucth n the fame, We therefore, ac-
cording to our Regnl Funétion and Office, mind-
ing the Execution of Juftice in this behalf, and
to give Example to others, left they fhould at-
ternpt the like hereafter, have determined, by the
Aflent of our Council, to will and require, and
do hereby authorize and require you our faid
Chancellor, immediately upon the Receipt here-
of, to award and make out, under our Great
Seal of England, our Writ of Execution, accord-

b rThis Perfon was executed according to the Writ in the Year 1401, and was the firlt who was burnt in England for Hersfy.
See an Accourt of the Proceedings againft him, and of his Exccution, Fox's 485 and Men. Vol. 1. p. 586.

« See Ltz Nat. Brev. 594

g
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ino to the Tenor thefe Prefents enfuing ; and

shefe Prefents fhall be your fufficient Warrant and
1uicharge for the fame, *

The iVrit de Haretico comburendo.

E X Vicecomitibus London falutem, Cum

Reverendus in Chrifto Pater Johannes, Lon-
don Eptfcopus, nobis fignificavit, quod cum ipfe
in quodam haretica pravitatis negotio contra
quendam Bartholomeum Legate, fubditum noftrum
civitatis London, difti London Epifcopi dioces’
& qurildi@t’, ritc & legitime procedens per acta
inaétirata, dedulta, propofita, & per confeflio-
nes iplus Bartholomet Legatt coram prefato
Epifcopo judicialiter fattas & recognitas, com-
peric & invenit praefatum Bartholomeum Le-
oatt quamplurimos ncfandos errores, falfas opi-
niones, hwrerefes & blafphemias  execrandas,
& {celerata dogmata catholice & orthodoxe
fidet & rehigiont, & facrofancto Dei Verbo ex-
prefle contraria & repugnantia, fcienter, malici-
ole, animoq; pertinaci, obdurato, planeque In-
corrigibili credere, tenere, affirmare, & publi-
carc 3 idem Reverendus Pater London Epifcopus,
cum confilio & confenfu tam Reverendorum Epif-
coporum & aliorum Theologorum, quam Juris
ctiam  pericorum in judicio alfiden’ & affiften’,
cundemy  Bartholomeum  Legatt, per fententiam
fuam definittvam, obduratum, contumacem, &
incorrigibilem bhewreticum pronunciavit, decrevit,
& aeclaravit, ezque occafione tanquam protervam
hereticum, & membrum putridum & contagio-
fum, ab ecclefia Chrifti & fdelium communi-
one recifum & amputatum fore. Cum igitur
fanfta mater Licclefia non habeat quod ulterius
facere & exequi valeat in hac parte, idem Re-
verendus Pater preefatum Bartholomeum Legatr,
ut blafphemum hareticum, brachio noftro fecu-
Jart reliquit condigna animadverfione plectend’,
prout per Literas Patentes preefatt Reverendi in
Chrifto Patris Liondon Epifcopi in hac parte {u-
perinde  confec® nobis in  Cancellar’ noftram
certificat’ eft. Nos igitur ut zelator juftitie,
& fidel catholiczz defenfor, volentesq; Eccleftam
lanctam, ac jura & libertates ejufdem, & fidem
catholicam manutenere & defendere, ac hujulmo-
di herefes & errores ubig; (quantum in nobis
eft) eradicare & extirpare, ac hareticos fic con-
vittos animadverfione condigna puniri, atten-
dentefg; hujufmodi haereticum in forma praedict’
convi¢tum & damnatum juxta leges & confue-
tudines regni noftrl Angliz in hac parte confuet’,
ignis incendio comburi debere: Vobis pracipimus,
quod di¢tum Bartholomeum Legatt, in cuftod’
veltra exiften’, apud Weft-Smithfield in loco
publico & aperto, ex caufa premiffa, coram po-
pulo publice igni committi, ac ipfum Bartholo-
meum Legatt 1n eodem 1gne realiter comburt fac’
i hujufmodi criminis deteftationem, aliorumq;
Chriftianorum exemplum manifetum, ne i fi-
mile crimen labantur; & hoc {ub periculo incum-
bznte nullatenus omittatis,  Tefte, &e.

Henry Hibirte.

N DI X 3

The Writ for burning an Heretic in Englifh.
H E King to the Sheriffs of London, Greet-

ing. Whereas the Reverend Fuather in
Chrift, 7obu Bithop of London, hath fignified un-
to us, that when he in a certain Bufinefs of he-
retical Pravity againtt one Bartholomew Legatt,
our Subject of the City of London, of the faid
Bithop of London’s Diocefe and Jurifdiction,.
rightly and lawfully proceeding by A&s enacted,
drawn, propofed, and by the Confeffions of the
faild Bartholomew Legatt, before the faid Bithop

judicially made and acknowledged, hath found

the faid Bartholomew Legatt very many wicked
Errors, falfe Opinions, Herefies, and curfed
Blalphemies, and impious Dotrines, exprefly
contrary and repugnant to the Catholick Faith
and Religion, and the holy Word of God, know-
ingly and and malicioufly, and with a pertinacious,
obdurate, and plainly incorrigible Mind, to be-
lieve, hold, affirm, and publifh ; the fame Re-
verend I'ather the Bifhop of London, with the
Advice and Confent as well of the Reverend
Bifhops and other Diyines, as alfo of Men learn-
cd in the Law, in Judgment ficting and affifting,
the fame Bartholomew Lesatt, by his definitive
Sentence, hath pronounced, decreed, and de-
clared to be an obdurate, contumactous, and in-
corrigible Fleretic, and, upon that Occafion,
as a ftubborn Heretic, and rotten contagious
Member, to be cut off from the Church of
Chrift, and the Communion of the Faithful:
Whereas the holy Mother Church hath not fur~
ther to do and profecute in this part, the fame
Reverend Father hath left the aforefaid Basrtholc-
mew Legatt, as a blafphemous Heretic, to our
fecular Power, to be punifhed with condign Pu-
nithment, as by the Letters Patents of the fuid
Reverend Father in Chrift the Bifhop of Laidon,
in this behalf above made, hath been certified
unto us in our Chancery. We therefore, as a
Zealot of Juftice, and a Defender of the Catho-
lick Faith, and willing to maintain and defend
the Holy Church, and Rights and Liberties of
the fame, and the Catholick Faith, and fuch He-
refies and Errors every where, what in us lieth,
to root out and extirpate, and to punifh with
condign Punifhment fuch Heretics fo conviéted,
and deeming that fuch an Heretic, in Form
aforefaid convifted, and condemned according
to the Laws and Cuftoms of this our Kingdom
of England in this part accuftomed, ought to be
burned with Fire; we do command you, that
the faid Bartholomew Legatt, being in your Cul-
tody, you do commit publickly to the Fire before
the People, 1n a publick and open Place in //¢fi-
Smithfield, for the Caufe aforefaid ; and that vou
caule the faid Bartholomew Legatt to be really
burned in the fame Fire, in Deteftation of the
faid Crime, for the manifeft Example of other
Chriftians, left they flide into the fame Fault;
and this that you i no wife omir, under the Pe-
ril that fhall follow thereon, Witnefs, &,

The
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The [forged] Indittment ond Qutlawry ¢ of Sir John Oldcaftle, Losd
Cobham, for High-Treafon.

Hil. 1 Hen. V. Rot. 7: B. R.

.1 A S coram Guliclmo Roos de Hamlak,
Henrico le Scrop, Gulielmo Crowmere
Majore civitatis London, Hugone Huls & fociis
Juftic’ Domini Regis, ad inquirend’ per facram’
proborum & legal’ hominum de civitate Domint
Regis London, & fuburbiis ejufdem, ac de cony’
Midd’ tam infra libertates, quam extra, de omni-
bus & fingulis proditionibus & infurrectionibus,
per quamplures fubditos Domini Regis Loliardos
vulgarit’ nuncupatos, & alios n civitate, {ubur-
biis, & com® praedi&is fattis & perpretratis, nec-
non de omnibus proditionibus, infurreCtionibus,
rebellionibus, & feloniis in civitate, fuburbiis, &
com’ praed’ per quofcunque & qualitercung; factis,
five perpetratis, & ad eafdem proditiones, infur-
reCtiones, rebelliones, & felontas audiend’ & ter-
minand’ fecundum legem & confuetudinem regnt
Domini Regis Anglize, per literas ipfius Domini
Regis patentes, aflign’ apud Welt’ dic Mercurii
proximo poft feftum Epiphanie Domini, anno
regni Regis Henrici quinti poft conqueftum pri-
mo, per factam’ Xii. jur’ exticit preefentatum, quod
Johannes Oldcaftle de Coulyng in com’ Kanc’
chr’ & alii Lollardi vulgar’ nuncupat’, qui contra
fidem catholicam diverfas opiniones hacreticas, &
alios errores manifeftos legi catholice repugnan-
tes din temerarie tenuerunt, opiniones & erro-
res prediCtos manutenere, at in_fa&a minime
perimplere valentes, quandiu regta poteftas, &
tam {tatus regal’ Domint noftri Regis, quam fta-
tus & officium Prelacize digpitatis infra regnum
Angl’ in profperitate perfeverarent, fallo & pro-
ditorie machinando, tam ftatum regni, quam
ftatum & officium prelatorum, necnon ordines
religioforum infra di€tum regnum Angl penitus
adnullare, ac Dominum noftrum Regem, fratres
fuos, prelatos & alios magnates eufdem regni
interficere, necnon  ros religiofos, relidt’ cult?
divinis & religiofis obfervanciis ad occupationes
mundanas provocare, & tam ccclefias cathedrales,
quam alias eccleftas & domos rﬁligi_of&s de *reli-
quis & aliis bonis ecclefiafticis totalicer {polare,
ac funditus ad terram profternere, & dictum Jo-
hannem Oldcaftle regentem ejuldern regnt confit-
tuere, quamplura regiming fecundum eorum volun-
tatem, infra regoum praditum, quafi gens fine
capite, in finalem deltruCtionem, tam fidei catho-
lice & cleri, quam ftatus & majeftatis dignitatis
regal’ infra idem regnum ordinare, falfo & pro-
ditorie ordinaverunt & propofuerunt, quod 1pfo
infimul cum quampluribus rebellibus Domini Re-
gis ignotis, ad numerum viginti millium homi-
num de diverfis partibus regni Angl’ modo guer-

rino arrivat’, privatim infurgent’, & die Mercyri;
proximo poft feftum Epiphanie Domini, anng
regni Regis pradicti predicto, apud villam &
parochiam fanéti Egidii extra Barram veterig
Templi London, 1n quodam magno campo ibi-
dem unaninut’ convenirent, & infimul obviarenr
pro nephando propofito {uo in premifiis perim-
plend’;s quo quidem die Mercurii apud villam &
parochiam praediéti J. Oldcaltie & alij in hujuf-
modi propolito proditorio perfeverantes, prediium
Dominum noftrum Regem, fratres fuos (videlicer,
Thomam ducem Clarenciz, Johannem de Lancal-
tre, & Humfredum de Lancaftre) necnon prelacas
& magnates praedictos interficere, necnon ipfum
Dominum noftrum Regem, & heredes fuos, de
regno fuo pradicto exheredare, & premifla om-
nia & f{ingula, necnon quamplura alia mala & ix-
tolerabilia, facere & perimplere falfo & proditort:
propofuerunt & imaginaverunt, & ibidem verfus
campum pradictum modo guerrino arrivati® pro-
ditorte modo infurreftionis contra ligeancias fu.s
equitaverunt ad debellandum dictumy Dominum
noftrum Regem, nifi per ipfum manu forti gra-
tiofe impeditt fuiflent. Quod quidem inditament’
Dominus Rex nunc, certis de caufis, coram co
venire fecit terminandum.  Per quod pracceptum
fuit Vic’, quod non omitterct, (¢, quin caperer
preefatum Johannem Oldcattle, fi, &5, & falvo,
(¢, ita quod haberet corpus ejus coram Domino
Rege apud Weltmonafterium ad hunc diem, {ci-
licet die Mercurtt proximo poft otavas {andi
Hilarii, 1fto eodem termino ad refpondendum
Domino Regt de premiflis, &, Ad quos diem
& locum coram Domino Rege Vic’, quod exigl
faceret eum de com’ in com’ quonlque utlagerur,
fi non, &¢, & 0, &¢. tunc eum caperet, & falvo,
e, ita quod haberent corpus ejus coram Do-
mino Rege in oftavas fanéti Johannis Baptiftz
ex tunc proximum fequentem, ubicunque, &5,
ad refpondendum Domino Regi de proditionibus
& feloniis fuperius fibi impofitis.  Ad quas o&a-
vas fanéti Johannis Baptiltz, an’ regni R, Hen-
rict quintt poft conqueftum fecundo, Johannes
sutton & Jo’ Michell’ Vi’ Mid’, coram Do-
mino Rege returnaverunt, quod ad com’ Midd’
centum apud Braynford die Jovis proximo ante
feftum S. Barnabz Apoftoli, an’ reg’ R. Hen’
quint’ poft conqueftum fecundo; & ad quatuor
com’ €x tunc ¢x proximo precedentes, praedictus
Johannes Oldcaftle cxactus fuit, & non compa-
rait; & quia ad nullum eorundem com’ compa-
rui, ideo prezlfentibus Coronatoribus com’ prec-
dicti utlagat’ fuir, per quod inquiratur de terra
& catallis fuis.

Rex vesfus Dominum Audley ©, for a Rape.

7 Car. I
Wilts, ﬂ’.JUratores pro Domino Rege fuper fa-
cramentum fuum prefent’, Quod
Martinus dominus Audley, nuper de Fountell Gif-
ford in comitatu Wilts, & Agidius Broadway de
Fountell Giftord prazdiét’ in comitatu praediéto ge-

nerofus, timerem Dei pree oculis fuis non habentes,
fed inftigatione diabolica moti & feluéti, vicelimo
die Junii, anno regni Domini noftri Caroli, Dei
grata Anglize, Scotiz, Francie, & Hiberniz
Repis, fidei defenforis, fexto, apud Fountell Gif-
ford preediét’ & comitatu preedito, vi & armis, &,

_.——-———-—-————-———-—-———-—-—_—__—_—____________________—_‘
d The Record appears to have feveral rafures init, Sce Trials Vol. L p, 16, N© 3. and Fox"s A@: 2nd Mon. Vol L p. 035,
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in & fuper Annam dominam Audley, uxorem
prefati domini Martini Audley, in pace Dei &
Jicti Domini Regis ibidem exiftent” infult’ fece-
ront. Et prediCtus Agidius Broadway prazdi@tam
Annam dominam Audley, vt & armis, contra vo-
luntatem ipfius Annce ad tunc & ibidem violenter
& felonice rapuity ac ipfam Annam ad tunc &
ihidemn contra voluatatem fuam violenter & felo-
nice carnaliter cognovit, contra pacem Domini
Regis nunc, coran’, & dignitat’ fuas, & contra
formam ftatuti in hujufmodi cafu edit’ & provis’.

Et ultra, juratores pradicti dicunt fuper facra-
mentum fuum predict’,; Quod praediftus Marti-
nus dominus Audley pradicto vicefimo die Junii,
ann’ fexeo fupradicto, apud Fountell Gifford prae-
dictam, in comitatu preedicto, felonice fuit prae-
fens, auxilians, & confortans, abettans, procuy-
rans, adjuvans, & manutenens praedictum Acgt-
dium Br. ad feloniam predi®am, in forma pre-
dicta fclonice faciend” & perpetrand’, contra pa-
cem diéti Domini Regis nunc, coronam & digni-
tatem fuas, ac contra formam ftatuti pradicti,

Rex wverfus Dominum Audley !, for Sodomy.

2 Car' 1.

Wilts,ﬁ:JUratoreS pro Domino Rege fuper

facramentum fuum preefent’, Quod
Martinus dominus Audley, nuper de Fountell
Gifford in comitatu Wilts’, Deum pra oculis non
habens, nec nature ordinem refpiciens, fed infti-
oatione diabolica motus & fedutus, primo die
Junil, an’ regnl Domini nofirt Cacoli, &e. fexto,
apud Fountell Gifford prediét’ in difto comitatu
Wilts, 1n domo manfionali ejufdemy Martini do-
mint Audlev, 1bidem vi & armis In quendam
[lorence Fitz-patrick, yeoman, wfult’ fecit, &
cum codem Florence F. ad tuic & ibidem nequit’,

diabolice, felonice, & contra naturam rem Ve-
neream habuit, ipfumque F. ad tune & ibidem
carnaliter cognovit, peccatumaque illud Sodomiti-
cum deteftabile & abominandum, Anglice vocat’
Buggery (inter Chriftianos non nomirandum) ad
tunc & ibidem cum eodem Florence I. nequit”
diabolice, felonice, & contra naturam commilic
& perpetravit in magnam Del omnipotentis dif-
plicentiam, ac totius humani generis dedecus, ac
conitra pacem dihi Dom’ Rey’ punc, coronam
& dignitat’ fuas, & contra formam ftatuti in hu-
jufdmodi cafu edit’ & provis’.

Rex werfus Johannem Hampden ¢, 71 the Cafe of Ship-Money.

Lrin’ 13 Car’ 1. 1n Seace.
'ﬁ /g’ Emorand’, quod brev’ Domini Regis nunc
i fub ligillo hujus Scaccar’ per concefs’ Ba-
ror’ bic emanavit 1 hme verba:

. CAROLUS Dei gratia Anglie, Scotie,
Froncie, & Hhbernize Rex, fider detenfor, s,
Vi’ Bucks falutem. Cum diverfe & feparal’ de-
nar’ fumma n {chedul’ huic brevi annex’ {pec,
vireare brevis noftri fub magno figillo noftro An-
ghe geren’ dat’ quarto die Augulti, anno regni
noftri undecimo, afleflat’ & onerat® fuer’ fuper
feparal’ perfon’ in ead” fchedul’ nominat®, in &
verfus provifion’ navis pro guerra, una cam ap-
parat’ & al’ eid’ peran’, in cod’ brevi particolar’
mentionat’s quibus quid’ feparal® denar’ fummis
fic afleffat’ & onerat’, & non folut’ & fatisfact’
exiften’, per breve noftrum de certiorar® geren’
dat’ nono die Martii, anno regni noftri duode-
cimo, {ub magno figillo noftro’ pred’ emanar’,
nomina earund’ {eparal® perfon’ una cum feparal®
denar’ fummis {uper ipfos onerat’, in cur’ Cancellar’
noftree certificat’ fuer’. Ac per breve noftrum de
Mittimus {ub eodem figillo, geren’ dar’ quinto
die inftant’ menfis Mait in Scaccar’ noftr’ mifs’
iuer” pro ulterior’ procefs’ fuper inde habend’,
prout per tenorem praedicht brevis geren’ dat’
quarto die Augulti, anno regni noftri undecimo,
ac per praedict’ breve de Cerciorar® & certificad’
fuper inde faét’ in dictum Scaccar’ noftrum mfs’,
& 1bid® de record” in cuftodia Rememorat® noftri
remancn’ plentus apparet, tibt praecipimus, quod
non omitt’ propter aliqw’ libertat’ quin ea inge’,
& per probos & legales homines de bal® wa feir?
fac’ prefad’ feparal’ perfon’ m diét’ fchedul’. no-
minat’ & fpec’, quod fint coram Baron’ de Scac-
car’ noftro apud Weftm’ in oftab’ fanéte Trinit’

proxim’ futur’, ad oftend’ & proponend’, fiquid
pro fe habeant, vel dicere fciant, quare ipfi de
pred’ feparal’ denar’ fummis fuper ipfos modo
& forma predi@ affefla’, & non folu’, in
fchedul’ 1¥* fpec’, onerari & inde fatisfacere non
deb’ & ad ultertus faciend” & recipiend’ in praes
miflis, quod cur’ noftra tunc 1bidem duxerit or-
dinand’ & habeas ibi tunc hoc breve, & nomina
cor’ per quos cis {ciri fecerts, 1efte Humfr’ Da-
venport’ Mil, apud Weltny’, vicehmo f{ecundo
die Maii, anno regni noftri decimo tertio.  Per
rotulum,

Viemorandum de eodem anno Regis in re-
cordor’ rotulo termini Pafchee, Tenor {chedul®
preed” in brevi praedict’ mentionat’, quoad Jo-
hannem Hampden, fequitur in hee verba: Jf Schea
dul’ de nominibus certar® perfonar’ in com® Bucks,
& cert' denar’ fummar’ fuper iplos affeflat’® &
onerat’ in & wverfus provifion’ navis de pguerra,
una cum apparat’ & al’ eid® pertir’, virtute cu-
jufd’ brevis fub magno figillo Anglize, geren’ dat’
quarto die Augufti, anno regni Domint Reg’
nunc Caroli undecimo, & n cur’ Cancellar® Dom’
Regis, virtute brevis de Certiorar’ fub figillo
prad’ eman’y geren’ dat’ nono die Martii, anno
regni fui duodecimo, certificat’ effe infolur’, ac
per breve de Mittimus fub eodem higillo in Scac-
car’ di&’ Dom’ Regis nunc miflis pro ulterior’
procefs’ fuper inde faciend’, prout per tenor’ pra-
dict” brevis geren’ dat’ quarto die Augulty, anno
regni di¢ti Domini Regis nunc undecimo fupra-
di€t’, ac per breve de Certiorar’, & certificar’
fuperinde fadt’ in diGtum Scaccar’ noftr’ mify’, &
ibidem de record’ in cuftod’ Rememorat” Dom’

Regis reman’ plenius apparet,

f Vol. I p. 388, N®31. and Hut. Rep, 113,
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Stoake Mandivile, /. Jobann’ Hampden Efq;
Ad quem dicm Anthonius Chefter Baronet’, Vic’
com’ preediét’, quoad prcfat’ Johannem Hamp-
den retorn’, quod per Nicolaum Aris, Robertum
Alexander, Richardum IHarrifon, & WilPum
Heyborne, probos & legales homines de ball’ {ua,
fcirt fecit, prafar’ Johann’ FHampden, inter al’
quod fit coram Baror’ infra fcript’ ad diem & lo-
cum infra content’y ad oftendend' & proponend’
{i quid pro fe habeat, vel dicere fciat, quare ipfe
de preedict’ fumma fuper iplum affefla’, & non
folut’, in fchedul’ praediét’ {pec’, onerari & inde
fatisfacere non debeat, prout ulterius fibi praecipi-
tur: Et modo, fcilicet a die fan&e Trinitatis 1n
tres feptiman’ venit hic praed’ Johannes Hampden,
in {chedul’ prasd® nominat’, in propria perfona
fua, & petic audit’ brevis de Scirt facias praed’,
retorn’ eufdem, ac prad’ fchedul eid’ annexat’,
& ei leguntur; petit ctiam audit’ pred’ brevis,
geren’ dat’ quarto die Augufti, anno regni dicti
Domini Regis nunc Caroli undecimo, 1n brevi
de Sciri factas mentionat’, & ei legitur in haee
verba :

/- Carolus Dei gratia Angliz, Scotiz, Fran-
ciz, & Hibernie Rex, fAdet defenfor, &, Vi
com’ noltri Bucks, Ball’ & Burgens’ burgt & pa-
roch’ de Buckingham, Majori, Ball’ & DBurgens’
burgi de Chipping-Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe,
ac probis hominibus in cifdem burgis & paroch’,
& membris corund’, & in villis de Agmonde-
fham, Wendover, & Marlow magna, ac in om-
nibus aliis burgts, villa’, hamlet” & al’ locis n
dicto com’ Bucks, falutem.  Quia dat’ eft nobis
intelligi, quod pracdones quil’y piratt, & mar’
oraflfitores, tamy nominis Chrifliant hoftes Mahu-
metani, quam alil congregatt, naves & bona ac
merciny’ non folum fubditor’ nofty’, verum etiam
fuditor’ amicoy’ nofty® in mari, quod per gent’
Anglican® ab olim defend confuevit, nefarie di-
ripientes & fpoliantes, ad hbitum {uwum depor-
tavere, homines i cifdem in captivitate mi-
ferrima mancipantes: Cumaue ipfos confpicimus
navigium indies pr.oparantes ad mercatores noftros
ulterius molcftand’; « ad regnum gravand’, ni-
{i citius remedium apponatur, eorumque cona-
wi virilius obvietur ¢ Confideratis ctlam periculis,
que undique his guarrinis temporibus imminent,
ita quod nobis & fubditis noftris, defenfion’ ma-
ris & regni omoni feftinatione, qua poterimus,
accelerare  convenit :  Nos  volentes  defenfion
regnl, tuitiont maris, fecuritati fubditor’ noftr’,
falva conductione navium & merchandizar’ ad
reanum noftrum Anglice vemen’, & de eod’ reg-
no ad partes exteras tranfeun’, auxtliante Deo,
providere; maxime cumque nos & progenitores
noltri Reges Anglia domini maris pracd’ femper
hactenus extiter’, & plorimum nos twederet, i
honor ilte regius noflris temporibus depereat, aut
in aliquo minuatur; cumque onus iftud defenfio-
nis, quod ommes tngat, per omnes debeat fup-
portari, prout per legem & confuetudinem regni
Anglice fiert conluevit, vobis preefar’ Vicecomiti,
Ball’, Burgens’, Majori, probis hominibus, &
omnibus aliis quibulcung; fupra mentionat’ in
burgis, villis, villat’, hamlet’, & locis fupradiét’,
corumque membris, in fide & ligeantia, quibus
nobis tenemini, & -ficut nos & honorem noftrum
diligitis, necnon fub forisfadlur’ omnium qua:
nobis forisfacere poteritis, frmiter injungend’
mandamus, quod unam navem de guerra, por-
tagii quadringint’ & quinquagint’ dolior’, cum
hominibus tan magiftris peritis, quam marinar’
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valentioribus & expertis cent” & o&ogint’ ad m.
nus, ac etiam tormentis tam majoribus quam mi-
noribus, pulvere tormentario, ac haftis & telis,
alifque armaturis neceflar’ pro guerra fufficien’,
& cum duplici eskippamento, necnon cum vich.
alibus ufque ad primum  diem Martii jam proxi-
me fequent’, ad tor homines competen’, & ab-
inde in vigint’ & fex feptiman’ ad coftag’ veftra,
tam 1 victualibus, quam in hominum falariis, &
al’ ad guer’ neceflar’ per tempus illud, fuper de-
fenfionem maris in oblequio noftro in comitiva
cuftodis maris (cui cultod” maris ante prad’ pri-
mum diem Martii committemus) & prout ipfe ex
parte noftra diftaverit moratur’, parari, & ad
portum de Portfmouth citra dictum primum diem
Marti duci faciatis, 1ta quod fint ibid® eod® die
ad vittmum, ad prohiciend’ exinde cum navibys
noftris, & navibus alior’ fidelium fubditor’ noftr’,
pro tuitione maris, defenfione noftrum & noftro-
rum, repullioneque & debellatione quorumcung;
mercatores noftros, & alios fubditos fideles pra-
dict’ in dominta noftra ex caufa mercature fe di-
verfantes, vel abinde ad propria declinantes fuper
mare gravare feu moleftare fatagentium. Affig.
navimus autem vos Vic’ com, noftt’ Bucks, Balp
& Major” burgor’ & paroch’ pradiét’, aut aliquos
duos vel plures veftrum, quorum te prazfar® Vic’
com’ noftrt Bucks unum efle volumus, infra tri-
gint’ dies poft receptionem hujus brevis, ad affi-
dend’ quantum de cuflag’ praediét’ fuper prad’
burgos de Buckingham & Chipping- Wiccombe,
alias Wiccombe, cum membris eorund’, fepara-
tim poni aut aflideri debeat. Et ft hujuimeds
afleflament’ infra pradict’ triginta dies per vos
duos, vel plures veltrum fieri non contigerint,
tunc affignavimus te prefat’ Vic® com’ noftr
Bucks ad afleflamen’ hujufmedi fuper pradic?®
burgos & paroch’, & membr’ corund’, faciend’
prout ratiopabiliter vides faciend’; & volumus,
quod de toto facto tu preefat’ Vic” Bucks, fub
figillo tuo preedict’ Majorem & Ballivos reddas
certiores. Aflignavimus ctiam te prefar” Ball
burgi & paroch’ de Buckingham, ad affidend’
omnes homines 1n eodem burgo & paroch’y &
membris ejufd’, & terr’ tenentes, in eifdem nu-
vem vel partem navis prediél’ non habentes, vel
in eadem non defervientes, ad contribuend® ex-
penfis circa provifion’ preemifior’ neceflar’ ; & fu-
per predict” burgum & paroch’; cum membris
ejufd” (ficur preetertur) afhidend® & ponend’, wiz.
quembibet eor’ juxta ftatum fuum & faculeates
fuas & portiones fuas 1pfis affeffac® per diftrictic-
nes, aliofve modos debitos levand® & colle€tores
in hac parte nominand’ & conftituend’, & omnes
€0s, quos rebelles & contrarios inveneris in pra-
miflis carcere mancipand’, in eodem moratur’
quoufque pro cod’ deliberatione ulterius duxeri-
mus ordimand’. Affignavimus ctiam te prafat’
Major® burgi de Chipping-Wiccombe, alias Wic-
combe, ad aflidend’ omnes homines in eod’ bur-
oo & membris ejufdem, & ter’ tenentes, in elld’
navem vel partem navis preed’ non habentes,
vel 1n eadem non defervientes, ad contribuend’
expenfis circa provifion’ preemiflfor’ neceffar’; &
fuper pradict’ burg’, cum membris ejufd® ((cue
prefertur) aflidend” & ponend’, wviz. quemlibet
eorum Juxta ftatum fuoum & facultates fuas, &
portiones fuper ipfos aflefs’ per diftrictiones, aliof-
ve modos debitos levand®, & colle€tores in hac
parte nommand’ & conttituend” & omnes eos,
quos rebelles & contrarios inveneris in praemifis
in carcere mancipand’, in eod” moratut’, quo-
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ufque pro cor’ deliberatione ulterius duxerimus
ordinand’.  Et ultertus aflignavimus te prafar®
Vicecomitem com’ noftr’ Bucks ad aflidend’ om-
nes homines in pred’ wvillis de Agmondefham,
Wendover, & Marlow magna, & in membris
corund’y & in omnibus alus villis, villat’, burgis,
hamlet’, & alus locis in pradiét’ com’ Bucks, &
tery’ tenentes in eifdlem, navem vel partem navis

rd’ non habentes, vel in eadem non delervien-
s, ad contribuend’ expenfis circa provifionem
prremiffor’ neceffar’y & fuper praedict® villas, vil-
la’, burgos, hamlet’ & locos, cum membris eorund’
(lieut precfertur) affidend” & ponend’; vz, quem-
hbet cor’” Juxta ftatum fuum, & facultates fuas, &
}:na'tiones fuper 1plos afleffa® per diftrictiones,
2liosve modos debitos levand’, & colle€tores in
hac parte nominand’ & contituend’, & omnes
quos rebelles & contrarios Inveneris - praemifiis
carcere mancipand’, in eod’ moratur’, quoufque
pro eor” deliberatione ulterius duxertmus ordinand’,
It ulterius vobis mandamus, quod circa pramiffa
diligenter intendatis, & ea faciatis, & exequamini
cum cifeCtu fub periculo incumbente.  Nolumus
miem quod colore preedict’ mandat’ nofty’, plus
de i homintbus levari faciatis, quam ad pra-
miffor’ fufficiet expenfas neceflar’, aut quod
quifguam, qui pecuniam de contributionibus ad
preedice cuftag’ faciend’ levaverit, cam, vel par-
tem inde aliquam penes fe detineat, vel ad af
ulus quovis queefito colore appropriare prefumat,
volentes, qued fi plus quam fufhciat collect” fue-
rit, hoc inter folventes pro rata portionis iplis
contingen’ exfolvatr.  Tefte me iplo apud
Weftny' quarto die Augufli, anno regni noftri
undecimo. Petit etiam audi’ praedict’ brevis
aeren’ dat’ nono die Martt, anno regnt dig?ti
Domini Regis xii® in preedilt’ brevi de Sciri
facias mentionat’, & et fimiliter legitur.

Carolus Dei gratia Anglie, Scotie, Francie,
& Hibernie Rex, fider detenfor, &c, Vic' cony
noftri Bucks, qui fuer’ mter quartum diem Au-
gufti anno regnt noftri undecimo, & primum di-
em Martii tunc proxime fequent’, Ball burg’ &
paroch’ de Buckingham, & Major’ & Ball” burg?
de Chipping~-Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe, in dicto
com’ Bucks, qui {uer’ inter tempus pradict, fa-
Jutem, Per breve noftrum fub magno hgillo
noftro Anglize confelt’, geren’ dat’ preedict’ quar-
to die Avgufti, anno undecimo fupradict’, pro
defenfione regnt, tuitione maris, fecuritate fubdi-
tor’ noflt’, ac falva conduione navium & mer-
chandizarum ad regn’ noftr’ Angliz venien’, &
de eodem ad partes exteras tranfeun’, Vic’ com’
noftri Bucks, Ball’ burgi & paroch’ de Bucking-
han, necnor Burgens’ cufd® burgl, Maor’ &
Ball’ de Chipping- Wiccomby, alias Wiccombe,
necnon Burgens’ ¢juid’ burgl, & probis homini-
bus in cifdem burgis & paroch’, & membris eo-
rund’, & mn villis de Agmondetham, Wendover,
& Marlow magna, ac tn omnibus alus villis, bur-
ois, villat’, hamle’, & -alus locis n difto comy’
Bucks, mandavimus, quod unam navem de guer-
ra portagii quadringent’ & quinquaging’ dolior’,
cum hominibus tam megiftns peritis, quam ma-
rinat” valentioribus & expertis centum & oto-
oint’ ad minus, ac ctlam tormentis tam majo-
nbus quam minoribus, pulvere tormentatrio, ac
haltis & telis, alitique armatwris neceffu” pro
onerra fufficten’, & cum duplict eskippamento,
recnon cum victualibus ad certum diem (in eod?
brevi content’) ad tot homines competen’, & ab-
inde in vigint’ & fex feptiman’, ad cuftag’ homi-
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num & terr’ tenen’ burg’, parock’, vilP, villat’,
& al” locor’ fupra mentionat’ in difto com® Bucks,
tam 1n victualibus, quam in hominum falariis, &
al’ ad guerr’ necefla’ per tempus illud, fuper
defenfionem maris moratur’ parart, & ad portum
de Portlmouth citra tempus in eod” brevi limitar’
duct faceretis.  Cumque etiam per idem breve af-
hgnaverimus Vic’ cony’ noftri Bucks praed’, Ball
burgi & paroch’ de Buckingham pred’, & Ma-
jor’ burgi de Chipping-Wiccombe pred’, aut
aliquos duos vel plures corum, quor’ Vie® dicti
com’ noftr1 Bucks unum effe volumus, infra cer-
tum terminum proxun’ poft receptionem brevis
illius, ad aflidend’ quantim de coftag’ praed?
fuper preed” burg® & parociy’ de Buckingham, &
fuper preed’ burg® de Chipping-Wiccombe, alias
Wiccombe, cum membris corund’, feparatim
pon feu affidert deberet. Cumque etiam per
pred’ breve noftrum affignaverimus Ball® burgi
& paroch’ de Bucking’, & Majorem de burgo de
Chipping-Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe, feparatim
& relpective, ad affidend’ omres homines in eifd’
feparal’ burg” & paroch’, & membr’ corund’, &
teri” tenentes - erfdem, navem vel partem navis
praed’ non habentes, vel in eadem non defervi-
entes, ad contribuend” ad expens’ circa provifio-
nem premiffor’ neceflar’; & fuper pred? burg?
& paroch’ de Buckingham, & fuper preed® burg’
de Chipping-Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe, cum
membris corund’, ficut pracfertur, ad tunc fepa-
ratm & diftinétive ponend’, wiz. quemlibet co-
rom Juxta flatum foum & facultates fuas, & pot~
tiones fuper 1pfos aficflar’, per diftrictiones alios-
ve modos debitos levand’, & colletores in ea
parte nominand’ & conftituend’ modo & forma
prout in eodem brevi pracept’ fuit.  Cumque
per idem breve noftrum ulterius affignaverimus
Vic’ diéti com’ noftri Bucks ad aflidend® omues
homines n preed’ villis de Agmondetham, Wen.-
dover, Marlow magna, & in membris eorund’,
ac tn omnibus alus villis, villat’, burgis, hamler,
& alus locis 1n preed’ com? Bucks, & terr’ tenen-
tes n eifd’, ad contribuend” expenfis circa provi-
fionem premiffor’ neceflar’, & ad cetera faciend!
& cxequend’ modo & forma, quibus per breve
illud praeceptum fuit.  Er quia nonnallt homines
& terr’ tenentes in predid” com’, burg’, paroch?,
vill’, willat’, hamlet’, & aliis locis, per feparal’
taxationes & denar’ fummas, per vos fuper ipfos
refpective erga contribution’ oneris pra:d’, juxra
exigen’ brevis pred’ poli’ & affeffat’; nondum
folverint nec fatisfecerint, fed eas {olvere recufa-
ver’, & adhuc contradicunt, prout informamur:
Cumgs; nos nuper volutmus certiorari, tam de no-
minibus hominum & tery’ tenent’, qui ad contri-
buend” expenfis fupradi®t® aflefs’ fuiffent, ac de-
nar’ fic aifels’ non folviflent, quam de ft:p:}.ra’fIi
portionibus vel denar’ {ummis fuper ipfos impo-
i*, vos tamen nihil 1n return’ eufdem brevis
noflrt mififtis, in noftrum contemptum : Vo-
bis 1gitur prefat’ nuper Vie® com’ noflri Bucks
mandamus, ficur al® mandaverimus, quod tam de
nominibus homtnum & ter’ tener’ in cony’ prred”
per vos refpettive virtute dicti brevis noflri af-
fefat’, quas denar’ fummis fuper iplos fic affefs
fa’, quam nondum folver’ nec fatisfec®; fed eas
folvere recufant, quas de feparal’ portionibus &
denar’ fummis per vos prafat’ nuper Vie’ com*
noftri Bucks fuper ipfos affeffat®, in feript® re-
dudt’, cum ommnibus ilI’ tangen’, nos in cancel-
lar’" noftram fub figillis veftns diftintte & aperte,
fine delatione, vel ad ultmum ante vicelimum

B2 fextum
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fextum diem April® proxime futuro, ubicunque
tunc fuerit’, reddat® certiores, una cum hoc brevi,
Ac vobis prefat’ nuper Ball’ burgt & paroch’ de
Bucking’, & Major’ burg’ de Chipping-Wic-
combe, al’ Wiccombe, mandamus, ficut aliis
mandaverimus, quod tam de nominibus pred’
hominum & terr’ tenen’ in burg’ & paroch’ de
Buckingham, & burg’ de Chipping-Wiccombe,
alias Wiccombe, per vos refpective virtute dicti
brevis noftri fuperius primo mentionat® affefs’,
quam de feparal’ denar’ fummis fuper 1pfos afiels’,
quas nondum folver’ nec fatistecer’, fed eas fol-
vere recufant, quam de feparal’ portionibus &
denar’ fummis per vos fuper ipfos relpetive ai-
fefs’ in [criptis hdeliter reduct’, cum omnibus 1llis
tangen’, nos in cancellariam noftr’ pred” fub fi-
gillo noftro diftinéte & aperte, fine delatione,
vel ad ultim’ ante pradict’ vicelimum diem Aprilis
proxime futur’, ubicunque tunc fuert’, feparatim
reddatis certiores, una cum hoc brevi, Telte me-
ipfo apud Weftm’ nono die Martii, anno regni
noftri duodecimo. EY R E.

Ad quem diem Petrus Temple & Heneagius
Proby return’ brev’ pred’ dors’ fic: Jf. Executio
hujus brevis patet in quibufd® fchedul” huic brevi
annexat’, quarum quidem {chedul® tenor, quoad
prefac Johan’ Hampden per prefat’ Petrum Tem-
ple retornat’, fequitur in haee verba: ff. Ego Petrus
Temple Mil* & Baronet’, qui fui Vic’ com’ Bucks,
viz. inter quartum diem Augufti, anno regni Do-
mini noflrt Caroli nunc Regis Anglize, e, un-
decimo, & vicefimum fecundum diem Februarii
tunc proxime fequen’, quo die exivi ab officio
meo Vic’ com’ pred’, diCto Domino Regi in
Cancellar’ fuam, virtute brevis ejufdem Domini
Regis huic {chedul’” annex’, certifico, quod virtus
te & fecundum exigen’ brevis ipfius Domint Re-
ais e Cancellar’ fua emanat, & ibidem de record’
irrotulat’, & Vic’® diétt com’ Bucks inter al’ di-
rect’, geren’ dat’ quarto die Augufti, anno un-
decimo fupradi®’, alleflavi, Anglice bave affefled,
foper feparal” homines & ter’ tenentes com’ Bucks
preed’, quorum nomina fubferibuntur, feparal’
portiones & denai’ +.nmas ad eor” particular’ in-
ferius pofit’ ad contribuend” expenfis circa pro-
vilflonem navigii in cod’ brevi mentionat’; quas
quidem portiones & denar’ fummas, five aliquam
inde parcell’, anie exitum ab officio meo Vic’
com’’ predid’, ad manus meas, vel ad manus
colleétor® in ca parte, virtute brevis ult’ mentto-
nat’ per me conftitu’, pred’ homines & ter’ te-
nentes, aut cor’ aliquis, quor’ nomina fublcribun-
tur, non folverunt, fed eas folvere recufaver’,
viz, Stoalze Mandivile, /. John Hampden Iifq;
fir tenor al’” {chedul” per prefat® Heneag® Proby
Adeli® return’, & eid’ brevi annex’, fequitur
etiam in hac verba: wiz, There is to be accounted
upon by the Ajfeffars, High Conftables, Petty Con-
frables within the faid Counly in geieral, whicl
caninol be accoriited for by Sir Peter Temple, berng,
as it conceived, foort, Four Pounds.

Lao Heneagius Proby Arm’, qui fut Vic” com’
Bucks inter vicdlimum fecundum diem Februar’,
anno Regnt Dom’ noftri Carolt nunc Reg’ An-
glie, ¢, undecimo, & ab eodem die & anno
utque primum diem Martii tunc proxime {equen’,
aito Domint Regi in Cancellar’ fuam, virtute
brevis ejufdem Domino Reg’ huic {chedul” an-
nex’, certifico, quod homines & ter’ tenentes
com’ Bucks pred’, aut eor’ aliquis, quor’ nomi-
na in quibufd’ fchedul® huic brevi annex’ expri-

muntur, qui aflefs’ fuer” per Petrum Temple Mil?

& Baronet’ nuper Vic’ com’ Bucks pred, dum
in officio Vi¢’ ejufd’ com’ {teterit, in feparal’ de.
nar’ portiontbus, & denar’ fummis ad eor’ fepa-
ral’ nomna fuperius poffit’, ad contribuend® ¢x.
penfis circa provifionem navigii, virtute & fecun.
dum exigen’ brevis ipfius Domini Regis ¢ Cap-
cell’ fua emanat’, & ibidem de record” irrop
Vic' dicti com’ Bucks inter alios dire@® perers
daC’ quarto die Augufti, anno undecimo fupra.
di¢t’, Heneag’ Proby exiften’ Vic’ pradiét’ com®
Bucks proxime poft exitum diti Petri Temple
Mil> & Baronet’ ab officio Vic® ¢jufd’ comy’, vel
ad manus collector’ 1n ea parte virtute brevis yl-
timo mentionat’ conftitut’, non folver’, fed exs
folvere recufaverunt, Lt ulterius preefat’ Johannes
Hampden petit fimiliter audie’ preed® brevis de
Mittimus, de quo n brevi de Sciri facias pras?
ht mentto, & ei legitur in heee verba.

J. Carolus Dei gratta Anglie, Scotie, Francin,
& Hibernie Rex, fidei defenfor, &, Thefur’ &
Baronibus de Scaccario fuo, falutem. Tenore
cajufdam brevis noftri {ub magno figillo noftro
Anglizz contect’, geren” dat’ quarto die Augulli,
anno regni noftrt undecimo, in rotults Cancellar’
noftre irrotulat’, per quod Vic’> com’ noflr

Bucks, Ball’ & Burgen’ burgi & paroch® de Buic-
kingham, Mejor’, Ball’, & Burgens’ burgi de-
Chipping- Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe, ac pro-
bis hominibus in etfd® burgis & paroch?, & mem-
bris eorund’, & in villis de Agmondefham, Wen-
dover, & Marlow magna, & in omnibus aliis
burgts, villis, villaus, hamlet’s & aliis locis in
dicto com” Bucks, mandavimus, quod pro defen-
lione regni, tuitione maris, fecuritate fubditorum
noftrorum, ac falva conduétione navium & mey-
chandizarum ad regnum noftrum Anglia: venien’,
& de eod’ ad partes exteras tranfeun’, pararent
unam navem de guerra portagi quadringene® &
quinquagint’ dolior’, cum hominibus tam magiftris
peritis, quam marinarnis valentioribus & expertis
centum & oétogint’ ad minus, ac etiam tormentis
tam majoribus quam minortbus, pulvere tormen-
tario, ac haftis & telis, aliifque armaturis necefins®
pro guerra {ufficien’, & cum duplici eskippamento,
necnon cum vi€tualibusad certum diem, in eod’
brevi content’, ad tot homines competen’, & ab-
inde in vigint’ & fex feptiman’, ad cuftag’ homi-
num & tert” tenen’ burgor’, vill’, villat’, ham-
fet’, & al’ locor’ fupra mentionat’ in dicto com’
Bucks, tam in vi€tualibus, quam in hominum -
lar’, & al’ ad guerram neceffar’ per tempus illud
fuper defenfionem maris in obfequio noftro, in
comitiva cuftod® maris moratur’, & ad portum
de Portfm’, circa tempus in eod’ brevi limitat’,
duct facerent, Quodque refpeétive afliderent om-
nes homines in pred’ burg’ & paroch’ de Buc-
kingham, & burg’ de Chipping- Wiccombe, alias
Wiccombe, & caeteris burgis, villis, villat’, ham-
let’ & aliis locis in difto com® Bucks, & mem-
bris corund’, & ter’ tenentes in eifd’, ad contri-
buend” expenfis circa *provifionem premifios’,
& ad catera faciend” & cxequend’, modo & for-
ma prout per idem breve praecept’ fuit ; vobis
mittimus preefentibus inter claus’ breve, pro co
quod falus regni noftri Angliz, & pepuli noftri
ejufdem perichitabatur, quod e difta Cancellar?
noftra emanari narravimus, inter al’> brevia ad
hujufmodi provifionem & affeffament’ faciend”
per fingulos com?, civitat’, burg’, vilP, villat’,
hamlet’, & locos regni noftri Angliz & Walliz,
& membris eorund’, ¢ Cancellar’ noftr’ pred’
nuper emanat’y & ibidem [imuliter irrot’ 3 ac

etiam
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eiiam quod dictum al’ breve noftrum ad certifi-
cand’ nobis in eand’ Cancellar’, tam de nomini-
bus hominum & terr’ tenen’ in pred’ burg’ &
paroch’ de Buckingham, & burg’ de Chipping-
Wiccombe, alias Wiccombe, & in ceteris burgs,
villis, villat’y, hamlet” & locis diéti com’ Bucks,
qui de mandato noftro® prad’ ad contribuend’
eroa provifion’ premiflor’ afe(s” fuermt, ac de
nar’ fuper ipfos fic aflels’ non folver’, quam de
feparal’ portionibus & denar” fummis fuper homi-
nes & terre tenew’ llos fic onerat’ & 1mpofit’,
necnon certificationes qualdam in feriptis, virtute
brevis ilius reduét’y, & in diftam Cancellar’ no-
lram mifs’.  Vobis etiam mittimus  praefentibus
mcerclaus’, mandantes, quod infpectis brevibus
& certificat® preed’, ulterius nde pro levatione,
colleCtione, & receptione omnium & fingularum
prexd” denar” fummar’ de preed’ contributionibus
adhuc non folut’, flert fac’, prout de jure & fecun-
dum lezem & confuetudinem regni noflty” Anglie
fucrit faciend’. Tefte meipfo apud Weltm’ quinto
die Maii, anno regni noftricertio decimo, €'Y R E.
Sicut in cifdem brevibus, & {chedol’” eifd” annex’,
in Scaccar’ dicti Dom’ Regis certificat’, & ibidem
in cuftod’ Rememorator’ ejufd” Dom’ Regis de re-
cord’ remanen’ plenius continetur,  Quibus lects,
anditis, & per ipfum intelleCtis, idem Johannes
queritur, fe colore feparal’ brev’, return’ corund’,
& fehedul’ eifdd” annexat’, graviter vexat’ fore &
inquictat’, & hoc minus julte; quia dicity quod
prazd’ feparal’ brevia fuperius mentionat’, retarn’
corund’, & fchedul’ eifdem annexat’, matern in
eifd’ content’, minus fufficien’ in lege exiftunt ad
operand’ ipfum Johannem Hampden de aut cum
folutione preed’ fumny’ vigint® folid” fuper 1pfum
in fchedol’ preed’, modo & forma pred’, taxat’
& afleffat’, aut alicujus inde parcell’, ad que ipfe
necefTe non habet, nec per legem terr’ tenctur
refpondere.  Unde ob infufficien’ pracd’ feparal
breviem  fuperius  menttonat’, return’  corund’,
ichedul’ eifdem annex’, ac materie 1n ciidem
brevibus ac fchedul’ content’, ipfe idem Johannes
FHlampden petit judicium,‘Si cjit?tus Domir}us Rex
nunc ipfam de preed’ vigint folid’, aut aliqua in-
de parcell’, ulterius impetere, feu onerare debeat
aug velit,

Robert Helborne.

E: Joharnes Banks Mil’, Attorn’ Dom’ Regis
nunc general’, qui pro eodem Domino Rege fe-
quitur, preefens hic 1n cur’ ad eund’ diem mn pro-
pria perfona fua, dicit, quod pred’ feparal’® bre-
via, & return’ corund’, ac fchedu!l’ praed” efdem
annex’, materiaqs in eifdem content’, ufhcien’ n
leoe exiftunt ad  prad® Johan” Hampden de
preed’ viging® folid* fuper iplum in forma & ex
caufa pracd” afleffac® oncrand’ 3 quam quidem ma-
teriam ipfe dictus Attornat’ dicti Dony’ Regis ge-
neral’, pro codem Doy’ Rege paratus clt verifi-
care; quamgs materiam praed’ Johannes Hlamp-
den non didicit, nec ad eam aliqualiter refpondi,
fed verificationem illam admittere omnino recufat :
Pro codemn Dom’ Rege ideirco petit judicum, &
quod preed’ Johannes Hampden de eifd® vigint’
folid? onvretur, & inde fatisfaciat, &,

Fobannes Banks.

A Capy of the Fudzment, asit is entred upon Record
i prifuance of the faid Motion, and according to
the mejor Vles.

¥ T quia Barones hic f advifare volunt de &

£ fuper praemifiis, priusq’ judicium inde red-

9

dant, dies dat’ eft praefat’ Johanni Flampden cod’
{tatu quo nunc hic in o&ab’ fanéti Michaelis,
ut dicti Barones fe interim de iifdem premiffis
advifare poffint, ac cum Jufticia’ de utroq®
banco inde deliberent, eo quod iidem Barones
hic inde nondum, &¢, Et fuper hoc concordat’
elt inter Barones hic, tam ex aflenfu dict’ Attor-
nat’ dict” Domini Reg’ general’, quod dicl’ At-
tornat’ praed’ Johannis Hampden, & Confiliario:’
in lege peritor’ ¢jufdem Johannis Hampden, quod
atiqui legts perit, tam de confilie & parte diét’> Do-
mint Reg’, quam de confilio & parte di@’ Johannis
Hampden, de pred’ materia in lege, & cateris
premiflis in camera hujus Scaccari, vulgariter nun-
cupat’ The Luchequer Chamber, coram nid’ Baroni-
bus, affidentibuseis Jufticiar’ de utroque banco, ar-
gumentart interim publice audmntur,  Ad quas
quid’ oftabas fanéli Michaclis preed’ Johanpes
Hampden venit hic ut privs.  Et quia Barones hic
ultertus {e advifare volunt de & fuper prozmiffis,
priusq’ judicium inde reddant, dies ulterius dat’ cft
prefat’ Johannt Hampden, eod® flatu quo nunc
hic ufg’ in octab® fancti Hilarii, ut aliqui legis pe-
rit, tam de confilio & parte i€’ Domint Reg’,
quam de confilio & parte dit’ Johannis Hamp-
den, de pracd’ materia in lege, & cteris pracmil-
{is, in pred’ camer’ hujus Scaccarii, coram Ba-
rontbus prad®, affidentibus cis preed® Jufticiar® de
utroque banco, argumentart interim publicc au-
diantur; ac ud’ Barones, cum nld’® Jultionr’ inde
deliberent, eo quod nullus in lege pentus, wvel
de confilio 1pfius Domint Reg’, vel de confi-
lio di€t’ Johannis Hampden adbuc auditur, &
Barones hic inde non advifantur, {gc, Pofteaq’
medio tempore in praed’ oftab’ fanéti Michaelis,
& pred’ oltab’ fancti Hilar, tum Attornat” &
Solicitator ipfius Domint Rep’, quam duo legis
periti de confilio pred’ Johannis Hampden, in
preemiffis exiften’ ex parte eufd’ Johannis Hamp-
den, duodecim feparal’ dicbus i pred’ camer’
Scaccarii, coram Baronibus hujus Scaccarii, affi-
dentibus ets tunc ibid' pred’ Jofliciar® de utioq’
banco, de prazd’ mater’ in lege & cwteris pra-
miflis (recitato tunc 1bid’ record’ preed’ ) ad lar-
cum & fummar’ argumentari quidq’ inde ex
utraq’ parte dicere potuiflent aut voluer’y palam
& fingulatim audit’ fuer’. ISt praed’ Actorpat’ &
Solicitator general’ diverla & quamplurima  re-
cord’, brevia, commiffion’y & praceden’ tam
hujus Scaccarii, quam cur’ Cancellai’, cu’ de Ban-
co Reg’, ac de Commu’ Banco, mater’ 1n lege,
& cxtera praemifla in feparal® brevibus return’, &
fchedulis pred’ content’, ex parte dict’ Domi-
ni Reg® proban’y, confirman’, & manutener’, ad
tunc & ibid’ produxer’, oftenfer’, & cxpofuer’ s
& ad praed’ oftabas fanét Hilar® praed’ Johannes
Hampden venit hic ut prius, & quia Barones hic
ulterius fe advifare volunt de & fuper preniilis
priufquam judicium nde reddant, dies ulterius
dat’ eft praefar’ Johanni Hampden, cod’ ftatu quo
nunc hic, ufq’ a die Palcha: in quindecim dhes,
ut dicti Barones interim, cum praefat’ Jutticiar’ de
utroq’ Banco ulterius deliberent, eo quod ndem
Barones hic inde nondum, {5¢.  Ad quem diem
pred” Johannes Hampden venit hic ut prius, &
quia Barones hic ulterius fe advifare volunt de &
fuper preemiffis priufquam judicium inde reddan,
dies ulterius dat’® eft eid’ Johanni, cod’ ftatu quo
nunc hic, ufg’ in cro’ fanédle Trin’, & diét’ Ba-
rones interim cum prefat’ Jufhiciar’ de utrog”
banco ulterius inde deliberent, eo quod iidem Ju-
fticiar’ hic inde nondum, {J¢, Ad quem diem

prad’
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pred’ Johannes Hampden venit hic ut prius, &
fuper hoc vilis preemiflis, & per Barones hic ple-
ne intelle@tis, habitaque inde matura deliberatio-
ne cum preed’ Jufticiar® de utroque banco, ac

poft argumenta tam per eofd’ Jufticiar’, quam per
praed’ Barones fingulatim in praed” camer® Scacea-

rii publice inde fadt’, videtur inde Baronibus, ex
advifamento Julticiar® preed’, quod feparal® bre-

NDIX

via pred’, & return’ eorund’, ac fchedule pred?
eifd’ annex’, ac mater’ in cild’ content’, fufficien’
in lege exiftunt ad preefat’ Johannem Hampden
de praed’ vigint’ folid’, fuper 1pfum in forma & ex
caufa pred’ afleflat’ onerand’. Ideo confiderat®
elt per cofd® Barones, quod przed’ Johannes
Hampden de eifd” vigint® folid® oneretury & ex-
inde fatisfaciet, £,

Rex werfus Harrifon®, for @ Mildemeanour.

Triw’ 14 Car’ 1, B. R,

Middx' /. A Lias, feilicer die Jovis prox’ poft

..ﬁ oftab’ fanéte Trin' ifto eod’ ter-
mino, coram Domino Rege apud Weftm’, per
facrament’ xii. Jur’ exutit preelentat’, Quod cum
cur’ Domini Regis de Communi Banco ¢ft, & a
tempore cujus contrar’ memoria  hominum non
exiltit, fuit antiqua cur’ de recordo diti Domini
Regis nunc, & progenitor’ & anteceflor’ fuor’
Reg’ & Reginar’ Anghe, pro adminiftratione
jullitie fubdit® hujus regni Anglie, & aliis in
communibus pliieis per tot’ regnum Anglie preed”
motis & emergentibus,  Cumque eft contra co-
ron’ & dignita’’ Regiax majeflatts, necnon contra
leeem & confuetudinem hujus regni Anglize, pro
aliqua perfona, vel aliquibus perfonis cur’ prad’,
feu aliquos Julticiartos cjuld® cur’, ead’ cur’ aper-
ta exiflen’, & Juflicar’ cur’ illius in cu’ il
preefentibus, & judicialiter fedentibus, difturbare.
Cumg’ Ric’ Hutton miles eft, & per diverfos an-
nos_ja]n ult’ elapfos fuit, & adhuc eft, unus Ju-
fliciar’ dict” Domini Regis nunc praed’ cur’ fua s
quidun tamen Thomas Harrifon de Creck in
com’ Northampton Clericus, Deum pre oculis
fuis non habens, fed infligatione diabolica mot’
& feduft’y ficum malitiole imaginans, atque in
animo compaflans, quibus modis pofiit prad’
Ricardum Fution Mili, & adtunc & adhuc un?
Jullic’ Domini Regis nunc de Communi Banco
pracd’ exiften’, multieater defamare & fcanda-
lizare, machinansque «. malitiofe intendens, quan-
tum in iplo fuit, ipfum Ricardum Hutton m fcan-
dalum, ignominiam, contempt’, & vilipend’ indu-
cere, ipfumq’ Ricardum Hutton de vita {ua, ac
de bonis & catallis, terris, & tenementis fuis pra-
viter & mulitiofe deprivare, necnon ad difplacen-
tam & indignationem dif® Domini Regis nunc
erga preefad Ricard® Hutton incitand’ & provo-
cand’, ac ipfum Ricardum Kutton pro prodi-
tore tam apud dit’ Dominum Regem, & mag-
nates bujus regni Anghae, quam apud omnes hi-
ceos fubditos ¢jufd” Domini Regis haberi & exi-
itimart fatagens, ac ad praed’ cur’ dict’ Domini
nunc de Communt Banco, & Jufticiar’ diét® Do-
mini Regis ¢jufd’ cw’y o cw’ i1’ praefent’ exiftent’,
& judicialit’ fedentibug,  difturband’, & ad-
miniftrationem  Juftitie in cw’ ill’ impediend?,
quarto die Maii, anno regnit Domini noftri Caroli,
Dei gratia Anghie, Scotiee, Franc’, & Hibern’ Re-
ois, fidel defenforts, &z, decimo quarto, apud ci-
vitat® Weltm' in com” Midd’, viz. in magna aula
plitorum ibidem, cur’ ipfius Domini Regis coram
iplo Rege cur’ Cancellar’, & preed’ cur’ Com-
muni Banco i praed® magna aula plitorum
preed” apert’, ac Juftic ejufd® Domini Regis in
cur” preed’ tunc bidem preefentibus, & judiciali-
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ter fedentibus, materias & caufas Domini Regis,
populi {ui, ac regni ful Angliee affidue attendent
& audient’y legesq’ regni pred’ fubdit’ ipfins
Domini Regis miniftrant’, preed® Thomas Har-
rifon ad barram pred’ cur’ di¢ti Domini Regis de
Communi Banco, adtunc & ibidem violenter,
vi & armis, {gr, acceflit pred’ cur’ de Com-
muni Banco adwunc & ibidem in praed’ magna
aula, ut prafertur, aperta exiften’, ac Ricardo
Hutton Miliw’y, & alus Jufticia® di¢ti Domini
Regis cur’ de Communi Banco praed’, in cur
tlla tunc ibidem (ut preefertur) pralentibus, &
judictalit’ fedentibus, & praed’ Thomas Flarrifon
adtunc & ibidem, ex fua mera malitia, malo ani-
mo, & malevola intentione, in prafentia & au-
di’ prefa’ Jufticar’ pred’ cur’ de Communi
Banco, ac diverforum fervien’ ad legem, multor®
viror’ venerabilium, & alior’ dicti Domini Regis
fidelium fubditor’, falfo, nequit’, & malitiofe pra-
far’ Ricardum Hutton Milit” de alta proditione ac-
cufavit, & adiunc & 1bidem falfo, nequit’, & mali-
tiofe hac fcandalofa, venenofa, defamatoria Angli-
capa verba, palam, publice, & alta voce dixit, f
(ipfum prefat’ Thomam Harrifon innuendo) do
accfe Mr.Juftice Hutton (praefat’ Ricardum Hut-
ton Milit’, un’ Jufticiar’ dicti Domini Regis de
Communi Banco praed’ innuendo) of high Trea-
Jonny 1 dicti Domint Regis nunc, coron’, dig-
mtat’, & Regize poteftatis i lefionem &
derogationem, & cur’ fuz pred’ contempt’, &
fcandalum manifeftum jurifque & legum ipfius
Domtni Regis regni fui praed’, ac cur® de Come
munt Banco pred’, & Jufticiar’ dicti Domini
Regis, cur’ illius, & adminiftration® juftitiz in
ead’ cur’, 1n requiffimum exemplum omnium
aliorum malefattorum tali caft delinquent’, &
ad graviflimum fcandalum, infamiam, dedecus,
& fimal’ deftructionem praed’ Ricardi Hutton Mi-
I, & contra pacem diti Domini Regis nunc,
coronam, & dignitates fuas, &c, Cum per quod
preecept’ fuit Vic’, quon non omittat, &5, quin
venire fac’ eum ad refpondend’, €9¢, Cum &
modo, fcilicet die Veneris prox® poft otabas
fanGte Trin’ ifto cod’ termino, coram Domino
Rege apud Wefltm’ ven’ preed® Thomas Harri-
fon Clericus, cuftod” Henrici Hopkins Arm’,
guardian’ prifone di¢ti Regis de la Fleete, vir-
tute brevis dicti Regis de Habend’ corpus ad
fubjic’y &c. el inde dire®®’, ad barr® hic du&
in propria perfora fua, qui commit’ prefat’
Marr’, {Fc.  Er ftatw’ de pramifiis eo alloquunt’
qualiter fe inde acquietart, dicit, quod ipfe non
et inde culpabil’, & de hoc ponit fe fuper pa-
triam. Et Johannes Keeling Ar’, Cleric’ Coronz,
& Atornat® Domint Regis in cur’ iplius Regis,
coram 1pfo Rege, qui pro cod’ Domino Rege in
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